AVILA BEACH COMMUNITY
SERVICES DISTRICT

Post Office Box 309, Avila Beach, CA. 93424
Meeting Room and Office — 100 San Luis Street, Avila Beach
Telephone (805) 595-2664 FAX (805) 595-7623
E-Mail avilacsd@gmail.com

REGULAR BOARD MEETING
1:00 PM Tuesday, August 9%, 2022

ZOOM MEETING: https://us02web.zoom.us/j/4111787571
Meeting ID: 411 178 7571 Password: No Password Required.

BY PHONE: 1-669-900-9128

CALL TO ORDER:  1:00 P.M.

ROLL CALL: Board Members:
Pete Kelley, President
Ara Najarian, Vice President
Lynn Helenius, Director
Kristin Berry, Director
Howie Kennett, Director

PUBLIC COMMENT

Members of the public wishing to comment or bring forward any items concerning District
operations which do not appear on today's agenda may address the Board now. Please
state name and address before addressing the Board and limit presentations to 3 minutes.
State law does not allow Board action on items not appearing on the agenda.

INFORMATION AND DISCUSSION ITEMS

County Reports

1. SLO County Sheriff Department

2. CalFire/County Fire Department
Reports on Attended Conferences, Meetings, and General Communications of
District Interest



CONSENT ITEMS:
These items are approved with one motion. Directors may briefly discuss any item, or
may pull any item, which is then added to the business agenda.

Minutes of June 14th, 2022, Board Meeting

Monthly Financial Review for June and July 2022

General Manager and District Engineer Report

Water and Wastewater Superintendent Report for June & July 2022
Consolidation of General Election

(Consider Adopting Resolution No. 2022-08 requesting the District’s 2022
Biennial Election be consolidated with the November 8, 2022, San Luis Obispo
County General Election)

SESRoN- IS

DISCUSSION OF PULLED CONSENT ITEMS
At this time, items pulled for discussion from the Consent Agenda, if any, will be heard.

BUSINESS ITEMS: Items where Board action is called for.

Public Hearing Relating to Solid Waste Franchise Rate Increase

(Actions Required: Open Public Hearing: Receive Comments and /or Protests; Close
Public Hearing; Board Consideration of Adopting Resolution No. 2022-09, Updating
Solid Waste Rates for Avila Beach CSD)

Consider Adopting Ordinance No. 2022-01 Implementing the Requirements of Senate
Bill 1383 Regarding Solid Waste Services by the Avila Beach Community
Services District and Approve the Amendments to the Integrated Waste Management
Authority (IWMA) Joint Powers Agreement (JPA)

(Action Required: Receive Staff Report, Receive Public Testimony on the Draft
Ordinance, Waive Full Reading of the Ordinance, Consider Adoption of the Ordinance or
Provide Other Direction to Staff and Approve the Amendments to the IWMA JPA by a
Separate Motion)

Consider Adopting Resolution No. 2022-10 Which Will Adopt the District’s 2022 Water
Conservation Program and rescind the 2016 Water Shortage Response and Management
Plan

(Action Required: Receive Staff Report, Adopt Resolution No. 2022-10 or Provide Other
Direction to Staff)

COMMUNICATIONS/ COORESPONDENCE

At this time, any Director, or Staff, may ask questions for clarification, make any announcements, or report
briefly on any activities or suggest items for future agendas.

ADJOURN
The next regular meeting will be held on September 13th, 2022.

Any writing or document pertaining to an open session item on this agenda which is distributed to a majority of the Board after the

posting of this agenda will be available for public inspection at the time the subject writing or document is distributed. The writing or document
will be available for public review in the District Administration Office, 100 San Luis Street, Avila Beach, CA during normal business hours.
Consistent with the Americans with Disabilities Act and California Government Code Section 54954.2 requests for disability related modification
or accommodation, including auxiliary aids or services may be made by a person with a disability who requires the modification or
accommodation in order to participate at the above referenced public meeting by contacting the District at 805-595-2664.



MINUTES OF REGULAR MEETING
Avila Beach Community Services District
Tuesday, June 14th, 2022
1:00 P.M.

ZOOM MEETING: 411 178 7571

Meeting ID: https://us02web.zoom.us/j/4111787571

BY PHONE: 1-669-900-9128

1. CALL TO ORDER

President Kelley called the meeting of the Board of Directors of the Avila Beach Community Services District,
to order at 1:02 P.M. on the above date, in the Avila Beach Community Services District Building, 100 San Luis

Street, Avila Beach, California.
2. ROLL CALL

Board Members Present via Zoom:  None

Board Members Present in Person: ~ Pete Kelley
Howie Kennett

Kristin Berry
Lynn Helenius

Board Members Absent: Ara Najarian

Staff Present: Brad Hagemann, General Manager and District Engineer
Kristi Dibbern, Office Manager

FRM Operations: Jeff Cedillos, FRM

Legal Counsel: Shannon DeNatale Boyd, Price Postal & Parma

Jeremy Stone, Price Postal & Parma

Ara Najarian joined the meeting via Zoom at 1:05PM.

3. PUBLIC COMMENTS

Todd Welty introduced himself from NVIRO. NVIRO is a water and wastewater treatment company who
services California.

4. INFORMATION AND DISCUSSION ITEMS

A. County Reports
Sheriff’s Report: No report.

Cal Fire: Battalion Chief Paul Lee reported 53 calls for service this month, 23 were medically related. Cal Fire
also responded to a fatality at Pirate’s Cove last month. Chief Lee reminded us that burn season is officially
over for the year. Cal Fire will conduct a controlled burn in late fall near the Lighthouse area and The Pismo
>reserve. Please abate the weeds and brush to better protect your home from fire. A five-foot radius around your
house is the new suggested recommendations to keep fires away from your property. This includes furniture and

firewood



B. Conferences, Meetings and General Communications.

5. CONSENT ITEMS

Director Berry made a motion to approve the Consent Items. The motion was seconded by Director Kennett anu
passed with a roll call vote 5-0.

AYES:

NOES:

Kristin Berry
Howie Kennett
Ara Najarian
Pete Kelley
Lynn Helenius
None

ABSENT: None

6.

7.

DISCUSSION OF PULLED CONSENT ITEMS: None

BUSINESS ITEMS:

SB 1383 Ordinance.
GM Hagemann summarized the Staff Report and explained to the Board and Public that SB 1383

requires solid waste agencies to adopt regulations to achieve organic waste disposal goals by 2025. The
SLO IWMA hired a firm to develop this draft Ordinance for agencies to use. Most other agencies have
adopted or are in the process of adopting this Ordinance. ABCSD applied for and received a low
population density waiver form CalRecycle that limited some reporting requirements. However, the
District must adopt this Ordinance to have a program that satisfies CalRecycle requirements. There was
not public comment on the draft Ordinance. The Board directed staff to bring the Ordinance back for

adoption at the August 9™ Board meeting.

B. Notice of Public Hearing Regarding Proposed Solid Waste Rate Increase. GM Hagemann summarized

AYES:

NOES:

the Staff Report noting that the State has adopted new regulations for management of organic solid
waste. The burden and associated costs to implement the program falls on the solid waste collection and
disposal agency, South County Sanitation Services (Waste Connections). Waste Connection GM Jeff
Clarin provided a brief presentation and answered questions from the Board regarding the justification
for the proposed rate increase. The motion was made by Director Berry to approve the Prop 218 Hearing
Notice, authorized Waste Connections to mail the Hearing Notice to Avila Beach CSD service area
customers of record and set the Hearing for the Rate Increase for August 9, 2022, at the regular Board
Meeting. The motion was seconded by Director Kennett and passed with a roll call vote 5-0.

Kristin Berry
Howie Kennett
Ara Najarian
Pete Kelley
Lynn Helenius
None

ABSENT: None



C. Water Shortage Response Plan. GM Hagemann summarized the Staff Report and Jeremy Stone, from the
District’s General Counsel’s firm responded to questions from the Board and Public regarding the District’s
draft Water Conservation Program. After receiving input from the Board members and an opportunity for public
comment, staff recommended the Board move forward with Avila Beach Water Conservation Program. The
Board directed staff to publish a Public Hearing Notice and prepare a Resolution and final draft of the Water
Conservation Program for Board consideration at the August 9™ Board meeting.

D. General Manager Contract Review Renewal.
Board General Counsel Shannon DeNatale Boyd summarized her staff report and recommended the Board

renew their contract with Hagemann & Associates for General Manager Services, unless they wanted to go ina
different direction. The contract renewal is for two years, from August 3, 2022 through August 2, 2024, with an
hourly increase from $145.00 per hour to $150.00 per hour. A motion was made by Director Helenius to
approve the GM contract renewal. The motion was seconded by Director Berry and passed with a roll call vote

5-0.

AYES: Lynn Helenius
Kristin Berry
Howie Kennett
Ara Najarian
Pete Kelley

NOES: None

ABSENT: None

COMMUNICATIONS/CORRESPONDENCE.
None

ADJOURNMENT: The meeting was adjourned at 3:25 P.M.

The next regular meeting of the Avila Beach Community Services District is scheduled for Tuesday, August
9th, 2022, at 1:00 PM at 100 San Luis Street, Avila Beach.

These minutes are not official nor a permanent part of the records until approved by the Board of Directors at
their next meeting.

Respectfully submitted,

Brad Hagemann, PE ,
General Manager






AVILA BEACH
COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT
Post Office Box 309, Avila Beach, CA 93424

MEMORANDUM

TO: Board of Directors

FROM: Brad Hagemann, General Manager
DATE: August 9th, 2022

SUBJECT: Monthly Financial Review for June & July

Recommendation:
Receive and file report.

Overall Monthly Summary

During the month of June, the District deposited $101,478.89 and incurred $131,457.07 in
expenses (cash basis). Income included $10,549.23 in County tax income and $80,432.87 in
monthly water and sewer fees. Among the District’s expenses were payments for the
Wastewater Treatment Plant upgrade and SDRMA annual insurance premiums.

During the month of July, the District deposited $141,411.93 and incurred $101,325.07 in
expenses (cash basis). Income included $48,630.30 in County Taxes and $102,433.02 in

monthly water and sewer fees.

Detailed financial reports including a Balance Sheets, Deposits by Fund, Checks by Fund and
Profit and Loss Sheets are provided for your information for the month of June & July.

Utility Service Billing

The District billed approximately $79,668.88 in water and sewer service charges in June.
Customer Rate Assistance reduced billing charges to the District in the amount of $763.99.

In July, the District billed $101,590.09 in water and sewer service charges. Customer Rate
Assistance reduced billing charges in the amount of $842.93.

Operation and Maintenance

The consolidated statement for June & July from FRM (Fluid Resource Management) is
attached.



1:53 PM

07/13/22
Accrual Basis

Balance Sheet
As of June 30, 2022

Avila Beach Community Services District

) _ :Jun 30, 22
ASSETS
Current Assets
Checking/Savings
1000 - Cash Summary
1005 - Customer Cash 360.90
1008 - Petty Cash 45.48
1010 - Pacific Premier Checking 905,638.49
1050 - LAIF 3,888,836.11
1060 - US Bank MM WWTP 1,962,225.23
Total 1000 - Cash Summary 6,757,106.21
Total Checking/Savings 6,757,106.21
Accounts Receivable
1200 - *Accounts Receivable 273,215.00
Total Accounts Receivable 273,215.00
Other Current Assets
1250 - Receivables
1255 - Interest Receivable 3,166.38
1270 - Taxes Receivable 30,262.80
1280 - Water & Sewer Billings 123,829.28
Total 1250 - Receivables 157,258.46
1400 - Prepaid Summary
1410 - Prepaid Insurance - 24,464.30
Total 1400 - Prepaid Summary 24,464.30
Total Other Current Assets - 181,722.76
Total Current Assets 7,212,043.97
Fixed Assets
1600 - Fixed Assets & Acc. Depr.
1605 - Office Equipment
1606 - Copier Samsung 2012 8,233.58
1609 - Office Equipment Accum Depr ~ -8,233.58
Total 1605 - Office Equipment 0.00



1:53 PM Avila Beach Community Services District

07/13/22 Balance Sheet

Accrual Basis As of June 30, 2022

1610 - Fixed Asset -Office & Admin.
1612 - Office Furniture cost
1614 - Office Furniture Accum Dep.

Total 1610 - Fixed Asset -Office & Ad...

1620 - Fixed Assets - Sanitary
1622 - Land

1626 - Collection Assets
1627 - Collection Assets Cost
1628 - Collect Assets Accum Depr

Total 1626 - Collection Assets

1630 - Disposal Equipment
1631 - Disposal Equip Cost
1632 - Disposal Equip Accum Depr

Total 1630 - Disposal Equipment

1634 - Other Equipment
1634a - Other Equipment Cost

Total 1634 - Other Equipment

1635 - Treatment Plant
1636 - Treatment Plant Original
1637 - Treatment Plant Addition
1638 - Treatment Plant Accum Dep

Total 1635 - Treatment Plant

1642 - Treatment Equipment
1643 - Treatment Equip Cost
1644 - Treatment Equip Accum D...
1642 - Treatment Equipment - Oth...

Total 1642 - Treatment Equipment
Total 1620 - Fixed Assets - Sanitary

1650 - Fixed Assets - Water
1652 - Equipment
1653 - Equipment Cost
1654 - Equipment Accum Depr

Total 1652 - Equipment

Jun 30, 22

4,526.21
-4,526.21

0.00
60,314.10

1,318,875.26
-593,752.02

725,123.24
611,174.66
-376,478.88

234,695.78

6,973.40

6,973.40

105,000.00
2,049,098.30
~ -1,318,518.37

835,579.93

1,087,410.54
-787,343.49
205,485.61

505,552.66

2,368,239.11

21,136.28
-21,136.28

0.00

Page 2



1:563 PM Avila Beach Community Services District

07/13/22 Balance Sheet
Accrual Basis As of June 30, 2022

1656 - Distribuation Assets
1657 - Distribuation Assets Cost
1658 - Dist Assets Accum Depr

Total 1656 - Distribuation Assets
Total 1650 - Fixed Assets - Water

1680 - Structures - Fixed Asset
1681 - Structures GFAAG - Sani & FA
1682 - Gen / Fire Accum Dep

Total 1680 - Structures - Fixed Asset
1690 - Construction in Progress
Total 1600 - Fixed Assets & Acc. Depr.
Total Fixed Assets

Other Assets
1800 - Deferred Outflows of Resources

Total Other Assets
TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES & EQUITY
Liabilities
Current Liabilities
Accounts Payable
2100 - Accounts Payable

Total Accounts Payable

Other Current Liabilities
2200 - Payroll Liabilities
2201 - Accrued Payroll
2260 - Vacation Payable
2262 - Sick Pay Accrued
2250 - PERS Liability

Total 2200 - Payroll Liabilities

Jun 30, 22

1,270,572.25
-724,007.77

546,564.48

546,564.48

82,207.29
-54,626.21

27,581.08
599,761.81

3,542,146.48

3,542,146.48

26,376.00

26,376.00

10,780,566.45

189,519.83

189,519.83

2,095.00
2,661.92
1,381.88

263.06

6,401.86

Page 3



1:53 PM Avila Beach Community Services District

07/13/22 Balance Sheet
As of June 30, 2022

Accrual Basis

2300 - Deposits Held
2303 - Water Deposits Held

Total 2300 - Deposits Held
Total Other Current Liabilities
Total Current Liabilities

Long Term Liabilities
2400 - Net Pension Liability
2450 - U.S. Bank Loan WWTP
2500 - Deferred Inflows of Resources

Total Long Term Liabilities
Total Liabilities

Equity
3900 - Retained Earnings
Net Income

Total Equity
TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY

Jun 30, 22

6,430.00

6,430.00

12,831.86

202,351.69

136,917.00
3,020,000.00
5,752.00

3,162,669.00

3,365,020.69

8,106,633.48
-691,087.72

7,415,5645.76

10,780,566.45

Page 4



2:00 PM Avila Beach Community Services District

07/13/22 Profit & Loss
Accrual Basis June 2022

Ordinary Income/Expense
Income
4000 - Income Summary
4010 - Operating Revenue
4012 - Solid Waste Franchise Fee
4020 - Contract Services-Ambulance
4030 - County Taxes
4050 - Harbor Charges
4052 - Front Street Lighting
4053 - WWTP O&M

Total 4050 - Harbor Charges
Total 4000 - Income Summary
Total Income
Gross Profit

Expense
5100 - Merchant Credit Card Fees
5110 - Amex
5120 - Chase Paymentech
5140 - Invoice Cloud

Total 5100 - Merchant Credit Card Fees

5200 - Payroll Expenses
5210 - Gross Wages
5211 - Regular Pay
5012 - Holiday Pay
5014 - Sick Pay
5016 - Vacation Pay

Total 5210 - Gross Wages
5230 - Payroll Taxes

5240 - Health & Medical Exp.
5242 - Health Ins / Other

Total 5240 - Health & Medical Exp.

5250 - PERS Company Pd Expense
5256 - PERS Co Pd Kristi

Total 5250 - PERS Company Pd Expense

Jun 22

80,432.87
3,924 .40
1,110.69

10,549.23

264.00
20,123.00

20,387.00

116,404.19

116,404.19

116,404.19

10.00
127.78
334.39

472.17

3,229.08

0.00
238.56
340.80

3,808.44
66.83

~ 800.00
800.00

270.38

270.38

Page 1



2:00 PM

07/13/22
Accrual Basis

Avila Beach Community Services District
Profit & Loss
June 2022

5260 - Work Comp Insurance
5280 - Payroll Administration & Misc.

Total 5200 - Payroll Expenses

6000 - Administrative Overheads

6102 - Accounting

6103 - Accounting Audit

6120 - Dues & Subscriptions

6135 - Legal

6140 - Office Supplies & Postage
6142 - Postage & Shipping
6143 - Supplies, Office

Total 6140 - Office Supplies & Postage

6150 - Rate Assistance
6170 - Website

Total 6000 - Administrative Overheads

6500 - Operating Expenses

6503 - Chemicals

6505 - Contract LaborO & M

6506 - Contract Labor GM

6507 - Contract Labor Civil Engineer

6510 - Critical Spare Parts

6520 - Equipment Repair & Maint.
6522 - Equip. Rep. & Maint-Avila & HD
6524 - Eqip. Rep. & Maint. Avila Only

Total 6520 - Equipment Repair & Maint.

6525 - Fat Oil & Grease (FOG)
6535 - Insurance P/L

6540 - Lab Tests

6542 - Maintenance

6550 - Operating Supplies
6555 - Permits & Fees

6570 - Safety Gear

6580 - Solids Handling

Jl_m 22

854.49
127.12

5,927.26

1,455.00
300.00
299.80

2,137.00

174.36
117.74

292.10

763.99
413.40

5,661.29

2,27213
22,364.54
5,610.00
13,485.00
2,121.48

2,195.45
5,089.24

7,284.69

27.50
1,795.37
9,398.00

602.25
119.11
750.00
780.70
1,669.75

Page 2



2:00 PM Avila Beach Community Services District

07/13/22 Profit & Loss
Accrual Basis June 2022

6585 - Telephone / Internet
6590 - Utilities

Total 6500 - Operating Expenses
Total Expense
Net Ordinary Income

Other Income/Expense
Other Income
7200 - Non-Operating Income
7220 - CIP Harbor

Total 7200 - Non-Operating Income
Total Other Income

Other Expense
8200 - Non-Operating Expenses
8230 - Capital Purchases in Prog Sani
8245 - WWTP Improvement Project
8245g - WWTP Cannon CM Services

8245d - WWTP Wallace Group Enginee...

8245e - WWTP Construction
Total 8245 - WWTP Improvement Project

Total 8230 - Capital Purchases in Prog Sani

Total 8200 - Non-Operating Expenses
Total Other Expense
Net Other Income

Net Income

Jun 22

 691.46
4.396.56

73,268.54
85,329.26

31,074.93

18,317.00
18,317.00
18,317.00

9,849.75
15,397.80

2,800.00

28,047.55

28,047.55

28,047.55
-9,730.55
21,344.38

Page 3



| abey

99'68S'6 TR soueUBUIBK - 2159 dunr SadIAIeg ZZ/GL/9 05182 "AUl  9oineg Buluaples) zasad  /SZE  2202/62/90 3o8yd
19'8£S'6 00°SSS Bugunoooy - zoL9 Buideaxyoog zz/51L/9 £01LE "AU]  Buideayyoog o|6u3g PN 9G2¢e  2202/6Z/90 iel=1to)
19°€86'8 orELy o}IsgeM - 0219 soa4 BunsoH eysqapm wooAppeqoo 2202/62/90 piellie}
120468 8/°19 “"uawded aseyD - 0zZ1S $88} 00 Jueyoiaw yosjuawAed 2202/62/90 399D
£€7'805'8 Y "uawdhed aseyy - 0Z1S S99} 90 JueyDJaW yosjuswied 2202/62/90 %934o
90'0S'8 G6'622 | f suoydaja] - oG9 LLSEE008600L5728 ‘# 100V wnyoadg 143  2202/52/90 %93Yyd
Li'vig's Geze "M Pd 00 S¥3d - 952§ C2iSL/9- L/ sy ajey sesholdw3 olgng 143 Zzoz/vz/90 %o8yD
YR 74" 00'€le Alliger] s¥3d - 052z 2Z/S1/9- 1/9 sy ey seakodw3 olgqng 143 zzozire/9o %o8yn
9/°'820°8 ¥9°8G1 samlN - 0659 1S sInT ues 01 - 99O 3%9d 143  2202/2/90 bie=TTg)
210482 1WA uawded eseyd - 0zZ1S $89) 29 JueyosoW yosjuswAed 220e/£2/90 ¥93yo
85298, 1) uswihed asey) - 0Z1S $98} 90 Jueyoiow yoajuawAed 2202/£2/90 3o9yD
180982 89°| “uawded eseyd - 0zZ1S S99} 00 jJueyosow yosjuawAeq 2202/£2/90 3o3yD
€1'658°L 00'0£0'2 ~oqeTq JoBRUOD - 909 T "AUL ZZ0Z “UIBL - YIS BUNF JOQeT J0BAUOD  S8jeInossy 1§ uuewaben vSZe  2202/22/90 %o8yD
€1'628'S 19°¢ “"uawAed aseyd - 0Z1S S8} 00 Jueyoiow yosjuswAed 2202/L1/90 pr:liy)
9v'628's €0'1L “"uawded esey) - 0Z1S S99} 00 Jueyosow yosjuswAied 2202/91/90 %o9yD
£’ ¥z8's 0L “"uswAhed sseyd - 0Z1LS S99} 09 Jueyosaw yosjuawAed 2202/S1/90 %oayo
L¥'€28's 80°'¢ “uswihed aseys - 0zZ1LS $99} 99 Jueyosawl yoajuswAed 2202/51/90 399yD
££'0Z8'S 00'S9 Soueusjulel - Z¥S9 Js8d uapzaig 143 2zozi1/90 3994D
€€°'6G.'S 60°L “ruawhed eseyd - 0zZ1S S99} 09 Jueydiow yosjuswAeq 2202/ 1190 pietllie}
1A TR 86°6¥¢ TIOMaS B I9)BM - 0821 Buljiig 4818 M 0SPi7## JUNOSDY Joj punjoy uopJoo yaler  €62¢  2z0eZ/v1/90 3280
92'¥0S'S 0056S't . 10gE130B[UOD - 9069  IUOD ZZOZ ‘Ul BUN( - pugz ABly 8L AUl SBJeI00ssY R Uuewebey 252¢ 2202/L/90 %o8yd
92'606'C 00'588'L " J0QeT JoBAUOD - 90G9 BT IOBNUOD ZZOZ ST - YIS BN 981 L ‘AUl SOJBIoOSSY % uuewsbeH  1Gze 220Z/v1L/90 393YD
92'¥20'c K “uswAhed aseyn - 021§ S8} 00 Jueydiow yoajuawAeq Z20z/e1/90 %99yD
66220 66C “ruawihed asey) - 0215 S99} 00 jueyosow yosjuswhed 220z/01/90 308D
96'6L0'2 00°0F "N g "day “dib3g - pggo sifedal Jjondwod sieindwo) 28] (BD 143  220Z/01/90 piellle}
96'6.6'L 9g'¢ diys g ebejsod - Zi19 90IAISG [e}SOd SN 2202/60/90 piellle)
09'96'L €62 "uawhed eseyd - 0zZ1g $994 90 Jueyosow yosuswAed 2202/60/90 30840
10'696°L 292 "uswAhed asey) - 0Z1S $89} 90 JueydIaW yoajuawAey 220z2/80/90 pet-lie}
SP 1961 90'¢ “"uawAhed aseyd - 0Z1S S99} 00 jJueyosew yoajuawAed 2z02/80/90 %o9yD
6€'856'L 69¢ uawAhed aseyd - 0Z1S S99} 00 JueyosswW yosjuawAeq 2202/80/90 3o9yd
0/°656'L 6€'VEE PNO[D @2I0AU] - OFLS S99} JuBYydlaw pno|D a210AU| PNOJO82I0AU| 2202/£0/90 %oayd
LE1LZ9'L 00006 Bununoday - 2oL9 Buidearioog £80¢ "Aul 2z/5z/S  Buidesxyoog oiBug N  6¥2S 2202/.0/90 %o3yn
Le'LeL 00'62 SouBUSIUIBW - YS9 “"e(Q pue pues ‘seAea Jo dn) ues|) Jowsixg ‘0D bulues|) aulse0Dd @yZe  Z202/L0/90 308Yyy
L£'969 00591 oueusiuleiN - ZyS9 (2202 Ae) GO0E “Aul BdUBUBUIRK 9210 ‘0D Bulues|) auseo)  8yZE  2202/20/90 398YD
LE'LES 0001 Xawy - 01§ Xawy  ‘osiq ssaudx3 ueousy 2202/90/90 308D
le'Les GG'GL "uawhed eseyd - 0zZ1LS $99) 99 JueyoJow yosjuawAed £20z2/£0/90 %o8YyD
9/°'60S 09662 'HosgNg @ senq - 0219 wooz 2202/£0/90 3o9YD
96'G0¢2 2288 "dng BugessdQ - 0659 “*sAg ssauisng soluosye) 143 2202/£0/90 »o8yD
Vit 000 GUSGOM - 0119 " UO DN Bulwesns ASOEY AUuow :QIOA  *'IQ / WOD'sUlWesnSIen 143 2202/20/90 pietllie}
VL LLL 2 AN 80O ‘saddng - 119 sa|deig 220z/10/90 3o9yD
:_Ev<\ _m._ocwmu
aouejeg junowy unoosoy OWwd sweN wnp ajeq adAL
Zzoz aunp
SIUNO2DY/M pung Aq syoayn czIeLILO

JouIsIq sadiateg Ay

uwo) yoeag ejiAy



Z abed

61209, 2890} T Jogen Joequo) - G069 €v81Z1 “ebeuep @ainosey pinld  29Z¢  2Z0Z/6Z/vu 3994D
L0'¥00'SZ.  68°0¢ “*dng bunelado - 0559 dLlMM Jo} seyddng yeglzy  -ebeuepy 20inosay pinj4 L9¢E 220e/62/90 39840
8L'€L6'Y.  €£€8CL8'SL T JogeT Joequo) - Gog9 €68124 "Aul Alejues 'sdo zzoz Aepy  “abeuepy 8ainosay pinl4 - 292¢  2202/62/90 308YD
GE'091L'68  0§.2 'sealo R 10 1ed - 6259 €2/L2/9 0-€100-S¥20 # 108(o1d G296 “Auj oul ‘'dnoig sdellep 99Z€  2202/62/90 A984d
G8'ZEL'6S 19°04 Jeag Ajoges - 0269 €2/ E/S 8995664 AU Aoogenig YSN  G92¢  2202/6Z/90 384D
¥2'290'65  S.'6¥8'6 "uued d1MM - B5pZ8 08 19010AU |LZL1Z #198f01d dLMM dHan uouuep  goze 2202/62/90 3989YD
6¥'ZiZ'6r  00°05L S894 B sjiuled - G669 Nlsd Jojessueg 99l gg# ‘AUl Wuad O uolnjiod IV 0D 0TS 8528 220¢/62/90 934D
6vy'2ov'sy 000082 TISU0D d1MM - 8612Q 109(0.d dLMM 10} Bulwiwig a1 *Aleg sa1) 'soiguokung  g5zE  2202/62/90 3984D
6¥'299'sy  9r'/18C - 0659 1S oosloue. ues @ pJg - d1MM 3%9d 143 2202/ve/90 398YD
eosyezy 9L obL sainN - 0659 ¢-8ECCEYBEE #00e UojelS Ui 38Od 143 2202/¥¢/90 398YD
LZv0L2¢  00090'v T Jogen oequo) - L0g9 wajsAg jueg Joge Joejuoy  sejepossy B uuewsben ¥Yace 2202/2e/90 393U
lTYy9'8e  68'8S “JUj / suoydaja] - 6859 JauJau] G880 X # 1008 121v 143 22oz/Le/90 3984D
Zy'e8s'8e  0s'ce | / duoydsle] - 6859 C819162.2.82 #1900 181V 143 <2202/51/90 384D
26'195'8¢  00'92Z9'E T JogeT] oequo) - 1069 wajsAs Iueg Joge] 10BjuU0D)  S8leI00SSY B uvewsbeHy  zgze 2Zz0zZ/vL/90 199Yd
26'9€6'v€  00'ST0'S ' JogeT joeqnuo) - 2059 wajsAg lues Joge 1oeuo)  sajeInossy B uuewsbeH 1G¢e  220Z/v1/90 398YD
Z6'L68'LE 6002 Jeag) Aajes - 0269 CC/8LIS €12€864# AU Yoogenigysn  0See  Z202/.0/90 3984D
€8°18L°1E€ 62699l Buiipue spijos - 0859 £06.9 "AU| 22/1/9 Butjpue spiog Ul 'spesds  spZE  Z202/20/90 393Yd
80Z1S'6C 00'86£'6 s}sa) geT - 059 CC/L/9 L08S Juawsiels  “rondleuy jseod suoleqy  9vee  2202/20/90 3984D
80vLL'0Z  SEESL'LL TBlIlEM dLMM - PSHEe 0-2100-5%20 # 109lo1d £6£9G "AU| U] ‘dnouo edejlep  SZE  2202/20/90 A98UD
€4°096'8 SYyve'y BllEM dLMM - PS8 dLMM s@dlag ubisa( eul4 OU| 'SBIBI00SSY R USA  tPZE  220Z/L0/90 393yd
829LL'Y €r'eLe’e s|ealwsyg - €059 €elLTIS L2SSYTIdg AUl ‘ouj ‘oljloed Bejuualg  gvge  2202/.0/90 39940
SLvvp'e 967l selInn - 0659 JeisdwinQ pA Z ZSEV0LE-0ZLY Joquin “Jooy - Aeyueg fjunog ynog 143 2202/20/90 393YD
6l°60¢c'c 8v'12Le "t aledg [EORUD - 0159 ISA 2¢0¢/10/90 3934D
L4281 12281 "] / duoydaje] - G869 S ¥06 91¥6-G6S S08 # 100e 121V 143 2202/10/90 39840

Kieyueg

[ANAAS ¢9'¢c6 sIy6I7 |ejo L
¢9'¢c6 1€°29¢ saliN - 0659 £-90959/964S #99€ SybI 1S Juoi4 389d 143 2202/v2/90 398yd
G2'GeS S.PLL saplnn - 0659 0-29£55 12666 # 100€e siybiq AuojoD 389d 143 2202/£0/90 394D
0S' oy 0G o SN - 0659 €-7869.60690 # 100e syb17 umo | 3%90d 143 2202/20/90 xmmco

sIyb"

SL'9ZY'oc  S1'9Zv'0z ulpy / [elsuag) [ejo |
GL'9Zy'0c 2648l T Jogen] Joequo) - G0G9 abieyoing jeng  “abeuep acinosey pinj4 L92€ 2202/62/90 3034D
€2'8eC'0C 00141 diys ® abeysod - Zy19 ¢c/g/9sleaquny Loy. 'aup | ‘seiBojouyos | sAnealD  vOZE  2Z0Z/62/90 H/YD
€2°/190°0¢  0000¢ upny Bujunoddy - €019 zZ0zZ Ae Buunp saoines Hpny €2-220¢2 A4 d11'umoig @ epeq  £9zZ€  Z20Z/62/90 1¥/YD
€2°29.°61 88'G¥S'g “einsu| pledald - oLyl @beyord ANgery/Auedold €661 24 adloAu| Aaljod [essuen yiNyas 19¢e 2202/62/90 309340
geTLgeLlL 6 S8 UL dWOD MIOM - 092G SIONIOM LLOL # JOqeN 2GS L L# 9210AY| dwoD oM YWHAS  092€  2202/62/90 934D
98'99¢°0l 00'L8p [eba7 - SEL9 ') 22/22/9 2L1961 "AU| LO000-SZYHT Bl TTleuwled B [@)sod ‘sdlld  65ZE  2202/62/90 193YD
98'G88'6 00°00¢ aouBUBUIIBK - ZHSY JuBWaleqy POSM 22/6/9 £GSZ AUl do1nes Buluapieg zeleq  26z¢ €20¢2/62/90 134D

aoueleg junowy junoooy ows |y oweN wnn ajeq odAj

geoe sune

SJUN02DY/M pund Aq s)o3YH ZeIeLIL0

JoH3SI(q sad1AIeS AjUnWwo) Yorag eBlAY



¢ afbed

L0°.st'LEL

L0°.S¥ 1LEL IvioL
092022 0920022 olep elo]
0920.'22 €100V “JOMOg B I9Je M - 0821 SO0 rav 3ONVIVE 90  "IWLSNray IDNVIvE rav 2z0z/0£/90 »oayo
yeoe'ee voses's “eansu| piedaid - 0Lyl sbexoed Ayliqer/Auedoud €661 24 9010AUj| folod |essuen YNNAS 1928 Z202/62/90 %9849
eV’ Lll6'VL  Loeey "W g "dey "dib3g - $zgo 8I0WedAS U0 3ea7 9./ LZM  obeUBW 80IN0SOY PINY 2976 2202/62/90 %o8yd
C6ESSVL  £1°G29'v "N g "day "dib3 - p2ge s|dwes pue JueipAH eoejdey gz/LZm  9beuEly s0Inosay PINId  292¢€ 2Z02/62/90 3o8yD
61'826'6 10°662'S """ JogeT J0enuo) - 6OG9 €6812d "AU| Isjep 'sdO zzoz ey -abeueiy sounosay piInid 2976 2202/62/90 3o9yD
Z1'eeo'y 00'959'1L [ebeq . cglLg Aiddng uonensasuo) Jsjepy " elueq % [9)sod ‘eolig 6S2€ 2202/62/90 %980
212162 IANAAA SSMMIBN - 0659  'PY Buipue aaeg 21 /) - 19XIN YuE] Jojep 399d 143 2202/v2/90 308YD
006522 00091t ' JogeT Joeqnuo) - 2059 Weyshg Jajep Joge JoepuUOD  sojeloossY g uuewaber  poze 2202/22/90 %o8YD
00'665°L 00'0/8 "’ JogeT Joequo) - 2059 Wa)sAg Jole M) J0GET JORJUOD  SOjeIoosSY B uuewaber  zoze 220zZ/ 1190 3oayD
00'52L 00522 "’ JogeT Joejuo) - L0559 Wayshg Joley Joge JoepuUOD  Sejeioossy B uuewabey  LGze Z202/v1190 %o8yD
Jajep
0L'G0v'Z8  0.'S0¥'/8 Aseyues [ejo ).
0L'S0v'28 €100 "IOMag B JajeM - 08Z1 SO0 rav AONVIVE 92  3INLSNravy IONVIVE rav 2zoz/0e/90 %0840
156008  SP'L6L |/ 8uoydaje) - G859 S 06 9176-G6S SO8 # Jooe 181V 143 2zZ0z/0e/90 ¥o8y9
Zl'vl8'98  88'SHS5'g “ensu| pledald - 0L¢L " abexoed Ajqer/Auadold €661 2# 8910AU| fljod [e1suen YINYAS 1928 2202/62/90 %o8yD
¥2'892'8.  62'Z¢S g "dey "dinb3 . zzgo CC/LLIYINO |IleD WielY L9LZM  abeuely aounossy pini4 2928 Z20Z/62/90 %o8yo
G6'SEL'/.  91°€99°) 9 'dey "dinb3 - zzgg Senss| vavOs v6SLeM  ebeuely sainosey pinld /928 2202/62/90 hiel= Vo)
@oueeg  junowy ~ junoodoy  owepy R awep ~ wnN  ejle@  edA)
2zZ0zZ aunp
SJUNOIIY/M pung Aq syoay) ZZIELILO

10L)SI(] S92IAI0S AY

IWwo) yoeag epay



| abeyd

99'G85'6 Tly aoueURUIBY - ZHSO Sunr SadIABY, _ /G1/9 06182 ‘AUl  Bolmies Buluspien zaded /G2 2202/62/9u %o8yD
19'8£G'6 00'S5S Bununoooy - 2019 Buidearpiood 2z/51/9 €01€ "Auj  Buidesxyoog oiBug N 9SZE 2202/62/90 ¥o8yo
19'€86'8 or'ELy olisqaM - 0419 so9 BunsoH aysqapm woo'Appegoo 2202/62/90 %oayD
12'0.5'8 82°19 “uswAed asey) - 0ZLS S99} 20 jueyolow yosjualAed 2202/62/90 %o8yD
£7'805'8 ISP “ruswAed esey) - 0Z1LS S99} 99 jueosow yoajuawAey 2202/62/90 3oy
90’058 56622 Uy / suoydefa ] - 6869 L2GEE€00860015¥28 # 100V wnuoadg 143 Zz202/52/90 piet-llle}
Livie'e Ge'ze "M Pd 00 SY3d - 9528 C2/SL/I9- L/ sy ey seskoidw oygng 143  2202/%2/90 %98yn
9.°Lv2'8 oo0'cle Agern sy3d - 0szz Ce/SLI9- L/9 sy ey saakoidwg oigng 143 zzoz/re/90 pel-1te}
9.'820‘ v9'851 salIlN - 0659 1S sInq ueg 001 - 90O 399d 143 2202/v2/90 3o8YH
210482 52 uawAhed aseyd - 0Z1LG $89} 00 JueyoIoW yosjuswiheq 2202/£2/90 3}08YD
85298/ L1 uswhed eseyD - 0Z1LS S84 00 jueyossuw yosjuswAed 2202/£2/90 3oayo
18°098°2L 89'L ""uswAed eseyd - 0Z1LS S99} 00 Jueyosew yosjuswAed 2202/£2/90 %oayo
€1°658°L 00'0£0'2 " Joqeq JoBjUOD - 9069 T "AUI ZZ0Z 'YIBL - UIS SUNP 10T JOBNUOD  SBJeossY B uuewsbeH - yoze 2z0z2/2z/90 ¥oayo
£1°628°S 19°¢ “uswAhed sseyD - 0zZ1LS $998} 20 jueyolaw yosjuswAed 2202/21/90 3oayo
9¥'628's €0l "uawhed asey) - 0Z1Ls S834 00 Jueyosaw yosjuswAed 2202/91/90 Yoayo
£Y'¥28's zZ0'L "uswAhed aseyy - 0Z1LG S99} 00 jueydsaw yosjuawAed 2202/51/90 3o9yo
L¥'€28'S 80'¢ uawhed asey) - 0Z1S $99} 20 Jueyolaw yosjuswAed 2Z02/51/90 %o9yd
££°028'S 0069 aoueuduIRl - ZHS9 I1sad uapzaig 143 2z02/t71/90 %o8yD
€€°662'G 60°L "uswAed aseyd - 0Z1S $99) 29 Jueyosow yosjuawAed zeozivLI90 %984yo
v ¥SL'S 86°6¥¢ UIamaeg g Jele M - 0821 Bunig Je1e M 0SI# JUNJOY 10} punyey uopio9 Waler  £62Z¢  ZzZ0Z/vL/90 pe-lle}
9Z'¥0S'S 00°665°L 7 J0GETI0BAUCY - 90S9  AUOD ZZOZ ‘Ui BUNP - PUZZ ABIN /8L ‘AU SBJEIo0SSY B uuewebeH  zGze 2zozivL/90 %98Y9D
92'606'E 00°588°L " JogeT] JoBNUOD - 90S9 BT JOBJUOD ZZOZ ISLZ - UIg AN 98LL "AU|  sejenossy B uuewsbBeH  Lgze 2z0zivLI90 3o8yo
92'¥20'C LEL “uswihed esey) - 0ZLS S99} 20 jJueyoiow yosjuswAed 2202/€1/90 %o8yd
56220'2 662 “uswAed esey) - 0z1S S8} 00 Jueyosaw yoajuswAied 2202/01/90 pitllie}
96'6L0'2 000t "IN R "dey "dib3 - $g59 suiedal 19)ndwos siendwo) 29a] e 143  2202/0L/90 308y9
96'6.6'L og'e " diys » abejsod - zvL9 9IS [B)SOd ‘SN 2202/60/90 3o8yd
09°9.6'L €52 uawded eseyd - 0ZLS $834 00 Jueyoaw yosjuswAhed 2202/60/90 ¥oayD
20696°L 29’2 uawdhed eseyD - 0Z1LS S84 00 Jueyoaw yosjuswAed 2202/80/90 yoayD
S L96°L 90'¢ “"uawAhed aseyn - 0Z1S $99) 00 Jueydiow yosjuswAed 2202/80/90 Yoayo
6£°856°L 69'C “"uawhed aseyd - 0Z1LS $38} 00 jueyosaw yoajuswAed 2202/80/90 ¥oayD
04°656°L 6€ ¥EE PnojD 8210AU| - OFLS S99} JueydJaW PNOJD 9DI0AY| PNoIDa010AU| 2202/20/90 ¥o8yo
LE'1LZ9°L 00'006 Bununoody - zoL9 Buideaxyoog £80¢ ‘AUl zz/Sz/s  Buidesjoog aibug BN 6bZE 2202/20/90 ¥o9yo
le'ies 00's2 SoUBUBJUIBN - Z¥G9 “"@Q Pue puesg ‘saAeaT Jo dn ues|) Jousixg ‘00 Bulues|) suipseon gyze 220z/20/90 %o9yd
L£°969 00591 douBUBlUIBIN - 2SO (2202 ABIN) GOOE “AU| SoUBUBUIRK 010 ‘0D Bulues|] sumseo)  8¥ZE  2202/20/90 ¥o8yD
LE'LES 0001 Xawy - QLS Xawy -os|Iq ssaidx3 ueolswy 2202/90/90 %98YD
e 128 §5°S1 “uswAed esey) - 0Z1S S99} 00 jueyolow yoajuawAed 220z/£0/90 3o8yD
9/°506 08662 "UOsQNS %@ saNQ - 0219 wooz 2z02/£0/90 %o8yD
96°50Z 2288 dng BunessdQ - 0559 "*sAg ssauisng soluosen 143 220z/£0/90 %99yD
v LLL 000 SUSQSM - 0L19 " U0 ON suljwesns SOgy Aiyluow (QIOA  TIQ / WO BulWweaNSIen 143  2202/20/90 %oayd
2o (2N 92O ‘salddnsg - 19 sejdelg 2202/10/90 %o8YyD
:_E_u<\ _N._wcww
aouejeg junowy junoooy oW aweN wnpN ajeq adA)
Zzoz sunp
SJuno22y/m pung Aq syoey9 zzicLiLo

o181 S821AI8S AJlunWwwo) yoeag BjAY



Z 9fied

6LCL09.  Z.°890'L T JogeT Joequo) - 5069 evglzL “ebeuep @oinosey pini4  29ZE  2202/62/90 3osyo
L0'v00'S.  69°0€ "dng Buiesado - 0569 d1lMM Jo) seyddng pegizy ebeuep 82inosey pINd 2928 2202/62/90 308UD
8L'€L6'P.  €82L8'GL " JogeT joe/uo) - G059 €68124 "Au| Aiejues 'sdO zzoz AeN  “ebeuep 90in0say pinjy  79ZE 2202/62/90 %98YD
SE'09L'6S 0S¢ Sel9 R 0 18] - GZG9  22/.2/9 0-€100-G¥Z0 # 198loid G296 ‘AU 'Ou| ‘dnol9 dde|lepM 9928 2202/62/90 3o8yD
G8'ZEL'6S  190L Jeag Ajajes - 0269 C2/1E/S 899566# "Au| H00g9NIg VSN 692€ 2202/62/90 3o8yD
¥2290'66  S/'6v8'6 'uued d1MM - BSpzg 08 1ed10AU] 121 LZ #10000id dLMM HaW uouued  goze 2202/6Z/90 joeyo
6vZLe'er  00°0SZ S99 B sjiWlad - 6659 lulsd Jojelauag g9l ge# ‘AUl Jwiad 'O uonniiod Y 0D 0TS 8SZ€  220Z/6Z/90 ¥93yD
6v'Cov'8y 00008z ISU0D dLMM - 96529 103f0id dLMM 10y Bulwiwy @11 “Aseg 9a1) 'soig uoAung  goze 2202/62/90 piel- Vo)
6v'299'sty 9b'/18°C SalyIN - 0659 IS 09soueI UBS R PIE - A1 MM 399d 143 220Z2/+2/90 3}oayo
€0'SP8'Zr  9L'0vL salliiN - 0659 Z-8€2ZEHBEEI #100E UoleIS Y 399d 143 220zive/90 %o8YyD
L2v0L2y  00°090‘% " JogeT JoBjuog - 2069 WasAg lues Joqe penuoy  sejeloossy g uuewaber  yoze 2202/22/90 e Vo)
lTYr9'8e  G8'8S | f Buoydare] - 6869 JouIalu| G880 X # 100e 121V 143  220Z/12/90 399YD
Zr'e8s'8e  05°€T "] / duoydaje] - 6859 2919162.2.8¢ # 100e 121V 143  2Zzoz/s1/90 e Vo)
26°198'eC  00'629‘e "t JogeT Joequo) - 2059 wajsAg lues Joge enUO)  salepossy p uuewsbey  zgze 220z/71190 3¥o9yo
26'9€6'vE  00°SP0‘S " Jogen joequo) - L1059 WSYsAS jues Joge JoBRUOD  SB)eI00SSY B Uuewabey 162  2202/v1/90 3}o3yo
26'L68'LE  600LL Jeag) Alejes - 0259 Z2/8LIS €LLESGH "AU| joogenig vSN  0S2e  220Z2/.0/90 o9yD
£8°18L°LE  G1'699°L Bulpuen spijos - 0859 €06.9 "Au| 2Z/1/9 Buipuey spijog Ul ‘'spedds  vZe  2202/.0/90 b Vig)
801562 0086£'6 s}se | geq - Ops9 ¢c/L/9 208S Juswalelg  “onhleuy jseod sucleqy  9pZ€  2202/20/90 3o9yn
80'VLL'0Z  SEESLLL elleM dLMM - PSYZ8 0-2100-5¥20 # 109l04d £6£9G "Au| ou| ‘'dnoig aoBlIlBM  GPZE Z202/20/90 3}o3yo
£2'096'g SYvve'y elleM d1MM - PSPZ8 dL1MM sedineg ubise( jeuly Ju| ‘selelooSSY R UBA  vhZE  2202/.0/90 %¥09yo
8C9LL'y €1212'2 S[ealways - €059 22/12/S L1SSveldg “Auj ‘ou] ‘ooed beyjuussg  eyze  2202/20/90 398yo
SL'vvir'e 96'vEL SeIAN - 0699 JeIsdwng PA 2 LSEYOLE-0ZLY JoquinN 0oy Alejues Ajunon yinog 143 220z/20/90 3o3yo
61°60£2 8’12l "t aledg [eanud - 0159 ISA 2202/10/90 %o8yn
127281 L4181 ""juf j duoydale] - 5869 S 706 9176-S6G G08 # 100e 191V 143 220Z/10/90 }o8yo

Aiejiueg

29226 29226 sybI [eyo L
29226 1€°19¢ SaNN - 0659 2-90959.96/6 #00e siybi 1S ol 3995d 143  2z02/#2/90 3}oayo
GZ'G8S SlvLL SaIMBN - 0659 0-29€S5 12665 # 1008 sjybiy Auojon 39od 143  2202/£0/90 3o9yD
0S oY 05 0bv SalNN - 0659 £-¥869.60690 # 100e s)ybin umo | 339d 143 2202/20/90 v_mor_o

sjybir

SL'9gy'oe  siLozvoe uiwpy / [eteuan) [ejo |
SL'oZy'oc  Z6'.81L " JogeT JoBJUOY - G0S9 ableyoing jen4 --ebeuep somnosey pin4  J9zZ¢ 2202/62/90 pelVlg)
€2'862°0c 00°LLL “diyg p sbeisod - z¢1L9 cc/8/93eguny LopL AUl | ‘selbojouyoa) eaness)  $92¢  ZZ02/62/90 ¥o3yo
€2°/90°0¢  00°00€ Ipny Bugunoooy - €019 Zz0z ABN Bulinp S80IAISS IPNY £2-220Z A4 dT1‘umoig @ epad  €92¢  Zz202/62/90 3}oayo
€2°/9/61  88'615'Q “'einsuyj pledald - oLyl aBexoed Apjiqel/Auedold €661 J# 8210AU| Aollod jelsue yWHAS  19ZE  2202/62/90 b e=Vg)
se'Lee’ll  6vpse Ul dWOD HIOM - 092G TTSIMOM ZL0L # JSQUIBYN  YZS | L# S010AU| dwoD YoM YINNAS  092€  Z20Z/62/90 b 1=lVg)
98'99€'0lL  00'L8Y |e6e7 - SEL9 "D ) 22/22/9 TLL96L AUl LOD0O-SZYYZ Ol BulEd @ [81S0d '9Md  6S2€  2202/62/90 %o8yo
98'G88'6 00°00¢ SOUBUBIUIBIN - ZPS9  "'IS BlIAY JUSWaleqy PIdM ZZ/6/9 26GT AUl @0iAag Buluap.es zalsd  /G2e 2202/62/90 b eL=lV/g)

aouejeg unowy Juno22Yy owap awenN wnpN ajeq adAj

Z2zoz sunp

SjUNo22y/Mm pun4 Aq s)o9yH 2zIeLILO

JoL)81Qg sedines A)

W09 yoeag gAYy



¢ abey

1026 LEL

L0°2Sv'LE)L

Ivi0L
0920L'22  09'20.'2Z 1O B0
0920472 €007  IomMag B IOIEM - 08Z) SOO MV IONVIVE DD  "IWLISNrAY IONVIVE  raV  220Z/0S/90  ooyD
V20822 v0'Sze'L eansul predld - 0LyL " eBexoRd AigerAuedold €644 010AU)  Adljod [B1OUSD WINMAS  LOZE  ZZ0Z/62/90  00UD
eV 1/6'PL  LS'E€TY "W 8 "day "dib3 - pzc9 SI0WEOAG UC ¥eaT 97/ LM eBRUBI B0IN0SAY PNl /OZE  Z20Z/62/90  Yo9YD
Z6ESSPL  €1°G29'v W8 'dey -dibg - pggo ajdweg pue Jue.pAH soejdey 8Z2LZM  “obeuely 80In0say PN J0ze 2202/62/90 3o8yD
61'826'6  20°G62'S ** 10qET JORHUOD - G059 €6812d ‘AUl JBleM 'sdO 220z Ay "ebeuepy sounoseW PN J9Z8  ZZ0Z/6Z/90  OOUD
ZLV'EE9Y  00°959'L {efa - Ge19 Aiddng uojenlssuog selem Ul ewled B [01S0d ‘old 662 ZZ0Z/6Z/90  ¥oRuD
ZViI6T 21Tz SN - 0659  'PH BUIpUET BABD 2|/ - JOXIN NUE] JS)e 3%9d 143 2202/42/90  o8yD
00'SS2°Z  00°09)') " J0qe JoRNUOD - /0G9 WaisAs Jsjep Jogeoeuo)  sejeioossy g uuewsbeH  pSZE  ZZ0Z/2Z/90  Mo8un
00'G65'L 0008 * 10ge J9eAUOD - 2059 Walshs Jejep Joge joeauo)  sajelossy P uuewsBeH  ZGZE  ZZ0Z/PL90  3o8UD
00622 0052, "~ J0geT J0enuo) - 2059 weishs Jele ) Joge 1oeAUOD  seleloossY B uuewebeH  LGZE  ZZ0Z/PL/90  Yo9uD

19Je A
04'S0v°.8  0.'SOv'/8 fejues [e10]
0L°G0V'Z8 €100V " JOMSS B J9BM - 08Z) SO0 PAQY IONVIVE DD  "IWLSNrAVY IONVIVE  rQVY  ZZ0Z/0S/90  M0o9uD
16'S00'28  S¥'L6) “Ju| f suoydaia | - 8G9 S 06 9L76-G6S SO8 # 1008 181V 143 2202/08/90  09yD
ZL'vl8'98  88'SPS'e “eansu| predald - 0Ly) " sBexoed AlliqerAuedosd e66L.# 2010a|  Adljod [eJSUSD VWNAS  19Z€  Z20Z/62/90 09U
vZ'892'8.  67°ZES g "dey "dinb3 - zggg CZ/LLIYINO IlBQ WBlY $L9LZM abeuely 90In0SSY PNl J9Z€  ZZ0Z/62/90  ORUD
S6'SEL'L. 91°'€99°L g "dey 'dinb3 - Zzg9 SoNss| YAVOS v6SLZM  obeuep sounosey pinid 2928 ZZ0Z/62/90  dOdUD

soueleg  junowy  junoooy owa  awepN . wnN aeq “adAj
ZZ0Z sunp
SjuNo23y/M pung Aq s)yaeyd ZeUICLILO

JoL81Q S991A1eS AjUnwwo) yoeag ejiay



| abed

18°608'v- el 4" uald diioed - 0LOL aouejsIssy 9By 2202Z/80/90 MsodaQ
er'vee'y- 9t 996~ wiald oyloed - 0101 o8y lueS 2Z02/80/90 Msoda(
16°152'p- SS'Yv “rwald auided - 0LOL Z4oyl0 ZzZ02/L0/90 ¥sodeQ
2s'cat'y- 000 TUwisid oyioed - 0LolL } I8UI0  2202/20/90 usodsQ
A FASTA 2 000 wisld ouloed - 0401 sduejsissy ajey 2z0Z/.0/90 NsodeQ
A WA TA & 86°019- “wald dulded - 0LOL %9y ues gz0z/L0/90 WsodeQ
vG1G9'e- ve'GLL'e- rwisld ouoed - 0LOL SIseM - 3N AVIN 22 Ad 401 2202/90/90 ¥sodag
0L°GLY- GS.°/2 “rwsld dyioed - 010} ZJ8Yi0 ¢z02/90/90 ¥sodeQ
Gv'€0S- 000 “'Wald duyloed - 0L0L L JaYyl0 2202/90/90 M}sodaq
Sv'€09- 8c'L TTwald dyided - 0L0L aouejsissy eley ¢202/90/90 ¥sodeQ
€L°016- 68°21L0°L- Trwisid ouided - 0L0L J9Yy lues  gz0z/90/90 IsodaQ
91°20S 000 Twisld oiioed - 0101 240 2202/50/90 Msode(
91°20S 000 Tweld dlioed - 0L0L L 49Yl0 2202/50/90 Nsodeq
91°208 6S'¥ “Tuisid ayioed - 0LOL doue)sissy ojey  £z02/50/90 ¥sode(
4G°C0S €66V wald dyded - 0101 09y lueS  2Z0Z/S0/90 Nsodag
0L'8¥S 000 wiaad oyloed - 0LOoL Z19Yl0 2z02/v0/90 ¥sodsQ
0L'8¥S 16°682'¢ “Twsid oljioed - 0LOL | J8YI0 2Z0Z/r0/90 MsodaQ
18 LvLe- L1°¢l TTwisld dyided - 0LOL souejsissy sley 2¢02/0/90 MsodeQ
8G°6G.'¢- veLeve- TTwield duided - 0LOL o9y lues  2z0z/y0/90 IsodaQ
Ve v9C- SLeSL- TTwisid dyioed - 0LOL Z4eYl0 Zz0eg/c0/90 WsodeQ
65°0L1L- 000 “'wald dyioed - 0101 } J8Ul0 ZZ02/e0/90 ¥sodaq
6G°0L1L- 000 TTwield duyided - gLoL souesissy eley  ¢20z/€0/90 lisodeQ
65°0LL- 65°0L1L- TTuald dioed - 0101 09y ueg  Zz0e/c0/90 ¥sodaQ

Aiejlueg

10°G9¢- 10'G9¢- sybi lejol
10°G9¢- L9°'%01L- Twisld oioed - 0LOL  TT'GET J8IBM ‘0L T USD - | # dNI HOVY3A VIAY - 09201V $680:d  2202/91/90 Nsodeq
vE€'094- y£091- Twiaid oyoed - 0LOL T SIYDI ‘GZT JelBAA ‘0L T UBD - | # MdNI - AW AVIN 22 Ad 401 2202/90/90 #_mmaoo

sybi

18°028'- 18°028'- ulwipy / jelsueg) |ejo |
18°028'v- 9€'Gov' |- “TWiald Joed - O0LOL . T'GET J81eM ‘0L T uSD - | # JINI HOV3E VIAY - 09201V S680:4 2202/91/90 lisodeq
Ghgee'e- 9L v¥2'C- “wald oyoed - 0101 T SIUBIT ‘Gz Jsjep ‘0L T UBD - | # HdNI - N AV 22 Ad 401 2202/90/90 JIsodeq
69°0LL'L- 69°0LL"L- TTwald Jiioed - 0101 SedInBg JoeAUOD BoUBINQWY TS 2202/90/90 Msode(

ulwpy / |esauas

aouejeqg junowy nds ows ajeq adA}

c¢eoe aunp

pung Aq syusodaqg ZzZieLILo

PuSIg seoIAIeg AT uwo) yoeag e[IAY



Z 9bed

06°0L1L 0¢- 6¥°190°2- “wialid diioed - 0L0L 9y lueg  2202/81/90 ¥sodeQg
L¥'6v0'8L- 000 “Tusld dyloed - 010} ¢y 2202/LL/90 ysode(
Ly 610°8L- 000 TuLaud dyioed - 0101 L J8Yl0 2202/LL/90 ksodeq
Lv'6v0'8lL- 000 “wald oyoed - 0101 |duejsissy 8jey  zz0Z/L1/90 UsodeQ
Lr'6v0'81L- 96°1156- Twald diided - 0101 09y lueS  Z20Z/L1/90 ¥sodsQ
G8'Liv'S- zeeloe leld dlioed - 0101 XVL A34N23S ¥dND - 0920V $680:4 220Z/9L/90 usodsQ
£9'86€'0- 000 TUwald dloed - 0101 CI3YI0 220e/9L/90 ¥sodeqg
£9'86€'9- 000 “Twisid dlioed - 0LOL L IBYO 2Z20Z/91/90 ¥sodeQ
£€9'86€'9- 000 “Twisld dyioed - 0L0L S0uE)sISsY 8jey  220z/91/90 UsodeQ
£9'86€'0- [ANAAN TTwieid dyided - 0101 09y lueg  2z0oz/91/90 NsodaQ
16°G22'9- 000 TTwsid dijioed - 0L0OL ¢JaYl0 220e/SL/90 usodeQ
16°GLZ'9- 000 TTlald dyioed - 0L0L l 48410 2202/51/90 ¥sode(
16'GL2'9- 000 “Twald dyided - 0101 souejsissy 8jeM  ¢z0z/G1/90 ysodeQ
16°GL2'9- 90981~ “Twiald dyided - 0101 09y lues  Zz0z/G1/90 MsodaQ
G8'680°9- 000 “rwiald oyloed - 0101 ZJIdYio 2zoe/rL/90 usodeQ
G8'680'0- 000 “wisld oyloed - 0101 L BYI0 2Z20Z/rL/90 ¥sodeQ
G8'680°'0- 65V “rwisid dyided - 0101 S0UE]lSISSY 8l  ZzZ0Z/rL/90 WsodaQ
¥¥'v60°0- L8°¢ep- “rwisld oyloed - 0104 o8y lUeg  gzog/vL/90 sodeq
15°109°G- 000 wsid dyided - 0101 ZIdYi0 2202/cL/90 MsodaQg
1S°1L09°G- 000 “Tluiald dyioed - 0LOL LJ3YI0 2202/€L/90 MsodaQ
15°109°G- vr'ee lsld oyoed - gLOL duelsissy o)ey  ¢zZ0z/cL/90 ¥WsodeQ
10'G29°G- 99'82l- Tuisid dyioed - 010l o9y lueg  gzoz/el/90 NsodaQ
GE'96Y'G- 000 “Tlisid duloed - 0101 ¢ I9YlI0 2202/2L/90 wsodag
GE'96V'G- 000 uiald oyided - 0101 | 1810 220z/2L/90 Nsodeq
GE'96Y'G- 000 TTwield dyloed - 0101 S0uE)lSISSY 8jey 2Z02/21/90 MNsodeQ
GE96Y'G- VE'€9- rwield dyloed - 0101 J9Yy lueg  zz0e/Zl/90 ksoda(
LO'EEY'S- 10°0- wield dyloed - 0101 Z4YI0 2z02/0L/90 Nsodeg
v62et'G- 000 Twald diyided - 0101 L I3Y0 220Z/01/90 WsodeQ
v62et'S- 000 Twiald duyioed - 0101 SduelsIssy 8jey g202/01/90 Msodeq
v62er'G- 90'96¢- “'wisid ouioed - 0101 08y lueg  220z/01/90 WsodaQ
88°9€0°G- 000 “Tlusld di1oed - 0LOL ZJI84l0 2Z02/60/90 ¥sode(
88°9€0'G- 000 Trwald dyioed - 01Ol L JIBUI0 2202/60/90 Msode(
88°9€0'G- 000 “'wald dyioed - 0101 oduelsIssy 8jey 2202/60/90 Msodaq
88°9€0°G- Gge8lL- Tuiald dyioed - 0101 08y lueg  2202/60/90 Msode(
£€evyae8'v- o - TTwiald duyloed - 0101 ZI8Yl0 2202/80/90 Msodeqg
18°608t- 00°0 TTwBld Jyioed - 0L0L L JUI0 2202/80/90 ¥sodaQ
aouejeg junowy Nds owap ajeq adA)
e¢zo¢Z sunp
pung Aq s)isodaq ZeIELILO

PU)SIq S99IAI9S Ajunwwo) yorag ejIAY



¢ abed
047250 L¥-

0e°s6E’L- "weld oyioed - 0LOL o9y lueg  gz0z/82/90 MsodeQ

0¥ LS9°Gy- 00°0 TwLld duided - 0L0L Z48y0 2202/L2/90 ¥sodeQ
Ov' LS9'GY- 000 Trwsid ouided - 0L0L | 8YO 220z/L2/90 Ysodeq
Ob LG9'GH- 000 “wiald oyioed - 0101 aouejsissy sley ¢¢0z/.2/90 ¥sodeQ
ob°2G9'GH- ey 9¢e- “rwsud dyioed - 0L0L 08y lueg  2z0e/L2/90 YsodaQ
86°029°GY- 000 “Tlwiald oyided - 0101 ZI8Yyl0 ¢2202/52/90 MNsodeQ
86°029'Sv- 000 “wald ayioed - 0L0L L JI8UI0 2202/S2/90 Nsodeq
86°029'GY- ¢l L Twaid oyioed - 0101 S0UE)SISSY 8ley ¢Z02/G2/90 NsodeQ
0.°269'Gy- L0209'v1- Tlaadd diioed - 0LOL 08Y lues  Zz0z/S2/90 sode(
€9°060°L¢- 60°0L- Twsld dyioed - 0LOL ZI8Ul0 2z02/ve/90 sodeQ
¥5°080°LE- 000 “Tuisld dyloed - 0LOL L BYI0 2z0z/re/90 Nsodeq
¥S°080°LE- gg'ece “wisld ouloed - 0101 SouelsIssy aley ZZ02/kZ/90 MsodeQg
6.°¢0L'LeE- SO°0LL- Twisld dyided - 0101 08y IUeg  Zz0z/rZ/90 YNsodaQ
¥1'2€6'0¢- 000 wald oljioed - 0L0L ¢8Yl0 Zz0e/eez/90 MsodaQ
¥1°2e6'0¢e- 000 “'wsid oljioed - 0101 L I8UI0 ZZ0Z/€2/90 ¥sodaQ
vl eesoe- £€6'6¢C Twisld duided - 0L0L souejsissy a)ey  2202/€2/90 NsodeQ
10°296°0¢- 66°29v'z- “'wald Jijidoed - 0L0L 08y lueg  Zz0z/€z/90 Msodeq
80°66v'82C- 000 “wisid dyioed - 0LOL Z18Yl0 Zzoe/zz/o0 ¥sodeQ
80°'661'8Z- 000 rliald oyided - 0101 L U0 2202/22/90 usodaQ
80'66V'8Z- 000 “Uwsid dlioed - 010} soue)sissy aley ¢20z/¢z/90 Yisodeq
80°661'8¢- Sy'2ot- Tweld duyided - Lol 08y Weg  2z0zZ/2z/90 isodsQg
€9'9€0'8z- 20°0ey TTwaid duyoed - 0101 ZI8UI0 ZZ0Z/12/90 ¥sodeQ
0.'99v°'g¢- so've TUwaid odyioed - 0L0L L 18Y10 220Z/12/90 Usodeq
S.06¥'ge- 90°IvL TUwiald oljioed - 0LOL doue)sissy sjey  ¢zZ0¢/12/90 Wsodeq
l8'Le9'g2- vr'€L0°8- “Uwisid diioed - 0LOL J9Yy lues  2zoz/Lz/90 NsodeQ
1€'865°02- 000 wald oyloed - 0101 Z49Yl0 2z02/02/90 Wsodag
1€'85G'02- 000 TTwilald oyided - 0L0L L I8YI0  Z202/02/90 ¥sodeQ
1£'886'0¢- 000 TTweld ouided - 0L0L adue)sissy 8jey ZZ02/02/90 ¥sodaQ
1£°88G'0¢- 81°'09¢- 'wsid oyioed - 0101 09y IUBS  ZZ0Z/02/90 WsodaQ
68°L,62'0¢- 000 Twald dijided - 0101 ZJ3Yl0 ¢eoe/el/90 Wsodeq
68°.62'02- 000 “'wald duidoed - 0L0L L J8YI0 2e0e/61/90 Nsodeq
68°.62'02- 000 TTlwisid oyioed - 0LOL sduejsissy sley ZZ0z/61/90 MHsodeq
68°,62°02- 66981~ rusid oyloed - 0L0L o8y lueg gzoz/6L/90 NsodaQ
06°0LL°02- 00’0 TTwiald ayloed - 0101 <830 ZZ0ozZ/8L/90 usodaQ
06°'0LL'0c- 000 “Twiald oiloed - 01L0L L J8Y0 220e/8L/90 sodaQ
06'0LL°0z- 000 TwRld dioed - 0L0L soue)sissy eley  2zZ0z/81/90 Nsodeq

souejeg unowy yds owap ajeq adA)
c¢zoeg sune
pung Aq sysodaq zeeLILo

PISIg S9oIAIRg A uwo) yoeag elIAY



¢ abed

€0'86L - 000 wisld syived - 0L0L ¢ 49Ul0 220¢/90/90 ¥sodeQ
€086 'v- 000 “liald dyioed - 0LOL | I9YI0 2202/90/90 ¥sodeq
€0'86L't- 0z'Li “Twald ouioed - 0L0) S0uElsISSY 8jey  Z202/90/90 UsodaQ
€2°60C'v- 1G°89¢€°L- “"wsld oyided - 0101 29y 1ejep  2202/90/90 NsodeQ
cLove'e- 000 “'wslid oljioed - 0101 ZJ49Y0 2Z02/S0/90 ¥soda(
cLove'e- 000 'wsid oijioed - 0101 L48YO ZzZ02/50/90 ¥sodaQ
cLove‘e- 6€0L wisld oyioed - 0104 ouejsIsSY )y ¢202/S0/90 MsodaQ
lLigg'e- 98°t0}- “Tliaid dyed - 0LOL o8y JBjeM  2202/50/90 Msodaq
TN A 000 “TWisld dlyided - 010l ¢ J8Ul0 2202/v0/90 Nsodeq
STAVA I A 000 “Twald dyloed - 0101 L JIBUI0 2202/70/90 Msodag
STAVA I A 1€ TUwald dyioed - 0L0L SOuElSISSY 8ley Z202/70/90 Msodeq
Zy'eLL'e- GE'TYSC- Twald dyided - 0LOL 3y J8jeM  2202/70/90 ¥sodeq
L0'9¢e- 000 “Twiald dyided - 0101 CJ8YI0 2202/c0/90 MNsodeq
10°9¢¢- 000 TTwisld dyded - 0101 I JBYIO 2202/£0/90 MsodeQ
10°9¢¢- 000 TTweld dyided - 0101 SOUE}SISSY 8ley ZZ02/c0/90 Msodeq
20°9€¢- 20°9¢¢- TTwald dyed - 0101 98y IBjleM  2202/€0/90 ¥sode(

Jajepp

ov'v26'e- ov'vee'c- SJSEM PlIoS [Bjo ]
o¥'veee- 6y'€0L2- TTwieid diided - 010} MS 994 8slyduel suojosuuo) sISepN  ZZ02/91/90 Nsoda(
167022 L- 16°022'L- “ruald oyioed - 0L0L MS 994 aslyouel4 suojosuuo) alsepy  ZZ02/90/90 lsodsQ

9)SEeM pPljoS

8€°€66'8- 8€°€66'8h- Areyueg [ejo)
8€'€66'8Y- 000 “Twialid dyided - 0L0L CJ8Ul0 2z02/0£/90 MWsodag
8€°C66 8- 000 “Tliaid oyioed - 01Ot |l IBYYO 2202/0€/90 ¥sodaQg
8€°€66 '8P~ 6S'v “wsid dyioed - 0101 SoUEBlSISSY 8jey ¢202/0£/90 ¥usodeQ
16°L66'8Y- 18°€5G L- TTusid dyioed - 0L0L 09y lueS  2¢0z/0€/90 MNsodeQ
oL v 'Lp- 000 “rwield oytoed - L0l ZI9YO 2z02/62/90 usodsQ
OL'v¥v' Ly 000 'wiald dyioed - 0101 L 18YI0 220Z/62/90 MNsodaq
OL'v¥b'L- 65V Twisld Jl4ided - 0L0L S0UElSISSY 8Jey 2Z202/62/90 MNsodeQ
69°8vY Ly- 0€°0LY- wald dyioed - 0L0L 09y lueg  2z0e/62/90 WsodaQ
6€'8.6'9Y- €2'e9 'lwiaid duioed - 0L0l ZJ8Yl0 2z02/82/90 ¥sode(
2oLP0 LY 000 “'wisld duloed - 0LOL L I8Y10 220Z/82/90 MNsodaQ
290 L 80°LL uisld olloed - 0L0L Souelsissy 8ley 220¢/82/90 ¥sodeQ

aosuejeg unowy yds owa ayeq adA}

c¢eoe sunp

pund Aq sjisodaqg ZeIELILO

JouISIQ S921AIRS AJlUNWIO?) Yyoeag B|IAY



G abey

S95°060'8- 000 Tueud oyoed - 0L0L L 19YI0 Z202/9L/90 Msodeq
G6°060°8- 000 “wRld Jiioed - 0L0L _douesissy dey  Zz02/91/90 Nsode(
GS'060°8- 66°LLL- TTwield dyioed - 0101 o9y JBlBM  2202/91/90 MNsode(
95'816'.- 000 wsld oyioed - 0LoL ZJ9Yl0 2z0z/SL/90 ¥sodsQ
96'816°L- 000 wald oyioed - 0L0L L J3Y0 2202/51/90 NsodaQ
99°816°L- 000 Tlald duyioed - 0101 dduelsIsSsSy 9y  ZZ0Z/SL/90 ¥soda(
9G'816'L- L6'0ve- 'wisid ayloed - 0L0O|L o9y J9)BM  2202/S1/90 NsodeQ
G9'LLG'L- 000 “Twiald dyioed - 0L0L CJ9UYl0 ZzZ0oz/r1L/90 usodeQ
G9°L45°2- 00°0 “'wiald diioed - 0L0O} I 18410  2202/71/90 Nsodeq
G9°L1G'L- 6€°01 “'wiald dyioed - 010} JVUEB)SISSY 8Jey  ZZ0Z/rL/90 HsodsQ
0885 .- LV'2LG “wald diloed - 0L0L 09y JsleM  2202/vL/90 Wsode(
18°0L0°2- 000 'wisid dyioed - 0LOL ZJ83Yy0 Zzoz/eL/90 usodeQ
18°01L0°2- 000 “'wsld dyioed - 0LOL L 1840 220oe/el/o0 wsodeq
28°0L0°Z- €9'0C “'weld dlioed - 0101 SdUElSISSY 8jey  ZZ0Z/€L/90 NsodaQ
0S°1L€0'2- Ly Ge- wsld oyioed - 0101 o9y 18leM  220ez/eL/90 Msodeq
60'966'9- 000 'uieid oiidoed - 0101 ZJ48Yl0 2zoz/el/90 usodeQ
60'966'9- 000 TTwald Jiioed - 0101 L J8Yi0 2202/Z1/90 Mksodeq
60'966'0- 000 “rweld dyioed - 01O} Sduelsissy ajey  ZZ0Z/ZL/90 ¥sodeq
60'966'9- 80'v9- “Tueld Juloed - 0101 09y J9jeM  2202/21L/90 Msodag
10°2e6'9- 000 TTwald diided - 0101 ZI8Yl0  220z/0L/90 MNsodeQg
10°2E6'9- 00°0 “Twald dyioed - 0101 L Y0 2202/0L/90 ¥sodaq
10°2€6'9- 00°0 “'wisld diided - 0L0L SoUE)lsIsSSY @jey  ZZ0Z/01/90 ¥sodag
10°2e6°9- €9'9¢t- “Twisld doed - 0LoL 09y JejepM  2202/01/90 ¥sode(
8€°G0G'0- 000 “'lwisid ayioed - 0L0l 2 18Yl0 Zz02/60/90 ¥sodaQ
8€'G0G'9- 00°0 'wald dioed - 0101 L J8UI0 2202/60/90 ¥sodaq
8€°G0S'9- 00°0 'wiald dyioed - 010l sdue)sissy 8jey  2¢0z/60/90 NsodaQ
8€°G0G'9- 10'9¢€e- Twald diidoed - 0LOL o9y J8lBM  2202/60/90 MsodeQ
LE692'9- 000 rwsid dyioed - 0104 ZJ484yl0 22Z02/80/90 usodeQ
LE°692'9- 000 'wald dioed - 0LOL | J8YI0 ZZ02/80/90 ¥sodeQ
LE'692'9- or'ze “'Wwiaid dyioed - 010} edue)sIsSsy 8ley ZZ02Z/80/90 ¥sodeQ
L4 162'9- S.v09- “'Wwiaid dyioed - 0LOL 09y J8lBM  2202/80/90 YisodeQ
96°'989'G- 000 TTuRld dyded - 0101 Z49Yl0 Zz02/L0/90 ¥sodeQ
96°989'G- 000 TTweld dioed - 0101 L 18Y10 2202/.0/90 Wsodaq
96'989'G- 000 “TwRld dyioed - 0101 S0UE)SISSY @jey  2Z0z/L0/90 WsodaQ
96'989'G- €2°189- TTwald diioed - 0101 09y J8jlBM  2202/L0/90 Nsodag
€1°666't- 04°L08- Twiald oyed - 0L0L T SIYOI ‘G2 Jelep ‘0L T UBD - | # HdINI - N AV 22 Ad 4D 2202/90/90 usodag
aouejeg junowry nds owa aeq adA}
220z sunp
pung Aq sysodaq TT/ELILO

puISIq saoIAIeg A uwo) yoeag ejiay



g abed

LS°LLL L Y- S9°t6 “wiald oyoed - 0LOL douelsissy 9)ey  Z20¢/G2/90 MHsodeQ
T L8 LY ZL'96v'vi- “riald olioed - 0L0l o8y J9Jep  2202/52/90 Hsodeq
oLgLe'le- 000 “Twisld ouided - 0LOL ZJ18YI0 2z0e/re/90 Wsodeq
oL'sie'se- 000 “wisld d4ioed - 010} L4840 2Z202/r2/90 MsodaQ
ol'gLe'le- €e8've T"wisld oyioed - 0101 ouelsissy 8ley  ¢202/b¢/90 NsodeQ
£6°6€€'L2- co'zee- "wiald oyloed - 010} o8y 18Jep\  ¢202/be/90 NsodeQ
16°L0L"Le- 000 rwisld oyioed - 010l ZIBYI0 2202/€2/90 Wsodeg
1620122 000 rwisld ouloed - L0l L JIBYIO 2202/€2/90 MNsodsQg
16°20L°L2- €0°9¢ liald duided - 010} souelsissy 9jey ¢20Z/€2/90 MNsodaQ
ve'evl'le- v6'889°C- “wiald duioed - 010} 8y JBlBM  2202/€2/90 MNsodaq
ot'GSv've- 000 “Twiald dyioed - L0l ZJ9Y0 2zoz/zz/9o wsodeq
Ot'SSy've- 000 “Twald dyided - 010} L I8Y0 2Z02/2Z/90 Ysodeq
ot'SSy've- 000 “wisld oilded - 0101 Sduejsissy ejey 220z/2e/90 MNsodeq
Ot'GSy've- ¥8'96¢- “'wiald diyioed - 0101 08y JBjBAN  2202/22/90 MsodeQ
96°850'vZ- 000 wiald dyided - 0101 ZJ18Ul0 2202/12/90 NsodeQg
95°'850've- 000 Tuald olloed - 0L0L L JIBUYI0 2202/12/90 Msodeq
96°'850'v2- 19'16¢C TTwald oyloed - 0101 soue)sissy 8ley  ¢zZ0¢/12/90 Wsodeq
L oLe've- 06°200°01- “ruisld oyloed - L0l 09y JelepM  2202/12/90 Wsodeq
L2°20€'YL- 000 'wald ojloed - 0LOL ZJ48Ul0 2202/02/90 MsodeQg
L220¢'vL- 000 “Twiald oyloed - 0101 L JIBUI0  2202/02/90 lsodeg
L2°20e'v1L- 000 rwald oiloed - L0l souejsissy eley  2¢0z/02/90 ¥soda(
L12°20e'YL- 16°G94G- “Tuisld oyloed - 010} 09y JBlBM  2202/02/90 Yisode(
oe'9zL'el- 000 Twiald oyided - 0101 ZJIdYl0 2z0Z/61/90 ¥sode(
0e9zL'eL- 000 wsld oiioed - QL0L L 18410 2Z02/61/90 ¥sodaq
0g9zL'elL- 000 TTlald diided - 0L0L SdUElSISSY 8jey  ¢20¢/61/90 Msoda(
og9eL'eL- 1N WA 274 “Twald diided - 0101 o9y 18lep  2202/64/90 sodeQ
L1'6LY'EL- 000 TTwiald olioed - 0L0L ¢J48Yl0 Zz0e/81/90 ¥sode(
LL'BLY'EL- 000 wiald oyloed - 0LOL L 8YI0 2202/81/90 Ysode(
LL'6LY'EL- 000 wield ouoed - 0101 SouBlsISsY 8jey  220z/81/90 sodsQ
AN AR 1671181~ “rueld ouloed - 0L0| 09y J9lBM  2202/81/90 ¥sodeQ
0T'L£9°L1L- 000 “rueid oiloed - 0101 Z48Yl0 2Zz0e/LL/90 ¥sodsQ
02 LE9°L1L- 000 TuiRld oyloed - 0LOL L IBYIO 2202/L1/90 ¥sodeQ
02°2£9°L L~ 000 “rwiald ouloed - 010} souejsissy 8jey  ¢20¢/L1/90 MsodaQ
02 LE9°LL- leeeo'e- “wLld oyloed - L0} 08y J8)IBM  2202/L1/90 ¥sode(
68°€cL9'g- ve'€es- “wsid oyloed - OLOL  TTSZT 48BN '0L T USD - | # dINI HOV3E VTIAY - 09201V S680:4 2202/91/90 Msodaq
G5'060°8- 000 “rweld dyided - 0101 ZJ8Ui0 2z02/91/90 ¥sodeQ
aouejeg junowy nds owa ajeq adA)
¢zoc aunp
pund Aq sysodaq 2zIEVILO

JouISIQ S991A19S AJUunWWo) yoeag elIAY



. abey

68'8.v°101-

68'8.p'L0L- Tvi0oL

6Z°SLY'er- 6C°GLY'EY- 13leM [EJOL
62°SLYer- 000 “Twieid dyided - 0LoL ZJ8YI0 ZT02/0€/90 usodaQ
CIATA AN & 000 “rwsld dhioed - 0L0L | 1840 2202/0€/90 MNsodaQ
6T’ 6LV 'EY- 6€0L “'weld dljloed - 0101 douejSISSY dley  ZZ0Z/0£/90 NsodaQ
89'G8p'eY- vZ L0V TTuald diioed - 0101 o8y J8leM  2202/0€/90 Msodeg
¥y'8L0'ch- 000 TTwiaid dyided - 0L0L Z48Yl0 2z0e/6z/90 Msodeq
Yr'8L0'ch- 000 “Twald dyioed - 0101 L 1840 ZZ02/62/90 ¥sodeq
vi'820'ch- 6€e0l “Twaud dyioed - 0104 8OUE)sISSY @jey  2Z0Z/62/90 NsodeQ
£8°'880'ch- 81 0vG- TTwsld dyided - 0101 o9y J9lep  2202/62/90 NsodeQ
GE'8yS Cr- 000 "uwisid oyioed - 0L0l Z9Y0 2202/82/90 ¥sodsQ
Se'8bSey- 000 “laid dyioed - 010} L YO 2202/82/90 Wsodag
ge8yseh- 9e°0¢ “Twiald dljioed - 0101 dduelsissy ey  2202/82/90 sode(
L2'8.G°¢y- 91°608- “'wsld duloed - 0L0L 09y 18l 2202/82/90 MsodeQ
GG€LL Y- 00°0 Tweld dyided - 0101 ZJ8Ul0  2202/L2/90 YsodseQ
GS€LL L Y- 000 TTwald dyioed - 0101 L 18UI0  220¢/L2/90 MsodeQ
GGeLL LY 000 “Tuald Jiioed - 0L0L Soue)lsIsSsSy 8jey  ZZ0Z/.2/90 WsodaQ
GS'€LL' V- 86°GG- TTliald diioed - 0LOL o9y Jolep  2202/L2/90 ¥sodeQ
LS 2Ly 000 “rwald oiioed - 0101 21940 2202/G2/90 ¥sodeqQ
LS 2LL - 00°0 “Twald dyioed - 0101 L IBYIO 2202/G2/90 ¥sodeQ

aouejeg junowy yds a)eq adAL

Zzoz sunp

pung Aq sysodaq zeIeLILO

PsIq sedlnes A

uwo9 yoeag ejiay



3:11 PM Avila Beach Community Services District

08/03/22 Balance Sheet
Accrual Basis As of July 31, 2022
Jul31,22
ASSETS
Current Assets
Checking/Savings
1000 - Cash Summary
1005 - Customer Cash 788.32
1008 - Petty Cash 45.48
1010 - Pacific Premier Checking 939,997.35
1050 - LAIF 3,891,898.20
1060 - US Bank MM WWTP - 1,695,273.34
Total 1000 - Cash Summary ~ 6,528,002.69
Total Checking/Savings 6,528,002.69
Accounts Receivable
1200 - *Accounts Receivable ) 273,215.00
Total Accounts Receivable 273,215.00
Other Current Assets
1250 - Receivables
1255 - Interest Receivable 3,166.38
1270 - Taxes Receivable 30,262.80
1280 - Water & Sewer Billings 134,569.32
Total 1250 - Receivables 167,998.50
1400 - Prepaid Summary
1410 - Prepaid Insurance _ . 22,429.64
Total 1400 - Prepaid Summary ) 22,429.64
Total Other Current Assets o . 190,428.14
Total Current Assets 6,991,645.83
Fixed Assets
1600 - Fixed Assets & Acc. Depr.
1605 - Office Equipment
1606 - Copier Samsung 2012 8,233.58
1609 - Office Equipment Accum Depr -8,233.58
Total 1605 - Office Equipment 0.00

Page 1



3:11 PM:

08/03/22
Accrual Basis

Balance Sheet
As of July 31, 2022

Avila Beach Community Services District

1610 - Fixed Asset -Office & Admin.
1612 - Office Furniture cost
1614 - Office Furniture Accum Dep.

Total 1610 - Fixed Asset -Office & Ad...

1620 - Fixed Assets - Sanitary
1622 - Land

1626 - Collection Assets
1627 - Collection Assets Cost
1628 - Collect Assets Accum Depr

Total 1626 - Collection Assets

1630 - Disposal Equipment
1631 - Disposal Equip Cost
1632 - Disposal Equip Accum Depr

Total 1630 - Disposal Equipment

1634 - Other Equipment
1634a - Other Equipment Cost

Total 1634 - Other Equipment

1635 - Treatment Plant
1636 - Treatment Plant Original
1637 - Treatment Plant Addition
1638 - Treatment Plant Accum Dep

Total 1635 - Treatment Plant

1642 - Treatment Equipment
1643 - Treatment Equip Cost
1644 - Treatment Equip Accum D...

1642 - Treatment Equipment - Oth...

Total 1642 - Treatment Equipment
Total 1620 - Fixed Assets - Sanitary

1650 - Fixed Assets - Water
1652 - Equipment
1653 - Equipment Cost
1654 - Equipment Accum Depr

Total 1652 - Equipment

Jul 31, 22

4,526.21
-4,5626.21

0.00

60,314.10

1,318,875.26
-593,752.02

725,123.24

611,174.66
-376,478.88

234,695.78

6,973.40

6,973.40

105,000.00
2,049,098.30
-1,318,518.37

835,579.93

1,087,410.54
-787,343.49
205,485.61

505,552.66
2,368,239.11

21,136.28
-21,136.28

0.00

Page 2



3:11 PM

08/03/22
Accrual Basis

Avila Beach Community Services District
Balance Sheet
As of July 31, 2022

1656 - Distribuation Assets
1657 - Distribuation Assets Cost
1658 - Dist Assets Accum Depr

Total 1656 - Distribuation Assets
Total 1650 - Fixed Assets - Water
1680 - Structures - Fixed Asset

1681 - Structures GFAAG - Sani & FA

1682 - Gen / Fire Accum Dep
Total 1680 - Structures - Fixed Asset
1690 - Construction in Progress
Total 1600 - Fixed Assets & Acc. Depr.
Total Fixed Assets

Other Assets
1800 - Deferred Outflows of Resources

Total Other Assets
TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES & EQUITY
Liabilities
Current Liabilities
Accounts Payable
2100 - Accounts Payable

Total Accounts Payable

Other Current Liabilities
2200 - Payroll Liabilities
2201 - Accrued Payroll
2260 - Vacation Payable
2262 - Sick Pay Accrued

Total 2200 - Payroll Liabilities

Jul 3], 22

1,270,572.25
-724,007.77

546,564.48

546,564.48

82,207.29
-54,626.21

27,581.08
599,761.81
3,542,146.48

3,542,146.48

~26,376.00
26,376.00

10,560,168.31

189,519.83
189,519.83

2,095.00
2,661.92
1,381.88

6,138.80

Page 3



3:11 PM

08/03/22
Accrual Basis

Balance Sheet

As of July 31, 2022

Avila Beach Community Services District

2300 - Deposits Held
2303 - Water Deposits Held

Total 2300 - Deposits Held
Total Other Current Liabilities
Total Current Liabilities

Long Term Liabilities
2400 - Net Pension Liability
2450 - U.S. Bank Loan WWTP
2500 - Deferred Inflows of Resources

Total Long Term Liabilities
Total Liabilities
Equity
3900 - Retained Earnings
Net Income

Total Equity
TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY

Jul31,22

6,430.00

6,430.00
12,568.80
202,088.63

136,917.00
3,020,000.00
5,752.00

3,162,669.00
3,364,757.63

7,148,503.87
46,816.81

7,195,410.68

10,560,168.31

Page 4



3:13PM Avila Beach Community Services District

08/03/22 Profit & Loss
Accrual Basis July 2022

Ordinary Income/Expense
Income
4000 - Income Summary
4010 - Operating Revenue
4012 - Solid Waste Franchise Fee
4030 - County Taxes
4600 - Interest Income

Total 4000 - Income Summary
Total Income
Gross Profit

Expense
5100 - Merchant Credit Card Fees
5110 - Amex
5120 - Chase Paymentech
5140 - Invoice Cloud

Total 5100 - Merchant Credit Card Fees

5200 - Payroll Expenses
5210 - Gross Wages
5211 - Regular Pay
5012 - Holiday Pay
5014 - Sick Pay
5016 - Vacation Pay

Total 5210 - Gross Wages
5230 - Payroll Taxes

5240 - Health & Medical Exp.
5242 - Health Ins / Other

Total 5240 - Health & Medical Exp.

5250 - PERS Company Pd Expense
5254 - PERS Co Pd Kathy
5256 - PERS Co Pd Kristi

Total 5250 - PERS Company Pd Expe...

5280 - Payroll Administration & Misc.

Total 5200 - Payroll Expenses

102,433.02
1,784.80
48,630.30
3,062.09

155,910.21

155,910.21
155,910.21

15.00
133.66
515.99

664.65

3,814.03
223.26
0.00
5568.15

4,595.44
78.23

800.00
800.00

14,816.00
2,021.98

16,837.98

22,425.77

Page 1



3:13 PM Avila Beach Community Services District

08/03/22 Profit & Loss
Accrual Basis July 2022

6000 - Administrative Overheads
6140 - Office Supplies & Postage
6143 - Supplies, Office

Total 6140 - Office Supplies & Postage

6150 - Rate Assistance
6170 - Website

Total 6000 - Administrative Overheads

6500 - Operating Expenses
6506 - Contract Labor GM
6507 - Contract Labor Civil Engineer
6520 - Equipment Repair & Maint.
6524 - Eqip. Rep. & Maint. Avila Only

Total 6520 - Equipment Repair & Maint.

6530 - Generator Maintenance
6535 - Insurance P/L

6540 - Lab Tests

6542 - Maintenance

6550 - Operating Supplies
6585 - Telephone / Internet
6590 - Utilities

Total 6500 - Operating Expenses

6800 - Water
6802 - Lopez
6805 - State Water

Total 6800 - Water
Total Expense

Net Ordinary Income

Jul 22

351.26

351.26

842.93
400.00

1,594.19

2,900.00
2,320.00

1,373.16

1,373.16

450.00
2,034.66
3,851.90

255.00

371.04

312.30
5,117.52

18,985.58

4,762.46
59,750.75

64,513.21
108,183.40

47,726.81

Page 2



3:13 PM Avila Beach Community Services District

08/03/22 Profit & Loss
Accrual Basis July 2022

Other Income/Expense
Other Expense
8200 - Non-Operating Expenses
8230 - Capital Purchases in Prog Sani
8245 - WWTP Improvement Project
8245¢c - WWTP MBR Purchase

Total 8245 - WWTP Improvement Proj...
Total 8230 - Capital Purchases in Prog ...

Total 8200 - Non-Operating Expenses
Total Other Expense
Net Other Income

Net Income

Jul 22

© 910.00
910.00
910.00
~ 910.00
~910.00
-910.00

46,816.81

Page 3



| abeq

LL'GP2'eZ  90'€92 Ajiger) sy3ad - 0szz T2Z/0E/9 - 9L/9 NSy ey seekoldw3g ongng 143  2z02/62/L0 3osyo
LL'Z86'22  00'vL9'L M Pd 0D SH3d - 9525 UN [BNUUY uleqqiq NSUM 90288791 # Al iy seakoidw] agng 2202/62/L0 3oayoD
LL'89E'LZ  00°9L8'VL A Pd 0D S¥H3d - ¥SZS “ENUUY UOSPIEyDlY AUleY 90Z8/8V/9L # Al T aiey seskoidw3 algng 2202/62/20 %oayD
L1'28S'9 9g'¢ “"uswhed asey) - 0zZ1LS S99} 09 jueyosow yosjuawAed 2202/82/10 ptllie}
G.°84G'9 91°902 SammN - 0659 1S sIn ues 00l 3%9d 143 220z/92/L0 3o3yD
65°2Zve' 052 "uawAhed asey) - 0Z1LS $98} 00 JueydsoWw yosjuswAed 2202/92/.0 pe-llie}
60°0vE'9 oL'eee’t "IN g 'dey “dib] - yzg9 sieIndwo) 29 |BD 2202/92/10 3o8yo
£6°900°'c 8e'Z ""uswAhed asey) - 0Z1LS $99) 00 jueydsowW yosjuawAey 220z/s2/L0 3o8yD
S5°$00°S $6'62¢ | / suoydele] - 8G9 LLGEEC00860015728 "# 100V wnuoadg 143 zeoz/sziLo 3o8Yyo
09'vLL'Y 66°09 2010 ‘sanddng - gp19 sojde)jg 2202/22/10 %98yd
LoeLL'y 6z'veL 20O ‘sanddng - ev19 sajdelg 2202/22/10 3a8yo
Z£'68Sy 82°0. “usuwhed aseyd - 0ZLg $83} 00 Jueyolaw yosjuswAed 2eoz/e/lo pitlle}
pS'8LS'y 6L 1L 200 ‘salddng - ¢p19 sajdejg 220e/12/10 pirllie}
SE LYY G9'Lt7L 9010 ‘salddng - ¢¥19 sejde)s 220z/12/.0 ptllie}
0.°€62V 06’ uswihed aseyn - 0Z1LS $83} 00 JuByDJOW yosjuawAed 2e02/02/20 398YyD
08'682'v oL’ “uswihed esey) - 0Z15 $834 00 JueyoJsaw yosjuawAed 2202/02/.0 pitilie}
v9'882'y 00002 alisgaM - 0419 suljweans asogy Alyuow Qg / Wod'suljwesnglen 143  2202/02/L0 %oayo
$9'880'v 2oL “"uswihed asey - 0Z1S $93} 00 Jueyosow yosjuswAed 2202/61/20 %oayd
29°/80v 00'62 SouUBUSIUIB - Z¥S9 “"9(Q Pue puES ‘S8AEaT JO d() UES|D JORIXT ‘0D Bulues|o suipseo)  z/ze  Z202/61/20 3oayD
29'290'v 00'691 Soueusjulel - ZyS9  (ZZ0Z Sunr) GOOE 'AU| BOUBUBIUIRK 92O ‘00 Bulues|) BuUINSEOD 2/ZE  ZZ02/6L/L0 pellie}
29'268'c 26'28 IOMSg R JBIBM - 0821 "D S,UABY INO A0 JuswAediaAQ punjay DISMalusOy NelN 692 2202/61/40 3oy
0£°608°€ 000062 " 10geT] JORJUOD - 9059 J0QeT oeNUOD WO sejeloossy R uuewsber  89zZ¢ 2Z0Z/6L/L0 yoayH
0,606 902 “‘uswAhed aseyy - 0zZ15 $83} 00 jueyoew yosjuaswAed 2202/51/L0 %o94yD
¥9°206 oLe “"uawAed aseyn - 0gLs $89) 29 JueyoIaW yosjuswied 2202/¥ 1120 399y
¥5'S06 122 uswihed eseyd - 0zZLg S8} 00 JuByDJOW yosjuswied 220z/EL/20 %99YyD
£8'206 6L¢C ""uawAhed esey) - 0zZ1LS $989) 00 JueyOISW yosjuswied 2202/ELi10 3o9yD
¥9'006 00'59 doueuSUIBl - Z+S9 1sad uapzaug 143 2202/21/L0 piecllie}
v9'6e8 8¢'2 “uswhed asey - 0zZLs $83} 09 jueyosow yosjuswAed zeoz/eL/Lo %98y9d
9z'¢ceg 66'S1LS PNO|D 3DI0AU] - 0P LS $88} JUeydJaW PNOJD 0I0AU| PnojDa210AU| 2eoe/LLIL0 prtilie}
12°21¢€ ¥8'L “uswAhed asey) - 0Z1S $994 00 JueyoJaW yosjuswAed 22oe/LLIL0 %28YyD
eV'SLE 00°0¥ "N g ‘dey “dib3g - pzge sJledau Jayndwod sieIndwon 299 e 143 2202/01/L0 %oayD
ev'6le 00002 a)isqeM - 0219 sujwesans 4sogay Alyiuow  UiQ / woo suljwesglen 143 2202/80/L0 3oayD
£¥'S. 612 "“uswhed aseyd - 0Z1LS S99} 00 jueydseW yosjuswAhey 2202/80/20 blel-Tl g}
92 92’2 “uswAhed eseyd - 0ZLS S99} 00 Jueyosaw yosjuaswAed 2202/L0/20 %o8yo
8c'0. 181 "uswAhed eseyD - 0zZ1LS $99) 20 JueyoJaW yosjuawAed 2202/L0/10 %o8YyD
1589 8c /L "uswAhed aseyy - 0Z1LS $89} 00 Jueydow yosjuswAed 2202/90/L0 pcilie]
€L1LS G162 dng BunesadQ - 0559 "'sAg ssauisng soluosen 2202/90/10 %o8yd
86°GZ 00'GlL Xawy - 0115 Xowy osig ssaidx3 ueouswy 2202/50/20 %9340
8601 le'2 "uswAed aseyd - 0Z1LS S99} 99 JueyoJoLw yosjuawied 2202/50/10 3}99yD
19'¢ 29'¢ “uswhed asey) - 0gLs $39} 00 jueyosow yosjuawAed 2202/10/L0 pcllie]
:_E_u< / _N._wcwmv
aouejegq unowy JunooaYy JTVETTT] aweN wnp ajeq adAy
zzoz Ainp
SJUNO2IY/M pund Aq syo9y9 ZZ/€0/80

PUysIq sedlnes A)

W09 yoeag epAy



Z 9bey

20°52€°101

10°'SZE'LO0L V1oL

Z2'089'S9  Z2'0S9'G9 Iolep [e10 |
Z2059's9  S6'29v'ZL IGIEM BIEIS - G089 "4 Jo Jusuneal | oe g O POXIJ YMOD SHOM AIANd AIUNGD O 9/2€  ZZ02/82/0  M0OuD
ITIBL'ES  08'/8Z'lY 1SIEM SIEIS - G089 AU GOM 8 DJOOTIS 2202 Jaung WBnoiQ SYIOM AINd AUN0D OIS 9726 2202/92/20  oouD
IV'668'S  9V'29l'¥ 25do7 - 2089 D POOI £2-220C 1894 [E9SI] Jolep Zod0] SWIOM JIGNd AUNOD 0TS 9428 2202/92/20 %00YD
LOZELY 90222 selliN - 0659 ‘PY Buipue 8Ae) 2147} I389d 143 2202/92/.0  %o8yD
66606 5681 dng Bunesado - 0559 sallddng BunelsdQ Zz/0€/9 08£9Z 1 100V 3lempieH 8dy sIBUIN  042€  2202/61/L0 3o9yn
00522 00622 “* 10qeT PRAUOD - 7059 woishg Jolem  sojeiossy P uuewsBeH 89z ZZ0Z/6L/L0  %o9UD

J91eMm

LL'8L8'0L 11’9180l Aiejues ejo)
LL'8L8'0L  9g'Leh'E sallN - 0659 dwnd ‘g uely ueg % pig 389d 143 2202/92/.0  o8yD
SZT9EE'.L  OLISL samlN - 0659 Z2-8S2ZEPBEEY #1098 UOHEIS ) 390d 143 2202/92/.0  o8uD
SLG8L'. 688 1l / suoydeje] - 6869 JOUIBU| G880 X # Jo0e 191V 143 220Z/6L/20  o9yd
0£'9ZL'.  06'158'E s1s8 qeT - 0pSo ZZ/V/L L€8S HUSWSlelS  OnAleuy JSEOD SUORQY  GJZE  ZZ0Z/6LIL0 08U
oF'viZ'€ 0022 B J0EJoUSD - 08G9 UONEIS Y -I0jeloudn BUNSSL phEOY AUl | ‘OSNOYIBMOd SINTUBS  $iZE  ZZ0T/6LIL0  OOUD
OV6r0'c  00'5ZZ “lejy JojeJsuas) - 0gG9 dLMM — Jojessuag bunse | ey69p AUl "} ‘@SnouIOMOd SINTUBS  $/28  ZZ0Z/BLIL0  S109UD
or'ves’z 6091 ~~dng BugesadQ - 0GG9 Z2ISL/9 SYEVLO# AUl 00BN VSN €228 2202/6L/20  doeyo
9v'€99°Z  000L6 T HEN dLMM 95628 19 YOG L4108 L L8| ZZ/4// UBWRIR)S OT1'BUBOID  L/ZE 2202/6L/0  %o94H
OV'€S.L  00°S65°L . J0qeT10eu0D - 069 " AIBJUBS 061 | “AUI Z20Z ‘UIOE - WIGL BUNP  SSjeIoosSY B uueweBRH  89ZE  ZZ0Z/6L/0  09uH
ov'8s | 05'€Z Ul euoydelel - G859 0Z/L-PEZ S08 19198} Z81916Z.2L8T # 1008 121V 143 2202/5L/20  oeyd
96l 96'7E 1 SOHINN - 0659 JAISAWNG PA Z LSEVOLE-0ZLY JOqWINN Oy AlejueS AUNoD YOS 143 2Z02/20/20 09U

Aeyueg

8€'9L6 8£'916 . sybi |eyo .
86016 11JSE - 0659 1-90969296.6 #109€ SIyBI7 1S Ju0i4 399d 143 2202/92/20  o8yD
12695 62 STy - 0659 €-/869.60690 # 10%€ S)yBI uMo | 399d 143 2202/L0/0  o8yH
86'GL 86°GL1 - 0659 0-Z9ESS1.Z66S # 109€ SIYBI Auojon I399d 143 2Z02/10/20 v_mm;o

siybI

9SOP6'SZ  9E'OV6'EZ UIWPY / [eJBuas) [ejo]
0e'0V6'€T  Shzh "3 Pd 0D SHId - 9625 CTIVEIL-9LIL SN ajey seeoidwI oNand 143 Z20Z/62/0  o8uD
16°268'€Z  9L'10E Auiger] syad - 0sze CZILE/L-9LIL sy ey seefoldwiI oNand 143 ZZ0Z/62/L0 08YD
G/'965'€Z  09'8¢ "} Pd 00 SH3d - 952 ZZISLIL- LILUsWy  apey seehoidwig onand 143 ZZ0Z/6Z/Z0  0SUD
S1'8G8'€Z  9Z'€.Z Auigen sy3ad - 0szz ZT/SVIL- LILSY  apey seekoldwiI oNand 143 ZZ0Z/6Z/L0  oeuD
69'Y8Z'CZ 2168 "'} Pd 0 S¥3d - 9625 ZZ/OE/9 - OL/9 sy aey sesfojdw onand 143 ZZ0Z/6T/L0  PRYD

ooueleg  junowy = junoooy  owew R . euwmepN wnN  ejeq  edAj

zezoz Ainp

SHUNO32Y/M pund Aq syoayo Z2I£0/80

1PUISIg S99IAIBS AUnWWOY) Yoeag B|IAY



| abey

692.6'2- 000 "'wald oyioed - 0101 L 19YI0 22Z02/L1L/20 wsodeq
69°clS'e- L6°6E ualdd oyioed - 0101 douelsissy ajey 220g/LL/.0 ¥sodeQ
097219'¢- 6g'Lee- “lasdd ouyloed - 0101 o9y lues gzoz/LL/Z0 Wsodaq
L0°L8Ee- 000 Twisld oljioed - 0L0L ZJ9UYl0 Zeoz/0L/20 usodeq
L0°L8e e 000 wald o|yioed - 010} L JI8YlO 2Z0z/0L/20 usodag
10°L8E'2- 000 “wald o|yioed - 0L0L doue)sissy ajey 2zZ0Z/0L/L0 Wsodeq
L0'L8e Z- 60°29L- uidld oyioed - 0101 08y lues Zz0z/0L/L0 Wsodaq
c6'8le'e 000 udadd oided - QLOL ¢ Jd9Yl0 ¢20e/60/20 Nsode(g
Z6'8Le'e 000 Wedd ouyoed - QL0L L J8YI0 2202/60/L0 Usodag
Z6'8lee- 000 lusld dijoed - 0LOL aouelsissy aley Zz02/60/.0 Nsodsq
c6'8Le'e 9.°66- “liald dided - 0L01L 09y lUeS Zz0z/60/.0 WsodaQ
916l 2 L8 L0 ulsld dyded - gLOL Z9Yyl0 ¢20¢/80/20 usodaQ
GEeLLL )L 000 wiald oljioed - 0LO} L IBYIO 2202/80/.0 Msoda(
SELLL )L 0c'le liald oyided - 0LOL souesissy ojey Zz02/80/L0 MsodsQ
SGvGL - 0S° L6t “'Wwald oyoed - 0101 29y IueS zz0z/80/.0 usodsQ
S0'€9Z'L- 000 “'wald olloed - 0104 ZBYl0 2202/.0/L0 wsoda(
S0'c9z’L- 000 “'wiald dioed - 0101 | 18YIO0 ¢202/20/.0 Wsods(
GO'€9Z' - 000 'weld Jyloed - 0101 douElsIsSsy a)ey Z20¢/.0/L0 VsodaQ
G0'€9C)- g8'6l8- T'wiald ayoed - 0101 o9y lues 2z0z/L0/.0 wsodaQg
0c Lyb- 000 'wiald oiioed - 0101 Z48YlO 2202/90/.0 usodaQg
0¢ Ly~ 000 uiadd oyioed - 0101 }l 18Ul0 220¢/90/.0 UsodeQ
0C L~ 06°L TUuaald olided - 0LOL oue)sissy aley  Zz02/90/L0 WsodaQ
oL 6t oL '6v- ldRld oloed - 0L0|L o9y lues  Zz0z/90/.0 MsodaQ

Aiejlueg

0e'0l¢e- 0oe'0.l¢e- syybi (ejo)
0g0.¢€- ov6lLe- “lald dljloed - 0LOL 60" s|bI ‘gz Jeyep ‘0L - uan) - L #ddINI - 3A 22/42 A4 401 2202/12/.0 usodeq
06°0S1- 06°0G1L- wiald oyioed - 0L0L U SybI ‘Ggr Jelep ‘0L T ueD) - | # HdWI - IN UVIN 22 Ad 401 2202/SL/20 :wmnmn_

SIYbIT

Leeve's- Leeve's- ulwpy / [esauss) jejo)
LeEve's- 98'86- “"wald oyioed - 0LOL wniey ¢z0z/22/.0 WsodeQ
Sev8lL'c- ¥9°'L20°¢- "Wisld oljided - QLOL GO" siybi ‘Gz Jerep ‘0L - Us9 - | #ddNI - A 22/LZ A4 401 Z20¢/12/.0 usodaq
(A4 LLZLLE- wald oyioed - 0L0L T SYBIM ‘SZT JeleAA ‘0 T ULS) - | # MdIN| - AN UVIN 22 Ad 401 2202/SL/L0 usodeQ

uluipy jelsuac)

aouejeg junowy ydg ajeq adA)

zzoz Ainp

pung Aq sysodaq 2z/eo/80

Pulsiq sedlaleg Ay

uwo) yoeag e[y



Z 9abed

€2'8v0'CL- 6Stv “wisid dyioed - 0L0L Souelsissy 8jey Z20eg/6L/.0 NsodeQ
2e'es0eL- 0S'69¢'2- 'wsid ooed - 01L0L 09y lueg  2202/61/L0 MsodaQ
28'€89'69- 86'vEC- lald duyioed - 0104 ¢I3Yl0 2202/8l/L0 Wsodeq
v8'8v'69- 000 “lwiald diioed - 0101 L BYIO 2202/81/20 MsodeQ
¥8'8vv'69- 12°86 “Twald oyoed - 0101 S0uE)SIsSsY 8ley ¢zZ0¢/81L/.0 lNsodeq
L' LPS'69- 1028z 9L- TTwald oyioed - 010} 8y lueg gg0e/gl/L0 ¥sodeg
01°692'¢eS- 000 wiald ayioed - 0101 ¢ I8Yl0 220e/LL/L0 usodeq
01°692'eG- 000 “Twisld dyioed - 0101 L8O 220z/LL/L0 usodaq
01°'69Z'eS- 000 Twsld dlloed - 0101 |duelsissy 8jey Z¢0eg/L1/.0 YsodeQ
01'692'¢cS- 886t~ TTweld oyioed - 0104 o8y lueg  ge0e/LL/L0 wsodeQg
gesie'es- 000 “rwield oyloed - 0101 ZJ9Yl0 2202/91/L0 MWsoda(
zeseLees- 000 “wald oyloed - 0LOL |l JI8YIO 2202/9L/L0 wsodeQ
zesie'es- 8C'L “Uwisid dyioed - 010t souejsissy ajey  2Z0z/91/.0 usodaQ
05°¢ze'es- ccellL- “'wisid oyioed - 0101 o8y lueg  220¢/9L/L0 ¥sodeq
82601 ‘€S- L0°0- “'wiald oyoed - 0L0L ZJ9Yl0 ZzZoe/SL/L0 ¥sodeq
12601'€q- 000 “wiLld diioed - 0101 L JBYI0 220z/S1/L0 Wsodaq
12604 '¢cG- 000 Twiald dyioed - 0101 dduelsissy o)y ¢¢0e/SL/20 wsodeQ
L2'60L°¢cG- g9°0¢€¢- “'wald oioed - 0L0L 08y lueS  ¢z02/SL/L0 NsodeQ
29'8./8'CG- 0v'608'9¢- wield ouyioed - 0101 SISBM - JIN UVIN 22 Ad 401 Z202/GL/20 ¥sodaq
22'690'0L- 000 “Twiald diided - 0101 Z2J8Ul0 Zeoe/vL/L0 wsodeq
2Z'690'9|- 000 “wald oyioed - 0L0L L IBUYIO 220Z/vL/L0 Ysodeq
22'690'91- 000 “Tliald oyloed - 010} Soue)sissy 8led  ¢z0e/rL/L0 Nsodeq
22’6900} - ¥e'€9- “rwiald oyioed - 0101 o8y lueg  gz0oeg/L/L0 usodeg
88°500'04- 9¢'009 "widid Oed - 0101 T swoossey yled Ayunwwo) zz/L L/ Aisieledss paxoog HOY  2Z0Z/SL/L0 JyisodaQ
¥1°909'0}L- 6t°6v9 'ludid oyoed - QLOL " swoossay Yied Aunwwo) zz/L L2 Aeieledas paxoog HOVY  ZzZ0Z/SL/L0 IisodeQ
€9'68C'LL- 68'v.- “rwisid oyioed - L0} ZJI8UlI0 220e/eL/L0 Wsodeq
v208L°LL- 000 Twsld dioed - 0104 L 8YO0 Zeoz/eL/L0 ¥sodeq
vl 08L°LL- 29'Ge “Tuald oyloed - 0101 dduejsissy 8jey  ¢z0z/cL/L0 WsodeQ
9e9gLe’LL- v0'6EL Y- TTwiald dyioed - 0L0L 09y lueg  2coe/eL/L0 Wsoda(
A VA AL 8G'¢c- “'wsid oyioed - 0LOL ¢ JBYi0 2z0e/Z)L/L0 usode(
1782144 % 000 “Twiald oyioed - 0101 L 18410 220z/zi/L0 WsodeQ
YL vevel- 04'0v “'uwiaid outoed - 0L0L S0uE)sISsy 88y  Z2202/21/.0 WsodeQ
yr'G6v'CL- 00'€.9'g- T'wald ouioed - 0L0| O3y lues  2z0e/eL/L0 Nsods(Qg
vv'zzg'e- 92'009- “rwisld ouioed - 0101 €2Ye/9 - 119 swoolsay sued Ayunwwo) zzoz/LL/L0 Nsodsq
gLece'e- 6v°6¥9- wsld djioed - 0LOL 2e/1E/S - LTy swoodisay Yied Ayunwwo) gzoz/LL/L0 Nsodaq
69'2.G'C- 000 “'wsid oijioed - 0101 ¢JIBUl0 ¢220Z/LL/L0 Wsodeg
aoueeg junowy yds OWwdN ajeq adA)
zzoz Ainp
pung Aq sjisodaq 22/€0/80

PUYSIg S8dIAIeg AlUnWwwo) yoreg BlIAY



¢ abed

AN N AAS LG°'Sve- Tusld dyioed - 01014 o9y lueg  zgoeg/Le/L0 YsodeQ
G0°925°¢e- 000 rwsid oyloed - 0101 ZJ8YlO 2z02/0e/L0 usodeq
S0'925°C8- 000 “rwsld oyioed - 0101 L 18Y10 ZZ02/0€/L0 ¥sodeQ
G0'9zs‘ce- 000 usld oiloed - 0101 soue)sissy 8led ¢z0z/0€/.0 Nsodeq
S0'92528- 2ovLl- wieid oyioed - 0L0L d9Yy ueg  gz0z/0€/L0 WsodaQ
ev'Lor'ee- 000 TTwield diioed - 0L0L 243410 2z02/62/L0 WsodeQg
evLSy'ze- 00°0 Truuald dyioed - 0LOL L YO 2Z0zZ/62/.0 MsodeQ
199 AR ey o 000 “wiald oyioed - 0L0OL doue)sissy aley Zz0z/62/.0 Nsode(Q
ev LGy 2e- 18'Log- wald oyloed - 0101 99y lueg  2z0z/62/L0 WsodeQ
29'6v1'28- 00°0 rlsld oduloed - 0L0L ZI9Yl0 ZzZ02/82/L0 Wsode(
2oevlL'ee- 000 “Twiald diioed - 0L01L L 19Y0 220z/8z/L0 Nsodag
296t 28" 26'e “Twisdd oljioed - 0LOL souelsissy ejey Z¢0z/8¢/.0 MNsodeQ
PSeGL'ze- VASHA T ArA rwisld ouloed - 0L0L 08 lueg 2z0¢/8¢/L0 Ysodag
26°016'6.- 000 wisld ouided - 0L0L Z48Yi0 2202/L2/L0 NsodaQ
16°016°6.- 6982 rwield oiioed - 0L01L L Y0 2202/L2/L0 usodeQ
99'6£6'6.- 000 “rwisld oyioed - 0101 souelsissy ejey Zz0¢/L2/L0 Wsodag
99°'6£6'6.- 19°¢e- “rusld oyloed - 0101 09y lueS Z20z/L2/.0 NsodeQ
60°L16'6.- qlL'ese- wLld oyioed - L0} Z49Yl0 2z02/92/.0 WsodsQ
¥6°'€99°'6.L- 000 “rwisld ouioed - 0L0) L 8YI0 Z202/92/L0 ¥sodaQ
¥6'€99'6.- 000 Truisdd oyioed - 0L0L Soue)sissy 8ley ¢z0¢/9z/.0 Wsodeq
¥6'€99'6.- 28'08z'L- TTwRld Jiioed - 0L0L 09y lues  2z0z/9z/L0 usodeQ
clL'ege'el- 000 wald dyided - 0101 ZIB3YI0 ZZ02/Se2/L0 WsodeQ
2lL'€8¢e'gs- 000 wald opided - 0101 L J8YI0 2z0e/Sz/L0 Msodeq
zL'ege'8l- 000 Twald dyloed - 0101 douelsissY 8jey  220z/Se/L0 ¥Hsodeq
zLege’gl- 9G'60¢- “Twisld oljioed - 0L0L 09y lueg  2z0z/Sz/L0 Wsodeq
9G'€lL 8L~ 000 rwiald oioed - 0L0L Z49Yl0 2z0z/ke/L0 WsodeQ
9G'€/1'Ql- 000 Twiald oyloed - 0L0L L J18y0 220z/Lz/L0 wsodeQg
9g°e€L1'8.- 2901 wisld dylded - 0101 dduesIssy 9jey  ZzZ0¢/L¢/L0 Nsoda(
0€'08¢'8.- v1°186- Trwsld olloed - 0L0L 09y lueg Zz0z/Lz/L0 NsodaQ
91°'669°LL- 0L YLIY'y- “Twisid oyioed - 0LOL S)1SBM - JA 22/1C A4 401 2202/12/.0 MNsodag
ov'vee'el- ¥0°'8S1 “wisld didoed - 0LOL ¢ J84l0 Zz02/02/L0 ¥sodeQ
0S°ehr'es- 000 Twiaid oyioed - 0104 L I8Y10 2202/02/L0 usodaQ
0Scri'el- 000 Trusld ayloed - 0L01 sduejsIssy eley g20z/02/.0 ¥sodaQ
0§¢r'el- €0've6- rweid oyloed - L0} 99y lues  gz0z/0z/L0 NsodeQ
L¥°'805°2L- v.'6S1- TTwiRid oyioed - 0L0L ZJ48YlI0 ZzZ0zZ/61/L0 WsodeQ
€L'8¥0'CL- 000 “rwisld diidoed - 0L0L L JIoY0 220z/6L/L0 WsodaQ
aouejeq junowry yds owa ajeq adA)
zeoz Aine
pung Aq sysodag 22ie0/80

Jo181q sedines A)

Uwoy yoeag eIy



¢ abed

z2s'eLo'e 000 “Wwsld oyioed - L0t ¢ J94i0o 2coe/LL/l0 usodeQ
cseloe 000 “Tweld dylded - 0L0L LJ8YlO 220Z/1L/L0 usodeQg
2scLo'e- v0'8t “rwiald oyoed - 0L0L S0uESIsSSY 8jey  ¢zZ0Z/11/.0 WsodaQ
9G6°190°¢c- 80°99¢- “wisld dyioed - 0101 09y 81BN 2202/1L1/L0 Wsodeq
87'G69°C- 000 Tweld oyoed - 0104 4940 ¢coc/oL/L0 wsodsQg
8Y'G69°C- 000 rwald diyioed - 0101 } 8410 2202/0L/L0 ¥Wsodeqg
8v°G69°2- 000 “wsld diyioed - 0LOL sduejsissy 8ley  2Z0zZ/0L/.0 ¥sodeq
81'569'C- 16°'L¢2¢- “wiaid dyloed - 010} o3y Jelep  2202/0L/20 usode(Qg
LG L9p'C- 000 TTwiBld dijided - QLO| 24940 2202/60/.0 ¥sodeQg
LG L9 e- 000 Truald oyioed - 0101 L IBYIO 2202/60/.0 ¥sodeQ
LG L9 e- 000 “Twisid oyioed - 0104 dduejsIssy 8jey  ¢202/60/.0 NsodeQ
LG Lov'e- 90°0¢C1L- Twsld dyided - 0L0) 08y 191BM  220¢/60/.0 Msodaq
Shive'e- 000 “wisld oyioed - 0101 ZJI8Ul0 2202/80/L0 ¥sodeq
Sy Lve‘e- 000 “rwiald oyioed - 0101 | JI9YIO 2202/80/L0 ¥sodeQ
Sy ive'e- Y AVA 4 “wisid oyioed - 0101 SJUuElSISSY 81y £20¢/80/.0 MsodeQ
89'v6E'C- 8¥'€G.- “'wiald diioed - 0101 09y J9lepM  2202/80/.0 MNsodeQ
0C'L¥9'L- 000 Tuiaid oiyioed - 0LOL ¢IBYI0 220¢/L0/L0 wsodeQ
0C'L¥9'L- 000 “wislid dyioed - 0LO| | 1BYO 2202/L0/.0 wsodsg
0z Ly9'L- 000 Twiald dyioed - 0401 S0uEjsissy 8jey  £20¢/.0/.0 ¥sodeQ
0C LP9'L- Z6°LS0'L- “Tlisid olloed - 0LOL 9y 18leM  2202/,0/20 ¥Nsodeq
82684~ 000 “Twiald diioed - 0104 ¢184Yi0 2202/90/.0 ¥sodeg
82°689- 000 wald dyloed - 0101 L JI8YI0 2202/90/.0 ¥sodeg
82°684- 89°6 “rwald dijioed - 0101 sdue)sissy 8jey  ¢20¢/90/.0 YsodeQ
98'86G- 98'865- Twald oiyioed - 0101 08y 19leM  2202/90/.0 ¥sodeq

191

08'v8.L L- 08'¥8.L°L- 9)SBM PIOS [Bl10 )
08'¥8.L°L- 08'¥8.°'}L- “Twisid oyided - 0101 MS 894 8siyduel suoyosuuo) s)sep  Zz0z/9z/L0 Hsodag

9)SEM pijoS

8v'v8l 'v8- 8y v81 v8- feyueg |ejo|
8y '8l 'v8- 98CLy'L- Twisld dyioed - 0101 SO0 rav IONVIVE €4'628'2 $  2202/1/.0 Wsodaq
29'1LL'C8- 000 “wiaid dyioed - 0101 Z¢J8Yl0 ¢2zoz/Le/l0 usodeq
ARV A4S 000 “wislid dljioed - 0101 L I8Y1O 2202/Le/L0 ¥Nsodeg
co1LLL28- 000 “ruald oyioed - 0101 SOUE}SISSY 8jey Z20¢/L€//0 Msodeq

aouejeg Junowy yidg OWId\ ajeq adA|

zeoz Ainp

pund Aq sjisodaq 22/€0/80

PUIsIq sed1AIeS Ajlunwwio) yoeag elIAy



G abey

08'698'QL- 000 Tweld oyoed - 0101 L 1BYO 220Z/L1/L0 ¥sodeQg
08'698°81- 000 Tlweld oyioed - 0104 sduelsissy @ley 2202/.1/20 Wsodeq
08'698'8l- €0°09- “'wisid dhloed - 0101 09y JojeM  220z/LL/L0 WsodeQ
L1'608'8L- 000 “wsld oiioed - 0101 ZJ48Yl0 2z0z/91/L0 ¥sodeQ
11°608'QL- 000 Twaid oyioed - 0101 L 18Y0 220z/9L/.0 wsoda(
L1'608'8l- 0c'LL TTwsld oyloed - 0L0L aouelsissy aley ¢202/91/20 WsodeQg
16°028'QL- LL'vel- Twiald dljioed - 0LOL 09y J191eM  Z220Z/9L/L0 MsodeQ
98°969'81L- 000 “lwald oyioed - 0LOL Z1eYy0 2z0z/s1/20 Msode(q
98'969'8|- 000 “wiaad oyloed - QL0 L J8UI0 Z20z/S1/L0 Wsodeq
98'969'Q1- 000 “wiaid ouyloed - 0101 AVuelsIssy 8jey  220¢/GL/L0 Wsodeq
98'969'Q1- co'eee- Tlweld dyidoed - 0LOL 08y 18lepA  2202/SL/L0 Vsodeg
P8 vor'gL- 12047 'wiald oyioed - 0LOL T SYBIT 'GZT JOYeM ‘0L T USD) - | # HdWI - IN HYIN 22 A4 401 220z/51/.0 Wsode(
0E0LL LL- 000 TTwRld oiioed - 0LOL ¢J1dYl0 2zoe/vL/L0 wsodeQ
0S0LL LL- 00°0 'waid oyioed - 0101 L I8YO 220Z/v1/L0 Wsodeq
0€0LL LL- 000 “'wisld oioed - 0L0L sduelsissy 8jey  ¢z0g/vL/L0 lNsodeq
0E0LL LL- 80'¥9- Twsld oiided - 0L0L 09y 19jep  220z/vL/L0 ysodeq
T LL- 06'62Y 'wisid oyloed - 0L0L " swoonsay yied Ayunwiwod zz/L L/L Alsjeredss paxoog HOV ¢coe/eL/L0 wsodeq
Z1'920'81- 8E'Er6 wisid oyoed - 010k /9 - 1/9 uonebi| Jeans Juold Zz/L L/L Ajeleledes pe)oog HOY  ZZ0Z/SL/L0 IsodaqQ
05'6L0'61- 89°€66°1L _Wiald ooed - L0V "/be/9 - L/9 uonebiu| uenr ueg zz/L L/, Ajsjeledss pexoog HOY  2Z0Z/SL/L0 Nsodeq
8L'EL0'Le- L1679y lwidld oyided - 0L0L " swoolisay Yed Alunwiwo) zzg/1 1/2 Alsiesedes pa)oog HOV 2202/c4/.0 MWsodeQg
60'84¥°L2- 80°090°L "wid oyioed - 0LOL "G - L2/ uonebiu 921G yuold Zz/L /. Ajejeledss peyoog HOY  2Z0Z/SL/L0 usode(
21'8€5°¢e- L1°2ee'e TWRld olided - 0LOL  TTE/S - L2/ uonebuu) uenr ues gz/1L/2 Alojesedes pa)oog HOVY 2z0z/cL/L0 NsodeQ
82°0.8've- 000 “'wald oiioed - 0101 ZJdYIo 2z0oz/eL/L0 usodag
82°0.8'vC- 000 “Twiald oiided - 0101 L BYO Z2oz/clL/L0 usodeqg
82°048've- LL'Y9 wald oyioed - 0101 souejsissy ajey ¢coz/eL/L0 NsodeQ
S0'GE6've- P v8.L L L- “'wisid dyioed - 0101 09y 1ol 220eg/el/L0 ysodeg
L9°0SLEL- 000 “'usld oyided - 0101 ZJIBYI0 2zoe/elL/L0 usodeg
L90SL'elL- 000 “'wiald dyloed - 0LOL | 18Y10 2202/21/L0 WsodeQ
L9'0SL'elL- L2'6E “Twsld oyioed - QLOL soue)sissy sjley ¢z0¢/zL/L0 WisodeQ
88'68L'clL- 0€°2G6°C- “wisld olioed - 010} 09y J9leM  2202/2L/L0 usodeq
8G°2€2'01- 06'6Ct- Twald oyloed - 0101 Z2/vZ/9 - 119 Swoodsay Yied Apunwwod zzog/LL/L0 Hsodeq
89°208°6- 86 “'wald oyloed - 0101 2cive/9 - L/9 uonebul] 1eang Juol4  Zzoz/LL/L0 Wsodeq
0€¥98°'8- 89°€66°L- “rweld oyloed - 0104 2eIve/9 - L/9 uoneblu) uenr ues  Zzogz/LL/L0 sodeq
29'0.8'0- L6'¥9t- rwild oyioed - 010} C2/LEIS - LTy swoolsay ied Aunwwo)d zzoz/LL/L0 Nsodeq
LL'G0b'9- 80°090°L- “Twald ouioed - 0101 22/LE/S - L2/y uoneblu| Jeeng W04 ZZ0Z/LL/L0 Hsodeq
€9'6ve's- Lrzee'e- “Twisld oiioed - 0101 22/\€/S - L2/y uoneblu) uenp ues  zzoz/LL/L0 Hsodeq
aouejeg Jjunowy nds OWId ajeq adA)
zzoz Aine
pung Aq syisodag 2z/e0/80

oU)SIQ sadlaleg Ay

W0 yoeag elIAy



g abed

66'GGL ‘8 000 “wsid dlloed - 0101 SouelsIssy 8jey zg0e/6z//0 Msodeq
66°GS1 ‘8- §8'/l¢c¢- Twsld dijioed - 0104 03y 19BM  220¢/62/L0 ¥sode(q
vL'81Le Lp- 000 “wiald oyloed - 0101 ¢ I84l0 ¢202/82/L0 ¥Wsodeg
v 818 Ly- 000 “'wiald dyloed - 010t L JIBYIO 2202/82/L0 usodeg
14X Via ¢l'6l “'wiaid dljioed - 0L0L uelsissy 8jey  220z/8¢/.0 sode(
98'2€8"Lp- 2y 06l'c- “'lwiald duioed - 0L0L o9y I8leM  220¢/82/20 wsodeQ
vy Ly9'Gh- 000 usid alided - 0101 ¢JIdYI0 2202/.2/L0 MNsode(
v Ly9'ap- 000 “Tlald ayioed - 0101 L BYIO 2202//2/L0 ¥sodeg
Yy Ly9'Sh- 000 “Twald oyided - 010l soue)sissy ejey ¢20¢/.z/.0 Nsodeq
Yy Ly9'Sy- €616 Twald oyioed - 0101 99y 9l Z202/Le/L0 YsodsQg
LG'G6G G- 000 rweld duoed - 0101 CI84YlO 2202/92/L0 Wsodsg
LG'GBS ‘G- 000 Twiald dyioed - 010l l I8YO 2202/92/L0 wusodaQ
16665 'St~ 000 “Twiald dyioed - 0LOL BduElsSIssY 8jey  Z202/9¢2/.0 NsodsQ
LG°G6G G- clLieg’L- “'wsld oyloed - 0LOL J9Y 1lBM  2202/92/L0 ¥sodeq
6L°€LL'EY- 000 “'wald dyioed - 0101 Z8Y0 2202/52/.0 ¥sodeqg
6L°€LL'EY- 000 “wiald oyloed - 0101 L IBYIO 2202/S2/L0 ¥sodag
6L'€LL'EY- 000 'wisid dyided - 0L0L Sduejsissy e1ey  ZZ0¢/52//0 Ysodag
6L'€LL'EY- 99'G6.¢- 'wisid duioed - 0L0L O3y 1ejeM  2202/52/L0 ¥sodeq
€1'86€'cY- 000 “'wald oijioed - 0LOL ¢J4YlO 2Zzoe/ie/L0 ysode(
£1°86€'eY- 000 wald oloed - 0LOL |l YO 2202/1e/L0 ysodeq
€l'g6e'eh- G280l Trweld dyided - L0l souejsissy sley 220z/1e/L0 NsodsQ
88'905°ey- T YA TTwield dyioed - 0104 o8y J8eM\  2202/12/L0 ¥sodeq
€9'680'eh- L0°L60°L- Trwisid oyloed - 0101 GO SWIBIT 'GZ" J9)_M ‘0L “ USD - | # MdWNI - TA 22/1T Ad 401 220Z/1e/L0 WsodsQg
29'886°Lv- 000 “'wsld oyloed - 0L0L ¢ Id9UYl0 2202/02/L0 usodeQg
29'886 L~ 000 Truwsid oyloed - 0101 L 1®Yl0 Z20z/02/L0 ¥sodeq
29'886'Lv- 000 Twiald oiy1oed - 0101 0uejsissy 8jey  2202/02/.0 Wsoda(
29'886'Ly- ¥9'€98°L- “'wisid oioed - 0101 08y J9leM  2202/02/L0 MWsodaQ
86vZL 0p- 000 wsid oiioed - 0101 Yo 2zoe/eL/L0 ksodaq
86'vZl '0p- 000 “Twiald oyloed - 0101 L JIBYIO 220Z/61/L0 MNsodaQ
86'vClL Op- 6£01 Trwald oyloed - 0101 SduejsIssy sjey 2c0e/61/.0 YsodeQ
LE°SELOp- rv'eee'e- “'wald dyoed - 0101 O9Y J8)eM  2202/61/.0 ¥sodeQ
€6°1L02'9¢- 000 “TuRid oljioed - 0101 ¢I84YlI0 2202/8L/L0 Wsodeg
€6°1L02'9¢- 000 “Twald dyloed - 0101 L I8YlO 2202/81L/L0 ¥sodeQ
€6°102'9¢- €L 0v1 “Twsid oyloed - 0LOL sduelsissy a)ey ¢¢0e/81/L0 Wsoda(
99°¢re oe- 98'CLY LL- Truwsid odyioed - 0104 29y I9eM  2202/81/L0 MNsodeQ
08'698'8}- 000 TTuladd dyioed - 0LOL CIBYIO 2202/LLIL0 Vsodag
aouejeq Junowy yds oway ayeq adA)
zzoz Aine
pund Aq sjisodaq 22/g0/80

PUISIQ sediAIag Ajunwwo) yorag ejiIny



. abey

€6'LLY LYL-

€6 LIV LYL- Vi0L
v1'628'6h- v1'628'60- 91BN [B10)
v1'628'6b- 18T~ Uweld oyoed - 0101 SO0 rAV IONVIVE €2'628'2 $  2202Z/1€/20 Wsodeg
LZoLY'sp- 000 “"Waid yed - 0L0} ZJ19WO 2202/18/20 Wsodeq
1Z9Li'ep- 000 “"Wwald oyed - 010} L J8Yl0  Z2202/1€/L0 ¥sodsQ
LZoLy'gp- 000 “'Waid oyed - 0L0} soue)sIssy 218y  2z0g/Le/L0 Nsodeg
LZOLy'Sy- 26°'ri)- “wald ayed - 0L0L 00y J9lBM  220Z/1E/.0 Ysodaq
GE'1LL2'8p- 00°0 “"wiald ook - L0} ZJ1oUl0 Z202/08/L0 ¥sodaQ
Ge'1LL2'eh- 00°0 “"wiald oyIoed - 0L0L L IBY0  2202/0€/20 Wsodeq
Se'LL2'8h- 000 “"wiald oIoed - L0} souelsIsSY aley  2Z02Z/0€/.0 Nsodeq
AT 08'GL1- “"Wald oyoed - 010} o0y JelBM  2Z02/0€/L0 ¥sodeq
66'SSL 'gh- 000 “"wald ouoed - L0} ZJIOYO 2202/62/.0 Wsodeq
66'SSL 'SH- 00°0 “"wiald ooy - 010} | JoUl0  2202/6Z/L0 ¥sodeq
aouejeg ~ junowy = pds  owep  eaegq  edAL
zzoz AInp
pung Aq sysodag 2z/e0/80

PIsIq S8dIAIRS AY  W0) yoeag ejIAY



°e'88L LTI SOWRl THLTI $USED  “* Fum{ooy)) Jorwsid oyioed - 0101 TTOT/TI/LO

06'099 00°00€ TedTemET Yse) 00g § T Bunjoay) oMualg dgIoed - 0101 TT0T/T1/LO
06'09¢ 00°09 " PHEQ 09 $ YSED Pd T FuppooyD Ionwsig ogioed - 010] <T0T/12/90
06'00¢ 05°81 Wl 0F°T6 $ USBD Pd " Suppay) Jatwnid SYe - 0101 TT0T/91/90
0¥°C8¢ 0¥°26 owef USED P 0¥'T6 § T Subpoy) siweld ogoed - 9[0] TT0T/L0/90
00°061 007081 TRAYSED 09§+ 0TI § " BuooyD) Jopwar] oyIoed - 010 TC0T/TL/S0
00°01 854001 3unyoay)) serma1d oyoed - O10] TT0T/01/£0
8S¥10°1 16601 X TWer [6°601 $YSED Pd T SuDRYD) JatudIg ogIoey - 0101 220T/80/£0
RduEEyg nsodaq D Jmwieg OWIdA JUNo%Y heyg Jaquiny aeq

Jou/saquunN ‘adA ‘aje( :Aq papog
TTOT/£0/80 Y3no1y TZ0Z/80/€0 Woig
Yse) Dwolsn)) - ¢ 1sidoy
Wd TT:€ Z20Z/¢/8 1OLSI(J SAVTAIRG AJUNTUWOY) Yorag BIAY



FLUID RESOURCE MANAGEMENT Statement
2385 Precision Drive

Arroyo Grande, CA 93420 Date

www.frm-ops.com CA Lic #937346
OPERATIONS . MAINTENANCE . MECHANICAL 8/2/22
Phone# 805.597.7100 Fax # 805.597.7171
California Certified Small Business #1120142
To:
Avila Beach Community Services District
P.O. Box 309

100 San Luis Street
Avila Beach, CA 93424

Amount Due Amount Enc.

$58,725.15

Anmount Balance

Transaction

06/30/22
07/31/22

5/31/22
06/30/22

05/31/22
06/30/22

06/13/22
07/22/22

06/20/22

06/16/22

06/16/22

CURRENT

23,823.98

348F11001 Monthly OPS/Maint-
INV #F21979. Orig. Amount $21,306.26.
INV #F22069. Orig. Amount $21,274.94.

348F11001 Monthly OPS/Maint:348FW11001
Water:348AW17001 Add Services water-

INV #A21964. Orig. Amount $1,485.67.

INV #A22042. Orig. Amount $373.02.

348F11001 Monthly OPS/Maint:348FWW11001
Wastewater:348AWW17002 Add Services Wastewater-
INV #A21965. Orig. Amount $2,414.65.

INV #A22020. Orig. Amount $2,336.40.

348TWW21001 Plant Expansion Coordination-
INV #T21915. Orig. Amount $312.50.
INV #T22052. Orig. Amount $2,549.04.

wW21755 FFR Pump #1 Diagnosis-
INV #W21755. Orig. Amount $965.43.

W241775 Callout - Primary Sludge Pit Hig-
INV #W21775. Orig. Amount $1,347.57.

wW21795 Power Fail-
INV #W21795. Orig. Amount $344.99.

w21871 FFR High Level Callout-
1-30 DAYS PAST 31-60 DAYS PAST
DUE DUE

31,000.85 3,900.32

61-90 DAYS PAST

21,306.26
21,274.94

1,485.67
373.02

2,414.65
2,336.40

312.50
2,549.04

965.43

1,347.57

344.99

OVER 90 DAYS
PAST DUE

21,306.26
42,581.20

44,066.87
44,439.89

46,854.54
49,190.94

49,503.44
52,052.48

53,017.91

54,365.48

54,710.47

Amount Due

$58,725.15

Page 1




2385 Precision Drive

FLUID RESOURCE MANAGEMENT Statement

Arroyo Grande, CA 93420

Date

www.frm-ops.com CA Lic #937346
OPERATIONS . MAINTENANCE . MECHANICAL

8/2/22

Phone # 805.597.7100 Fax # 805.597.7171

To:

California Certified Small Business #1120142

Avila Beach Community Services District
P.0O. Box 309

100 San Luis Street

Avila Beach, CA 93424

Amount Due

Amount Enc.

$58,725.15

Date Transaction Amount

06/21/22 |INV #W218741. Orig. Amount $3,276.48. 3,276.48

WwW21890 FFR Pit High Level Alarm-
06/20/22 |INV #W21890. Orig. Amount $738.20. 738.20

61-90 DAYS PAST
DUE

1-30 DAYS PAST
DUE

31-60 DAYS PAST
DUE

CURRENT
PAST DUE

23,823.98 31,000.85 3,900.32

OVER 90 DAYS

Balance

57,986.95

58,725.15

Amount Due

$58,725.15

Page 2



AVILA BEACH

COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT
Post Office Box 309, Avila Beach, CA. 93424

MEMORANDUM

TO: Board of Directors -
FROM: Brad Hagemann, General Manag@
DATE: August 9, 2022

SUBJECT: General Manager/District Engineer Report

Zone 3 Technical Advisory Committee
The Zone 3 Technical Advisory Committee last met on July 13, 2022. I was out of town and not able to

attend the meeting. The agenda the agenda packet for the July 13" meeting is included as an attachment to
the staff report. As of this writing, the Lopez reservoir is at 25.5% of capacity with 12,575 AF in storage.
That is about two years’ worth of water supply if we don’t receive any significant rainfall.

The Zone 3 Advisory Committee has scheduled a Special Meeting on August 11, 2022. The purpose of the
meeting is to seek the Advisory Committee’s endorsement for executing the Amended and Restated Water
Supply Contracts between the County and the Zone 3 Contractors. As the Board will recall, this contract
amendment effort has been on-going for over one year and will allow the Zone Contractors to better manage
their Lopez water entitlements. The agenda packet for the Advisory Committee meeting is provided as an

attachment to this report.

Wastewater Treatment Plant Project Status Report
During the month of July the contractor has focused on installation of the new piping and conduit needed to

connect the MBR unit into the existing treatment plant piping and electrical systems. 1 am attaching a few
photos of some of the work that was completed in July. We have been working with PG&E and the San Luis
Obispo County Public Works Department to coordinate installing the new conduit from the intersection of
San Miguel Street and Avila Beach Drive, under Avila Beach Drive to the WWTP front gate. We also intend
to install an additional conduit under Avila Beach Drive so that we can connect up with Charter/Spectrum
internet service. During the month of August we anticipate completing installation of the underground
piping, valves and electrical conduit. If all goes as scheduled, we are planning on “landing” the equalization
tank and MBR unit on their respective pads in late August or early September. When this occurs, we will
need to bring in a large crane we will have a significant impact to traffic on Avila Beach Drive. We are
coordinating with County Public Works and we will obtain an encroachment permit that will include a
detailed traffic safety plan. We continue to conduct work progress meetings at least every two weeks and
will have them more frequently as we start installing the new piping systems. Please let me if any of the
Directors are interested in visiting the construction site.

Cloacina Open House, Friday August 19th
Cloacina, the MBR unit manufacturer, will be hosting an Open House at their manufacturing facility on

Friday August 19®  The Avila Beach CSD MBR unit will be one of the star exhibits during the Open House,
since it is nearly complete and ready to ship. Cloacina staff have invited me and the Board members to
attend the Open House to receive an up close tour and presentation. Please let me know if any of you would
like to attend and I will coordinate with the Cloacina staff.



ZONE 3
TECHNICAL ADVISORY COMMITTEE
Wednesday July 13, 2022
9:00 - 11:00 am

Agenda

Phone line: +1 (646) 749-3122
Access Code: 617-462-197
OR
Webinar: https://global.gotomeeting.com/join/617462197

1. Announcements All

2. General Operations and Water Report David
e Summary Notes — June
e Monthly Operations Report — June
e Lopez Storage Projections — June

3. Current Reservoir Conditions Kyle (Verbal)
4. Capital Projects Update David
5. Advisory Committee Endorsement David
6. Current Storage Account David
7. Future Agenda items? All

¢ Project Updates
» HCP/instream Studies

e Zone 3 Boundary Change

Attachments:

A. Summary Notes - June

B. Lopez Monthly Operations Report — June
C. Lopez Storage Projections Chart — June
D. Capital Projects Update

Next Meeting Date: August 10, 2022



ZONE 3
TECHNICAL ADVISORY COMMITTEE
WEDNESDAY June 8, 2022 (9:00-11:00 AM)
Via GotoMeeting
SUMMARY NOTES - DRAFT

Attendees via GoTo Meeting: Shane Taylor (Arroyo Grande), Ben Fine (Pismo Beach), Gabriel Munoz-Morris (Grover Beach), Will
Clemens (OCSD), Brad Hagemann (ABCSD), Jim Garing, John Wallace, Vard lkeda, Dan Migliazzo (SMMWC), Dan Heimel, David
Spiegel (PW Dept), Kyle James (PW Dept), Desiree Bravo (PW Dept), Jenny Morgan (PW Dept.)

1. Announcements —
e David Spiegel made an announcement on Jill Ogren’s behalf, which is covered in the “Zone 3

Contract Changes Update” section.

2. General Operations and Water Supply Report -
e No comments on May Summary notes.
e David Spiegel reviewed the Lopez Storage Projections.

o The 10,000 AF trigger point was extended 2-3 weeks due to water conservation. Once
10,000 AF is met, all agencies are subject to a 20% reduction in entitement. There is
potential to hit “deadpool” by the end of year 2023. TAC members are in favor of
reducing water allocations now, to ensure agencies don’t exceed allocations and to
extend the 10,000 AF trigger point as far out as possible. David will make the
recommendation from the TAC to the Advisory Committee at the July 21 meeting.

3. Current Reservoir Conditions —
» David Spiegel reported the Elevation = 465.03 ft, Storage = 13,527.9 AF @ 27.4% Capacity,
rainfall to date since July 1, 2021 is 12.93 in, WTP at 2.3 MGD, SWP at 2.6 MGD, Downstream

Releases = 1.9 MGD

4. Downstream Releases —

Currently holding downstream releases at minimum flow rates. Public Works’
Environmental Division are going out once or twice per month to check the downstream
creek to ensure fish aren’t being strained, etc.

5. Proposed Vegetation Management Plan (CalFire) —

An area within Lopez Park was established to be a good area for CalFire to conduct their
vegetation management plan, and therefore they would like to have prescribed burns held
there. The area was broken into seven units; units 1-4 were deemed feasible for prescribed
burns, unit 5 is still under consideration for a prescribed burn, but additional field studies
are necessary to determine feasibility, and units 6 and 7 would be used for mechanical
means by slimming up trees and vegetation. It would be a 5-year program — one unit for
each year. CalFire requested this item be brought to the TAC for questions, comments or
concerns. David has relayed concerns over water quality and rainfall rinsing burned areas
down into the creek, and then into the reservoir.

6. Arroyo Grande Creek Model

(Table 2) Despite flow rates being increased out of the dam, there was 0.00 CFS of flow at
Halcyon Rd., 22" St., and Creek Rd. David believes it would need to be approximately
100+ CFS range to get water out to the ocean. John has requested a summary that
comprises conclusions and professional opinions up front, such as an Executive Summary.

7. Cloud Seeding End of Season Operations Report



e David reviews the Cloud Seeding Report from the 2021-2022 Winter Season.
o John commented that the document doesn’t contain a conclusion on how much
rain was generated by cloud seeding or what the generated costs per AF were.
o David states that the information John is referring to comes in a separate
document later in the year — once watersheds, rainfall, etc. are assessed.

8. Zone 3 Contract Changes Update -
¢ Jill hasn't received final comments from Arroyo Grande, Grover Beach, and Pismo Beach,
and has received responses from Oceano CSD and Avila Beach CSD.

o Grover Beach needs to specify if they’re going to continue pushing their previous
comments or if they approve, as their current comments pertain to existing contract
language. Arroyo Grande needs to approve the bond council edit. Pismo Beach
needs to say “OK.” David states that these comments are needed as soon as
possible, but especially if we want to take advantage of the bond refinancing.

9. Capital Projects Updates —

o Tesla Battery Storage (No Change)
o Startup testing was conducted to be prepared for PGE approval of plan to operate

(PTO)

o Spiliway Assessment and Investigation (No Change)
o Meeting with Consultant and DSOD scheduled for 05/10/2022.
o DRAFT Work Plan prepared and submitted to DSOD for review.
o Remainder of project ~ minimum of $300,000

» Geotechnical Testing & Seismic Alternatives Study of Terminal Reservoir Dam
o Negotiating Task 1 items
o Budget ~$500,000

e Fault Zone Risk Assessment for Dam Left Abutment (No Change)
o Developing work order to satisfy the recommendations of the assessment

o Budget ~$40,000

e Lopez WTP Safety Upgrades (No Change)
o Staff are looking into additional consultants to do a lifeline system within the membrane

building.
o Muitiple consultants have reviewed the project, but none have quoted the project.
o Budget ~$53,000

¢ Cathodic Protection Repair Project (No Change)
o JDH Corrosion Consultants, Inc. provided 90% drawing set.
o Preparing BID documents

o Budget ~$449,933

e Equipment Storage Building
o Preparing bidding documents for equipment storage building
o Plan to issue an invitation to bid by the end of the Month

o Budget ~$90,000

e CO2 Injection System (No Change)
o Negotiating Bulk CO2 Contract




o PO issued for equipment
o Budget ~$256,000

e Sludge Bed Curtain Wall Rehabilitation (No Change)
o ~$50,000 per initial quote

e Chlorine Dioxide Batch Tank
o Chlorine Dioxide batch tank continues to fail. Staff are considering using a free chemical
skid option instead, which would eliminate the need for a currently required permit.

10. Future Agenda Items

Next Meeting July 13, 2022

Summary Notes Prepared by Amber Cordova



[ fo[advg

upy  :&q pagured yioday

“Ajjenuue pauasaxd aq [IIm $9550] UoneIodeAT JV 78659 Sem s9550| uoneiodead ST INEM 31el§ PaI0)g Patejna[es oY) {ZoZ ‘1€ 194

avo
“uonEzLtoRIRYDRL I91RM STOT ' Atenuef ay) 01 Yoeq Sunep sasso| uoneIdEAD SN 1)BA 3E}S PAIOIS BY) pajuosaxd Aunoy) ay ‘zzoz prdy

uo (¢
AT Y ul pareudisap se aojem ,J9AQ Auep,, A[[en)oe s| umoys Iajem snjding(g

"UOHINP2I %[ & Juesaidal umoys simsWaPNUT "¢ YT oY1 JO 12381 1v 9p¢'s | 9y Sumyoral Jo uonedionue w (jzoz [dY 0} 9ARdBONLI) UOKINPal
USWALNUA %)) € parsanbal Dy, 170z 1snSny U] (LAHT) Ueld 5U0dSTY HOATISITY MOT] atj) Japun pajetado mou aze sausaljaq Jasep zado (7

“YIUOW 5143 3Fesn 5,3pURID OAOLIY WO PaIoRNqns Sem [ §1°7 PUE IUOW SIY) a5ESN Jojem
$,0uB32Q 01 pappe Sear 1531 RoAUE) 01 PAISAIP ¥ §1°7 JO [E10} V “INO WY BUPH S,3PUBID OAOINY BIA 1S317) UOAUE]) 0 19jEM patddns oueaagy (;
E3TETNTgY

‘[leuiei 10§ yuasaid o3 Anf pue *soUsArlap zado 103 Jussaid o judy ‘aiem g 10j yussaxd o) Arenuer s1 916 0) 183 4,

| Bwves zivso @ Bd D ass00]

Nt gz heW zz,idy 7Z, W 22,984 ZZ,umr

[
]

12,390 1Z,AON 12,00 1,905 Lz, Bny  z,np

|| 1T
|| [Td

s any

efivsn Jogepm 039S Jussed o enuep

oADIg G :Aq paizjus vy

220¢ ‘7] Ay ‘Aopsang

3108 QgL'8 SI P[oIA 9Jeg "123) 21qND (95 ‘£ 10 SUOY(ES (§8 STE = 100) IITE SUQ *Ja0j-aloe Ul 9Ie SAURALR( ANON

000 0 (199} a1ae) o3edg
68'ThS 76°8L1 (1247399 2108 ()QZ}) sES}RY WEaLSUMO(]
16°21 [1] ITejutey
%9'FT 110 % (4454} (199} 3108 Q61 1® [1ng) 2Braorg|
o8¢~ (133)) aauazayiq 16°€9¥ (192) ££'22 1¢ [Iny) uoneAa[g o3e]
AsQ 0y 483X | YJUOR spyJ, suonwiadQ we( zadoy

[zrvsomednascocmome

w.unp gz ARW zr.ady T 0N 22,900 ZZ,usp 42,980 bz AON

1280 Jz.des 1z, Bny 1z, Inp

88I§RBB88IR"
103 10y

eBesn J9yup snjdingHuswsppuyg zadoq jusseld o) [udy

| £1: 17 12)EAL AIBIS PA1CIS YIUOJ SIY L, £0°61L e, RIS P3I0IS YO 158
8E°6€P 005011 [%9'sp 189001 86'8€ L£7  |%0'6 | z0'g61 | 907z €1 | o0'0sL [%o0 | o00 |%rsr | osose flwoe [ ooo |%6's |9cvz] 6oss | oozert [ oozsrt | teop JIEIOL
SLL %0 £7'8Y 4659 8L'L 0Z1 ONSNFYA UeS
£1°91 %T Ly £€°5H %46'8 05’8 96 Lo 0702 |%0'0 000 [%T'6 0Z'02_ J1%0'0 000 |%S'E £9°L £0€ orzs | ovzs | sozz 1 V8D
98'6v1 %498 16'869 %1l | 00orl | ovzr Jlsese ££'8€ %00 000 |%8v ££'8¢  11%0'0 000 |%TI 986 | OI1 | 08'00E | 08'00€ | s'zog | YO®ag owsiq
969 e 1T | $9°961 [%0°0 000 |%eLe | so961 fl260'0 000 (%06 | 96%9 | ¥Ts 0Tv0zT | 0Zv0z | gz | Ud®AY 1sA01n
PL 1P %9'8Z | vz %9's | vLIp 05 J|%0'0 000 |%0°0 000 |%0°0 000 [1%00 000 1%0°0 00°0 SLE 05201 | os'zol | Lzez | SO oURadQp
(6HE| %ol'L1 T9'S6v  [%0°0 000 |%0vT | z9ser M%00 000 |%L'L 16851 ) €08T | oi'tvs | ol'zys | 190z | APUPID) OAOIIY
WU SIYL | souaalaq 1sanbay a8ulolg | saueAlpg _Wu_”w_ 1sanbay % adesn % a3esn % o3esy % oFesn) % afesn | 1oy pasepaaq
sauaalpq dms [BTUY JO 9, ades) ut s3uey) dMs EN 28es) [enuwy =0l snyding JUSW LU snjding wswauy SIqEIIBAY | pojsanbay | 1P1EM A0JOEUOD)
a2)8M [BIOL 1uasa1] 0) Atenue( UOR SIYL, 1ussalg 0} judy QO] SIY L, ey, sndmg | sniding | pug
SALIAALA(] 13JBAp IS SOLIAAI[I(T XA Zzado] _

(44114

‘aung

uoday suonerad( A[IUoIA - 30alo1d zado - € sU0yZ
LYSI(T I8 M pUB JoNUO)) POO[ AJUnoy) odsiqQ SN ueg




1 jo | a8vq

upupy  :Aq payirid ieday

“Afjenuue pajuesard aq [[14 53550] UoNEIodEAT IV Z8'659 88em sasso] uonelodeas STUH J9Jepy 29BIS PRIOIS Pajeno)
"UOHEZLIIORIBIA1 1ajei §1(T | Avenuey aq o1 yorq Sunep sasso| uoneiodeAs snUIW e AEIS pat0ig 3 pajuasasd K3

Y3 [T0T ‘[ 1°q quo
uno) oy ‘7zoz |udy ug (v

‘AT 99 W pajeuBisap se 1mem 1oa() ALED), AJ[enior S1 UMOYS 13jem snyding(g

oapig 'q  :Aq paiuz ving

2202 ‘71 Ay ‘Avpsang

Q00 Q (199] axoe) a8eyudg
"UOHINPal %40 | € Jussaidal umoys sJuSWSHRUE "Y' oY JO 283 IV 000*ST aus Juiyaeas jo uonedionue ut ({77 [udy 0] 2A0¥0N1) uonoNpal 68°TPS T6'8L1 (18943995 2108 0 Z) 58010y WeaysUmO(]|
Juatuanua 940] e pasaabal JYL (707 1030y u] “(JUUT) el asuodsay Noatssay MOT 2y Japun pajesado mou a1e saIaAlfa( 1aepm zador] (7 [§'21 0 liggutey
5 " R 3 %9'¥T i % [44%4] (3993 2192 00z6¥ 1© IIy) 93er01g
“Jauow sIy} 33esn 5,9puelD) 0ACLY WOY pajoenqns sem Jy §1°C pue [uous siyy o8esn Jojem o N -
S,0U8350) 0) PIPPE SEM 1531y UOAUED) 0} PAIAAI|IP IV §1°Z JO [8101 Y “INO WM BUDY S,3pUels) 0Aoury ©IA 15010 uofue)) o) 121em patjddns ouesaQ (| 9v'8§ (1993) Fauasoq 16°€91 (193] L£°TZ6 18 1Y) UonEAd|g Sxe]
38 01 182X | PUO SIY], suoyrsadQ weq zadory
sjmdLumey
“llEjuIed 0§ Juasaid 03 Ang pue ‘selaaljap zado] Jog juasald 0) judy ‘ijem ojm1g 10 yuasaxd o3 Alenuey st ale(f 07 183 4, J-OI08 gL' St PPRIA 3JRS '199) DIQNO (96 ‘¢ 10 SUO[[ET 05§ ‘STE = 100§ a10e AUQ 193)-3108 Ul 31k SALIALR( HSWZ
Binues 0 zivsI@ 840 08900 |zvsomednassonesmoval
R unr ZzAEM ZZ0V T MR IO ZZUST 47,060 LLAON  LZ.MO  1Z.de iz.Boy  4znr Zunr ZZ AW ZT. 40V zz. W 72983 I UM LZ.9%T LLASN  1Z.00 Iz.des iz By iz (or
=0 [ og o
- o [ N i o
=} — M o or
—B — -4 ] LIS
L1 i [
p— — o b Iil oL n
— —— (.13 m i 02 m
— (4 m ol
ori L - oo
9 o
ebwsn Jmem Qug Jueseiy oy lenuep abesn) Jgepm sn|dingHuawopgug zado wesaug 0} |udy
10°85¢L 131 S12|S P30S YIUOA] ST, €0°6IL | 11mp MElg po10)g GuUO 158
BE6EY 00°501F  [%9'sp 18'9001 86'8€ Lt 1%06 | 20861 | 907z [|%8'w1 | 080sL [%00 | 600 |%L0z | osose | o000 |%re [9erpe] osos | oozevi [ 00zert | peog | ISIOL
8LL %t 0y £b°8Y %59 8LL ozt OISl LEg
€191 %T'LY X374 %6'8 05'8 0707 |%0°0 000 |%€01 | 070z 000 |%6'E £9'L 3LT oFTs | orzs | 96l 1 V5D
98°6¥1 %b'9§ 16'869 %€ 11| 00°0v1 ££'8E %00 000 [%t's £€'8E 000 %t} 986 § 10l | 0800 | om'o0c | 9grL | UYoBRg OISl
969 59961 |%0°0 000 |%L0E | 59961 000 [%T0l | 96v9 § w8 | ozv0z | ozvoz | ope | UO€IE I9A0ID),
vl %987 AR A4 %9s | ¥y 00 %00 000 %00 00°0 000 %00 | 000 | sve | ogzol | oszor | vepz | (DS OUBIIQ,
16851 956y |%00 000 |%ILT | T9Sev 000 [%L8 |ressif vist | orzre | orzee | zeg) | PPUBID OAOLIY|
WUOW SIUL, | sousaraq ssonbay agri0lg | sowoaijaq .”.u.””«.x jsanbay ades % a3esn % s3espy agespy % | 2%esn | smep pare|q
satlaaeq dMmS |enuuy Jo 9 a3esp) uadusy)|  JMS 30 9, ages() [enuury [0l sajding pUETIETT | snjding wawapnuyg | A[9RIeAY | paysanbey | 19EM 10398.1JU0))
1EM [RIOL 35214 0} Alenuep YIUOW SIYT, Juasaag o) [udy QUOW ST oL | sudmg | snjding | pug
SALIAAI™( I9)BAA 9)BIS SALIIALR( 19)eA Zodor

70T ‘sunyg

Hoday suonerad( ATYIUOIN - 193101J ZadoT - ¢ U077
PIWSL 191 | pUE [O1U0)) POO[] Ajunoy) odsiqQ S ueg




w-4U1E4 PIDIPRIC MO JO SYIIOW FULINP LA2.0) UiEY O i UofI3101 3321015 3] AN MOf3Q 18 [ YOBID Uvyaiolq BBRL0}S AEIUOD Ay} AI0JDIRY] "(301eys Ui 3nE3U03) UOJSSSa.83. |eILIOUAIOD € UO Paseq §1 [3pow ay |
“PR1eANgES s 105 3\ Uays uoseas Aujes ay) Busnp ueyy sypuow Aip 3u) Buunp mojul 553 anposd jm suojsuiey opow 34 0! Pa.0Pe; pue SUOHIPUOD |10 Juepadaue Aq papdayfe s moju|

00°¢

00’y

009

oo's

0001

00T

0o'vt

oz saujeamaBueduol wou pauleiqo jejusel papipaid gy uo juapuadap si :mojju] payIpaly
SaLIAN[SP Aupuow 3BesaAe T207-0107 O paseq s :aBesp Aualy

saseajay weansumoq + aBesn Aauady = moping

MOIANY - MOju] + 28E1056 JUaLN) = aBei01S NOAIISIY

9leq
e el ol ol el el el o Y Y e S S S o B e T o o o e N Y Y Y S e i i S St
P i e e e e TN S S e s T T e e e NN N oS S S S S S NSRSy
BN B NN N NN N NN NN M BMOANN NN N NN NN N MO ON NN NN NN N NN NN OMN NN
C O 0O 00 0O 00 OO0 OO & o Q0O O O O O O O 0o 6 & o o Q 0O O QO 0O 0O O 0 0 o0 oo o
NN RN RONN RN NN NRN N NSNS NN NN NN NN DR NN N NN NN R NN N N NN
W W W ww WwMNMNMNNNNNIDWNRDNODD DR & B R R e R R R RRe 00 00 6 O o o o o o o
Tt " — 7g ,..rc.ile)lvﬁl» |r_ P2 e R — Ll S el TUT s I - -
0 | _ SE'0 90 |evp § v || Pt
'n

ﬁ 190 ¥6 _
! | F
wi& Ve I e i S i i Hl.
X 8€'Z | ©}

F n.t_

~— — O o - .

ceoz/ee/tt

T

4V 000°07 == o=

4V 000'0T == == (uley ON) uonIafoig afesols U01123[044g D8RI0]G mmmm

98E103S |BNJIY s

uonendida.g pardIpald mummn

uoneidinasd |enioy i

NOILO3MOYd IDVHOLS ¥IOAYISIY Z3dO1

000s

0000t

000st

0000¢

000S¢

0000€

000se

0000Y

(dv) @8ea03s




TO:

FROM:
DATE:

ZONE 3 Lopez Project

San Luis Obispo County Flood Control and Water Conservation District

Zone 3 Technical Advisory Committee
David Spiegel, PE
July 13, 2022

SUBJECT: Zone 3 Projects Update

Project Updates:

Tesla Battery Storage (No Change)
o Doing Startup testing to be prepared for PGE approval of plan to operate

(PTO)
o Budget - Free

Spillway Assessment and Investigation
o DSOD comments received.
o Meeting with Consultant to review DSOD comments scheduled for 7/27
o Remainder of project ~ minimum of $300,000

Geotechnical Testing & Seismic Alternatives Study of Terminal Reservoir Dam
o Negotiating Task 1 ltems
o Budget ~$500,000

Lopez WTP Safety Upgrades (No Change)
o Staff are looking into additional consuitants to do a lifeline system within

the membrane building.

o Multiple consultants have reviewed the project, but none have quoted the
project.

o Budget ~$53,000

Cathodic Protection Repair Project

o JDH Corrosion Consultants, Inc. provided 95% drawing set.

o JDH Corrosion Consultants, Inc. to provide 100% drawing set by the end
of the week.

o Preparing BID documents

Submitted encroachment permit applications

o Obtained authorization from the Board of Supervisors to advertise the
project

o Budget ~$449,933

(o]

Equipment Storage Building
o Bid opening on 7/14/2022
o Budget ~$90,000




ZONE 3 Lopez Project

San Luis Obispo County Flood Control and Water Conservation District

e CO2 Injection System (No Change)

o Negotiating Bulk CO2 contract
o PO issued for equipment
o Budget ~$256,000
e Sludge Bed Curtain Wall Rehabilitation (No Change)

o ~$50,000 per initial quote
Completed Projects
e Disinfection Alternatives Study

e Fault Zone Risk Assessment for Dam Left Abutment
o Leak at Main Dam outlet works building

s Replacement of Hach Turbidimeter

¢ Repairs to Terminal Dam Spillway

e Lopez Terminal Dam Monument Survey

* Domestic Tank Repairs

e lopez Water Treatment Plant Rack 1 Membrane Replacement

s Fault Zone Risk Assessment for Dam Left Abutment



Oceano Community Services District

1655 Front Street, P.O. Box 599, Oceano, CA 93475
(805) 481-6730  FAX (805) 481-6836

June 10, 2022

Mr. John Diodati, Interim Director of Public Works
County of San Luis Obispo

Subject: Advisory Committee Appointments by Oceano CSD

Mr. Diodati,

Based on the By-Laws of the Oceano CSD, changes were recently made which has resulted in an update
to the District's advisory committee appointments. The following reflects appointments approved by the Oceano
CSD Board of Directors during their regular meeting of June 8, 2022. We are hopeful that these revisions can be
approved by the Board of Supervisors in time for the individuals to attend committee meetings and act on behalf

of the District as soon as possible.

2022 COMMITTEE ASSIGNMENTS TO COUNTY ADVISORY BOARDS AND COMMITEES
Committee Primary Appointee Alternate Appointee
Water Resource Advisory Comm. (WRAC) Linda Austin Shirley D. Gibson
Regional Water Mgt. Group (RWMG - IRWMP) Allene Villa Shirley D. Gibson
Zone 3 (Lopez Water) Allene Villa Shirley D. Gibson
State Water Subcontractors Allene Villa Shirley D. Gibson

Please let me know if you have any questions.
Sincerely,

Wi (i

Will Clemens
General Manager



(9 uwin|03) JanoAutes mau pue (4 uwnjos) uopelodesa 4o} paisnipe Jaac-Adie3 pjo snyd Juswa
(9 uwin|0s) 19n0h1ied Mau pue (4 uwnjod) uoiesodend 10} pajsnipe s1ano

9T-GT Wouy IaA0ALIED PasNUN sajouade yoea Aq pajesold pue Lopesodeas Ajjauow uo paseq uonesodeas jo 4y 5 T0T JLBUL!

11ua s,A2uale ay1 Jo %08 J0 Wns 3y3 s1 {00007 38 |qejleae je30]) ) uwnja)
-A1ied plo snid JuswaInua s,housde ayy 40 wiNs 3y st{000'ST 1€ \GE|IBeAE (30]) [ Uwnjo)

@ HWNjO) - ¥ UWNjed = H Uwn|o)
unsnfpe 53| 4 UWNjoJ = 9 uwN|o)

(sa1aa113p JanoAuie] 153) 3 uwinio) - (3jqeyieae Jonohie)) g uwinjo) = (1arokuse) pasnun) 4 uwn|o)
¥10T°9T°ZT U0 siosiaadng Jo paeog Aq paidope poylaw dHy1 = J-y suwnjo)

suonenaje)

TZ-TZ JedA JB3IBM SJUN0IIY J3JEM dHYT

£202/220¢ 10f d¥¥1 3y 43pun sayddns paipuwiis3 - 1330/ zadoq

TOV'TT [8z0w 17T 8S0°9 LL0Y leloL
008'E lo 0 £E0'E 0 weasumoq
T09°'L 8.0V 1217 ({4 S9p'T 0 $20'E £L9°S 965°T LL0'Y s|ejo) qns
559 12¢ €51 78¢ 682 0 89 L0E 98 122 [4A 7o)
£66 €L €L7 Lt 651 0 0 08€ LOT €42 QsD oueaaQ
£96 £v0°T 0zL 0 243 1E€ 0 68/ 200'T 1414 0zL yaeag Janoio
vS6°T (370)4 €08 E32 6v S0S 0 SS (TTT bTE €08 . 42838 owsi4
6£9°T 898°C 190'C 25- 658 188 0 EITT 2987 L08 190°C dpue. oAouly
4V 000°0T 4V 000°ST (60T ss3() (430 Aused 44 (44 sauanlRq S3UBNI3a | 9jqejieay [e30) | JaAQ Auuse) (60T ss2p) Jopenuo)
jo jo ._wwm_._u le Juzwapnul ;05 Ze-TZ Uitz ajqejieae gz ui ._w>o>.tuu ._v>o>h._mu ‘353 juawia|jug Jualsfinul
._www_b. je alqejieay [e30] uswsnuy | pue .n_m>w 0§ pasnun "153
slqejieay H+H+9 pasnun ._.v< ._0>0>.:mu
leop
b f 1 H 9 ] 3 ¢! 2 | v
£T-TT 1D 13JBM SIUNOIDY JD1EM dHY 1 PAIeWNS3




VI

ZONE 3 ADVISORY COMMITTEE

San Luis Obispo County Flood Control and Water Conservation District

SPECIAL MEETING AGENDA

Thursday, August 11, 2022 6:30 P.M.
City of Grover Beach Council Chambers
154 S. Eighth Street, Grover Beach, California 93433

CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL

. PUBLIC COMMENT

This is an opportunity for members of the public to address the Committee on items that are
not on the Agenda

. INFORMATION ITEMS -

A. Sample Resolution for Virtual Meetings — Attachment 1

ACTION ITEMS (No Subsequent Board of Supervisors Action Required)
A. Motion to approve virtual meetings

ACTION ITEMS (Board of Supervisors Action is Subsequently Required)
A. Motion to endorse the execution of Amended and Restated Water Supply Contracts
between with the San Luis Obispo County Flood Control and Water Conservation District

(District) and the Zone 3 Contractors (Contractors) and adoption of the associated
Negative Declaration — Attachment 2

COMMITTEE MEMBER COMMENTS

Next Regular Meeting is Tentatively Scheduled for
September 15, 2022 at 6:30 PM at City of Grover Beach Council Chambers
Agendas accessible online at SLOCountyWater.org




Attachment 1

In The ZONE 3 ADVISORY COMMITTEE
COUNTY OF SAN LUIS OBISPO, STATE OF CALIFORNIA

day , 2022

PRESENT:

ABSENT:

RESOLUTION NO. 2022-XX

A RESOLUTION OF THE ZONE 3 ADVISORY COMMITTEE ACKNOWLEDGING
GOVERNOR NEWSOM'S PROCLAMATION OF A STATE OF EMERGENCY AND AUTHORIZING
MEETINGS BY TELECONFERENCE FOR A PERIOD OF
THIRTY DAYS PURSUANT TO THE RALPH M. BROWN ACT

The following Resolution is now offered and read:

WHEREAS, on March 4, 2020, Governor Newsom issued a Proclamation of State of

Emergency in response to the COVID-19 pandemic; and
WHEREAS, the proclaimed state of emergency remains in effect; and

WHEREAS, on March 17, 2020, Governor Newsom issued Executive Order N-29-20 that
suspended the teleconferencing rules set forth in the California Open Meeting law, Government
Code Section 54950 et seq. (the “Brown Act”), provided certain requirements were met and

followed; and

WHEREAS, on june 11, 2021, Governor Newsom issued Executive Order N-08-21 that
clarified the suspension of the teleconferencing rules set forth in the Brown Act, and further

provided that those provisions would remain suspended through September 30, 2021; and

WHEREAS, on September 1, 2021, the San Luis Obispo County Health Officer issued
Order Number 6, requiring face coverings in all public indoor settings attributable to the rise in

SARS-CoV-2 Delta Variant; and

WHEREAS, on September 16, 2021, Governor Newsom signed Assembly Bill 361 (AB
361), allowing legislative bodies subject to the Brown Act to continue meeting by teleconference

if the legislative body determines that meeting in person would present imminent risks to the

Page 1 of 3



health or safety of attendees, and further requires that certain findings be made by the
legislative body every thirty (30) days; and

WHEREAS, California Department of Public Health and the federal Centers for Disease
Control and Prevention (“CDC") caution that the Delta variant of COVID-19, currently the
dominant strain of COVID-19 in the country, is more transmissible than prior variants of the
virus, may cause more severe illness, and that even fully vaccinated individuals can spread the

virus to others resulting in rapid and alarming rates of COVID-19 cases and hospitalizations

(https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/variants/delta-variant.html); and

WHEREAS, the CDC has established a “Community Transmission” metric with 4 tiers
designed to reflect a community’s COVID-19 case rate and percent positivity; and

WHEREAS, the County of San Luis Obispo currently has a Community Transmission
metric of “medium”; and

WHEREAS, in the interest of public health and safety, as affected by the emergency
caused by the spread of COVID-19, the Zone 3 Advisory Committee (Zone 3 AC) deems it

necessary to find holding in person meetings would present imminent risks to the health or

safety of attendees, and thus intends to invoke the provisions of AB 361 related to

teleconferencing.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED AND ORDERED by the Zone 3 AC that:

1. The recitals set forth above are true and correct.

2. The Proclamation of State of Emergency in response to the COVID-19 pandemic
issued by Governor Newsom on March 4, 2020, remains in effect.
3. Based on the recitals above, the Zone 3 AC finds that meeting in person would

present imminent risks to the health or safety of attendees.

4. Staff is directed to return at the next regularly scheduled meeting with an item
for the Zone 3 AC to consider making the findings required by AB 361 to continue meeting

under its provisions.

Page 2 of 3



Upon motion of Member , seconded by Member

and on the following roll call vote, to wit:

AYES:

NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAINING:

the foregoing resolution is hereby adopted.

Chair Person
Zone 3 Advisory Committee

ATTEST:

David Spiegel
Secretary of the Zone 3 Advisory Committee

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGAL EFFECT:

RITA L. NEAL
County Counsel

By:

Deputy County Counsel

Dated:

Page 3 of 3



Attachment 2

COUNTY OF SAN LUIS OBISPO

o Department of Public Works
John Diodati, Director

COUNTY

August 11, 2022
TO: Flood Control Zone 3 Advisory Committee
FROM: Jill Ogren, Public Works -Utilities Division Engineer

SUBJECT: Zone 3 Amended and Restated Water Supply Contract - Advisory Committee
Endorsement

Recommendation

It is recommended that the Zone 3 Advisory Committee endorse the execution of Amended
and Restated Water Supply Contracts between with the San Luis Obispo County Flood
Control and Water Conservation District (District) and the Zone 3 Contractors (Contractors)
and adoption of the associated Negative Declaration pursuant to Section 21000 et seq. of
the California Public Resources Code (CEQA).

Discussion
At the end of the last drought in 2017, the Contractors initiated a project (approved by your

committee in September 2019) to evaluate potential changes to the current contracts that would
provide the Contractors with individual storage rights and improve management of the Lopez
Water Supply and System. The project has culminated in an Amended and Restated Water
Supply Contract that is now ready for execution by the District and Contractors. In addition, in
March of 2022, an opportunity to refinance the bonds associated with the completed seismic
remediation project was identified that necessitated further changes to the current
contracts. The proposed contract provisions will equip the Contractors with the following

management tools:

e Provide ability for each Contractor to store their unused Entitlement Water or Surplus
Water for future droughts or water supply emergencies

e Improve flexibility of multi-year water resource planning

o Allow for enhanced conjunctive use or water supply portfolio management

e Provide incentive for Contractors who are also State Water Sub-Contractors to import

State Water and preserve water in Lopez Reservoir
e Meet the current requirements for re-financing of the bonds associated with the

completed Seismic Remediation Project

County of San Luis Obispo Department of Public Works
County Govt Center, Room 206 | San Luis Obispo, CA 93408 | (P)805-781-5252 | (F)805-781-1229
pwd@co.sio.ca.us | slocounty.ca.gov



Significant Revisions

The following items were modified in the proposed Contract to incorporate language to allow
Contractor storage rights, re-financing of the Seismic Retrofit bonds, as well as clarify and
modernize the terminology of the Contracts and several of their basic provisions:

e Individual Contractor storage - added (Articles 4, 7, 9, 15, 21)

e Surplus Water cost calculations - modified (Article 4)

» Storage of State Water Project Water through in-lieu exchange - added (Article 7)
e Evaporation losses associated with stored water - added (Article 7)

¢ Address downstream release obligations - modified (Articles 4, 7, 17)

o Spill provisions for stored water - added (Articles 4, 7)

e Turnout delivery capacity limitations - modified (Article 9)

e Variable Charges calculation changes - modified (Article 14)

* Bond re-financing legal language - Added (Article 34)

Environmental Considerations

As required by the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA), all discretionary projects
carried out by the District are reviewed to identify, avoid, reduce, and mitigate any potential
environmental impacts. The Negative Declaration (ND) for this project was prepared by
District Environmental Division staff with review and approval by the Environmental Division
Manager (Attachment). The ND determined that the proposed project will not have a
significant effect on the environment and that no mitigation measures are required. The
District is considered the CEQA Lead Agency and will need to adopt the ND. Each of the Zone
3 Contractors is considered a responsible Agency and must consider the ND in its

determination.

OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT

The Amended and Restated Water Supply Contracts were developed and reviewed by a
sub-committee of the Zone 3 Technical Advisory Committee, consultants, County Public
Works staff, County Counsel, legal counsels of the Contractors, financial consultants, and

bond counsel.

EXECUTION/APPROVAL PROCESS

Attached is a template of the Amended and Restated Water Supply Contract for your committee’s
endorsement. Each Contractor's specific Water Supply Contract will be substantially the same
except for entitlement amounts and delivery locations which are unique to each Contractor.

County of San Luis Cbispo Department of Public Works
County Govt Center, Room 206 | San Luis Obispo, CA 93408 | (P) 805-781-5252 | (F)805-781-1229
pwd@co.slo.ca.us | slocounty.ca.gov



At a regularly scheduled meeting, the Board of Supervisor's acting as the governing body of the
District, will consider a resolution to approve and authorize execution of Amended and
Restated Water Supply Contracts with each of the Zone 3 Contractors and adopt a Negative
Declaration pursuant to Section 21000 et seq. of the California Public Resources Code
(CEQA). Following the Board of Supervisors actions, each Contractor will then take the
partially executed contract to their respective governing boards for full execution and

adoption of the ND.

Attachments:

Amended and Restated Water Supply Contract Template

County of San Luis Obispo Department of Public Works
County Govt Center, Room 206 | San Luis Obispo, CA 93408 | (P)805-781-5252 | (F) 805-781-1229
pwd@co.slo.ca.us | slocounty.ca.gov



BEFORE THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

of the

SAN LUIS OBISPO COUNTY FLOOD CONTROL
AND WATER CONSERVATION DISTRICT

day , 2022

PRESENT: Supervisors

ABSENT:

RESOLUTION NO.

RESOLUTION APPROVING EXECUTION OF AMENDED
AND RESTATED WATER SUPPLY CONTRACTS
WITH THE ZONE 3 CONTRACTORS AND ADOPTING A NEGATIVE DECLARATION
PURSUANT TO PUBLIC RESOURCES CODE SECTION 21000 ET SEQ. (CEQA)

The following Resolution is now offered and read:

WHEREAS, the San Luis Obispo County Flood Control and Water Conservation District (District)
Zone 3 Contractors (Contractors) receive water entitlements from Lopez Reservoir via individual
but substantially identical Water Supply Contracts (Contracts) with the District that were originally execu
in 1966 and subsequently amended and restated; and

WHEREAS, the Contractors wish to again restate and amend the Contracts to provide storage rights
for each of the Contractors to store their unused entitlement, surplus water and State Water Project Water
year over year in Lopez Reservoir and to permit the refunding of the bonds associated with the completed
Lopez Dam Seismic Retrofit Project in order to reduce the costs of debt service (which purposes may
advance on a similar schedule or on different schedules); and

WHEREAS, providing storage rights allows for flexibility of multi-year water resource planning and
enhanced water supply portfolio management for the Contractors; and

WHEREAS, the proposed Amended and Restated Contracts continue to make clear that legally
required water releases, including, without limitation, releases pursuant to any Habitat Conservation Plan,
shall have first priority when the District is distributing Lopez Reservoir water; and

WHEREAS, Environmental Division staff prepared a Negative Declaration for the proposed
Amended and Restated Contracts (Project) which was approved by the Environmental Division Manager
and which concludes that the Project will not have a significant effect on the environment and that no

mitigation measures are required; and

WHEREAS, prior to commencement of preparation of the Negative Declaration, staff conducte.
early consultation with potentially affected local, State and Federal agencies, Native American groups and
other potentially interested parties but no substantive comments were received: and

Page 1 of 3



WHEREAS, notice of intent to adopt the proposed Negative Declaration was also published in a local
newspaper and circulated to the relevant, local, State and Federal agencies through the State
Clearinghouse and by mail and the thirty (30) day review period for the Project ended on February 28, 2022;
the only comments received were from the County of San Luis Obispo Department of Parks and Recreation
opining that the Project would have potential net benefits for recreational use; and

WHEREAS, the form of the Amended and Restated Contracts and the Negative Declaration have
been presented to and considered at this meeting of the Board of Supervisors together with a summary of

all comments received during the public review process; and

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED AND ORDERED by the Board of Supervisors of the County of
San Luis Obispo, State of California acting as the governing board of the San Luis Obispo County
Flood Control and Water Conservation District, as follows:

Section 1. Recitals. The foregoing recitals are true and correct.

Section 2. Approval of Amended and Restated Water Supply Contracts. The Amended and Restated
Water Supply Contracts substantially in the form presented to and considered during this meeting of the
Board of Supervisors are hereby approved. Any one of the Chairperson or Vice Chairperson of said Board,
and each of them (collectively, the Authorized Officers) is hereby authorized and directed, for and in the
name and on behalf of the District, to execute and deliver an Amended and Restated Water Supply Contract
an substantially similar terms to each Contractor, with such insertions and changes as may be approved
Jy the Authorized Officer executing the same, such approval to be conclusively evidenced by such
execution and delivery provided that said Amended and Restated Water Supply Contract is approved as to
form and legal effect by County Counsel. To accommodate the possibility of financing purposes proceeding
on a different schedule than water storage purposes reflected in the form of the Amended and Restated
Water Supply Contracts, the amendments contemplated in the form of the Amended and Restated Water
Supply Contracts related to financing matters may instead be effected under a separate amendment
document with each Contractor which the Board of Supervisors hereby approves and authorizes the
Authorized Officer to execute and deliver, with such changes therein as the Authorized Officer shall
approve, subject to prior approval of such changes by County Counsel, such approval to be conclusively
established by the execution and delivery thereof by the Authorized Officer.

Section 3. Negative Declaration. The Board of Supervisors reviewed and considered the information
contained in the Negative Declaration and the whole record and finds that there is no substantial evidence
that the Project will have a significant effect on the environment, that the Negative Declaration reflects the
lead agency's independent judgment and analysis, and hereby adopts the Negative Declaration.

Section 4. Effective Date. This Resolution shall take effect immediately upon its passage and
adoption.

Page 2 of 3



, seconded by Supervisor

Upon motion of Supervisor
and on the following roll call vote, to wit:
AYES:

NOES:
ABSENT:

ABSTAINING:

the foregoing resolution is hereby adopted on the ___ day of ,20__

ATTEST:

WADE HORTON
Ex-Officio Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

By:

Deputy Clerk
(SEAL)

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGAL EFFECT:

RITA L. NEAL
County Counsel

Dated: July 29, 2022

L:\Utilities\2022\_Resolutions\Zone 3 Amended Contracts rsl.docx

Page 30of 3

Chairperson of the Board of Supervisors



Avila Beach CSD
WWTP Improvement Project

\\ Cannon
'\ CANNON CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT DIVISION Cannon No. 211211

RESIDENT ENGINEER'S DAILY REPORT
ASSISTANT RESIDENT ENGINEER'S DAILY REPORT

CEM-4601 {(Mod. 6/2011)

Report No: 25 Date: 7/11/2022 M T W T F S Su (SelectDay)
Shift Hours: 8 Temperature
Start:  7:00AM Stop:  3:30PM Min: 54 Max: 66

Bl #13 - Yard Piping (6" SSFM & 4" ODR Piping)
Hartzell was instaliing the 6" SSFM from the Duplex Bypass Pump skid and across the MBR pad. The pipe will not be

pressure tested until the following week to allow Electricraft to complete their work later this week. Following the
SSFM installation, Hartzell will be moving to the installation of the 4" ODR piping.

Bl #7 - Ground Improvements
Keller's settlement moniroing sub, Geo-Instruments, was onsite removing all monitoring equipment from the jobsite

[hode ]l bkl L la b i dol oklen s H Lok oll s lid ol loboal b Axl A o] o
SIGNATURE TITLE
Matt Schoilfield Resident Engineer

THE RELENTLESS PURSUIT OF THE ELEGANT SOLUTION




7~ Avila Beach CSD
\\ Ca nnon WWTP Improvement Project
CANNON CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT DIVISION Cannon No. 211211

RESIDENT ENGINEER'S DAILY REPORT
ASSISTANT RESIDENT ENGINEER'S DAILY REPORT
CEM-4601 (Mod. 6/2011)

Report No: 26 Date:  7/15/2022 M T W T E S Su (SelectDay)
Shift Hours: 8 Temperature
Start:  7:00AM Stop:  3:30PM Min: 54 Max: 66

Bl #13 - Yard Piping (Testeing of 4" ODR Piping)
Hartzell completed the installation and backfill of the 4" ODR piping yesterday, 7/14/22. Low pressure air testing was
conducted at 3psi for 5 minutes the morning of 7/15/22. | was onsite to witness the test, no loss of pressure was

noted for the duration of the test.

AT e

Bl #20 - Electrical
Hartzell excating trenches for conduit installation. Electricraft schedule for Monday 7/18/22 to continue conduit

installation. Backfill to occur the same afternoon or the following day (7/19/22).

SIGNATURE TITLE
Matt Scholfield Resident Engineer

THE RELENTLESS PURSUIT OF THE ELEGANT SOLUTION



/’ Avila Beach CSD
\ Cannon WWTP Improvement Project
\ CANNON CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT DIVISION Cannon No. 211211

RESIDENT ENGINEER'S DAILY REPORT
ASSISTANT RESIDENT ENGINEER'S DAILY REPORT
CEM-4601 (Mod. 6/2011)

Report No: 26 Date:  7/15/2022 M T W T FE S Su (SelectDay)
Shift Hours: 8 Temperature

Start:  7:00AM Stop:  3:30PM Min: 54 Max: 66
General

Hartzell notified me yesterday of the following shallow existing conduits found during their excavation work the
previous day, which they stated slowed their production. Based on the future cover of the existing conduits, Waliace
Group was notified and asked if slurry backfill or other protection would be required.

Piping previously installed to the duplex equalization pump.

SIGNATURE TITLE
Matt Scholfield Resident Engineer

THE RELENTLESS PURSUIT OF THE ELEGANT SOLUTION




. Avila Beach CSD
! Ca nnon WWTP Improvement Project
\ CANNON CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT DIVISION Cannon No. 211211

RESIDENT ENGINEER'S DAILY REPORT
ASSISTANT RESIDENT ENGINEER'S DAILY REPORT
CEM-4601 (Mod. 6/2011)

Report No: 27 Date:  7/18/2022 M T W T F S S8Su (SelectDay)
Shift Hours: 8 Temperature
Start:  7:00AM Stop:  3:30PM Min: 55 Max: 67

Bl #21 - Connections to Pre-Purchased Equipment (Epoxy Anchors)

Hartzell was install the drill and bond epoxy anchors at the Duplex Bypass and Duplex Equalization Pump Skids.
316SS hardware was utilized with 6" of embedment along with Simpson Set-XP epoxy. The installation was witnessed
by myself for sufficient depth, cleaning of the drilled holes, and installation of the epoxy anchor.

0 Avila Beach CA8842
& I United/State

SIGNATURE TITLE
Matt Scholfield Resident Engineer

THE RELENTLESS PURSUIT OF THE ELEGANT SOLUTION




/FP Avila Beach CSD
WWTP Improvement Project

\ Cannon
\ CANNON CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT DIVISION Cannon No. 211211

RESIDENT ENGINEER'S DAILY REPORT
ASSISTANT RESIDENT ENGINEER'S DAILY REPORT

CEM-4601 (Mod. 6/2011)

Report No: 27 Date: 7/18/2022 M T W T F S 8u (SelectDay)
Shift Hours: 8 Temperature
Start:  7:00AM Stop:  3:30PM Min: 55 Max: 67

Bl #20 - Electrical
Hartzell completed a portion of the remaining ductbank excavation while Electricraft installed conduit in the previous

completed ductbank. Backfill was scheduled to commence in the afternoon, pending progress by Electricraft and
would likely continue into tomorrow.

SIGNATURE TITLE
Matt Scholfield Resident Engineer

THE RELENTLESS PURSUIT OF THE ELEGANT SOLUTION







@ FLUID RESOURCE
MANAGEMENT

CONTRACTORS LICENSE #937346

y 21, 2022

Avila Beach Community Services District
100 San Luis Street
Avila Beach, CA 93424

SUBJECT: June 2022 MONTHLY FACILITY REPORT FOR THE AVILA BEACH COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT
WASTEWATER TREATMENT PLANT, WATER SYSTEM, AND COLLECTION SYSTEM

WASTEWATER TREATMENT PLANT

Areas within the wastewater plant that are known to accumulate solids continue to be manually cleaned on a regular basis. The
Chlorine Contact Chamber floor is vacuumed out on a weekly basis. These solids, if left to decompose, can have a negative effect on

the effluent quality leaving the facility.
Staff responded to a power outage; staff was onsite to ensure the plant and lift station was functioning properly.

Staff had a callout emergency; tumed out to be the FFR drive, and the pump needed to be replaced. Staff used the spare equipment
onsite to make repairs.

WATER SYSTEM

The small water storage tank continues to be used as standby, with FRM staff monitoring the water quality in the tank and flushing as
needed. FRM Staff continues to monitor the chlorine residuals and provide additional chlorine as needed. Staff has been performing

distribution flushing on an as-needed basis.
COMPLIANCE RECORD AND PLANT PERFORMANCE

~aff compiled the data to complete the monthly Self-Monitoring Report and Discharge Monitoring Report in California Integrated Water
ality System (CIWQS). Once approved, the reports are uploaded into CIWQS and certified by ABCSD Staff,

Plant Design for Influent BOD is 270 mg/L. The permit limit for Effluent TSS and BOD is a Monthly Average of 40 mg/L with a Daily
Maximum of 90 mg/L.

Water tank 12" valve was leaky badly, so staff went to the site to repair and stop the leak.

Sincerely,
FLUID RESOURCE MANAGEMENT

ATTACHMENTS

Self-Monitoring Report

ABGSD Average Daily WWTP Effiuent Flow (2020-2022)
ABGCSD Monthly Total WWTP Effluent Flow (2020-2022)
Port San Luis Monthly Total Flow (2020-2022)

Monthly Average Influent BOD (2020-2022)

Monthly Average Effluent BOD (2020-2022)

Monthly Water Purchased from Lopez (2020-2022)
ABCSD Monthly Water Sold (2020-2022)

FLUIDRESOURCEMANAGEMENT.COM | 805.597.7100
FRMINFO@FRM-OPS.COM | 2385 PRECISION DRIVE, ARROYO GRANDE, CA 93420




California Regional Water
Quality Control Board,
Central Coast Region

Monthly report due last day of following month
Annual report due January 30

DISCHARGER SELF-MONITORING

Avila Beach CSD ORDER R3-2017-0025
Wastewater Treatment WID $ 400101001
Facility Month: JUNE 2022

Effluent and Influent Monitoring

Daily Fiow (MGD) Effluent Monitoring Biweekly | Biweekly | Biweokly | Biweekly | Monthly
e Avg Biweekly | Biweekly | Dally Date Effluent Effluont influent influent Effluent
Date| Total Total Fecal | Chiorine BOD T8 BOD TSS | Oll & Grease
{gpm) | (@pm) | coicorm | Coliform | Residusl | (24 HC) {24 HC) {24 HC) (24 HC) (Grab)
1 0.039486 59 27 <0.02 6/2/22 33 24 420 194
2 0.039708 75 28 <2 <2 <0.02 6/6/22 38 20 370 200
3 0.049860 74 35 <0.02 6/9/22 30 16 547 310 2.2 DNQ
4 0.058527 81 41 <0.02 6M2/22 34 26 570 438
5 0.059027 85 41 <0.02 6/16/22 26 20 430 340
6 0.046971 79 33 <0.02 6/17/22 31 20 — —
7 0.041169 68 29 4 <2 <0.02 6/19/22 26 22 346 292
8 0.040446 64 28 <0.02 6/23/22 24 20 332 244
9 0.042901 75 30 <2 <2 <0.02 6/26/22 43 21 357 396
10 0.053450 81 a7 <0.02 6/30/22 21 16 323 246
11 0.066063 88 46 <0.02 Min 21 16 323 194 2.2DNQ
12 0.064284 85 45 <0.02 Mean 30.6 20.5 410.6 295.6 22DNQ
13 0.049375 86 34 <0.02 Max 43 26 570 438 22DNQ
14 0.047324 76 35 2 <2 <0.02 BOD Removal: 92.5% TSS Removal: 93.1%
15 | 0.047172 | 114 36 <0.02 ______ Effluent Monitoring
18 | 0.050453 67 35 2 <2 <0.02 Weekly | Weekly | Weekly | Weekly
Date Set. Solids | Turbidity pH Temp °F
17 | o0.057744 | 121 40 <0.02 (Grab) (Grab) (Grab) (Grab) |
18 0.064532 132 45 <0.02 6/2/22 <0.1 27.4 74 68
18 0.063088 96 A4 <0.02 6/9/22 <0.1 30.5 741 72
20 0.053537 98 37 <0.02 6/16/22 <0.1 36.3 7.3 73
21 0.049405 68 34 46 <2 <0.02 8/23/22 <0.1 25.3 7.32 72
22 0.045227 72 32 <0.02 6/30/22 <0.1 25.0 73 72
23 0.047837 68 33 6 <2 <0.02 Min <0.1 25.0 71 68.0
24 0.055136 75 38 <0.02 Mean <0.1 289 73 714
25 0.084957 81 45 <0.02 Max <0.1 36.3 74 73.0
26 | 0.067388 81 47 <0.02 Effluent Limits
27 0.057111 77 39 <0.02 Paramater Units Monthly Avg| Weekiy Avg | Dally Max
28 0.050779 72 35 <2 <2 <0.02 BOD mgiL 40 60 20
29 0.050983 72 36 0.06 Suspended Solids mgfL 40 80 90
29 = e -— <0.02 Oll and Grease mg/L 25 40 75
30 | 0.049219 68 34 2 <2 <0.02 Turbidity - NTU 75 100 225
31 . 7 Sample Medlan: 23
Min | 0.039486 59 27 <2 <2 <0.02 Total Coliform 1:::11. More than once in 30 days: 240
Mean| 0.052438 81 37 6.9 <2 <0.02 Daily Maximum: 2,400
Max | 0.067388 132 47 46 <2 0.06 Chlorine Residual mg/L 6 Month Medlan: 0.3 12
Total| 1.57313% Effluent dally (dry weather) flow NTE 0.2 MGD (mean). pH pH units " Between 6.0 - 9.0
Settleable Solids mut 1.0 - 15 3.0
Influent Brine Recelved Sludge Removal BOD/TSS Removal % 275% | ™.
Date Volume (Gallons) Date Gallons _
N/A NIA | certify under penalty of perjury that the foregoing is true and accurate and that
the sampling procedure and analysis used are as specified in the Waste
Discharge Order for this facility.
SIGNATURE: DATE:
PRINTED NAME: TITLE:




HLNOW

ne NP AVIA HUdv dYIN g34 NV

| zzoz= 120Z= OZOZ* |

034 AON 100 d3s onv
(zzoz - 0202)

MOTd LNINT443 d1MM ATIVA FOVHIAY asSOav

000°01

000'02

000'0€

000°0¥

000°0S

00009

000'02

AVQd ¥3d SNOT1VO




HLNOW

o3a AON 100 d3s onv ne NAr AYA Hdv HYW a34 NVl

| zzoz= Lzoz= oOz0Z= |

(zzoz - 0202)
MO14 LN3N1443 d1LMM TVLOL ATHLNOW asogav

000'00S

000'000°4

000'00S‘}

000°000°2

000°005°C

HLNOW ¥3d SNOTIVO




HLNOW

anr NOr AVIN AUdV YN

03d AON 100 d38 onvy g3d Nvr

| zzoz= te0z= ozoz® |

(zzoz - 0202)
MO14d TVLOL ATHLNOW SINT NVS 1i0d

0

000'0S

000°001

000°0S}

000°002

000052

000'00€

SNOTIVO




HLNOW

530 AON 100 d3s onv nr NOP AN Hdv UV 834 Nvr
| ubisoq dIMM~—— ZZ0Zwss  LZ0Zwwm  QZ0Z === |

(zzoz - 0202)
aod LN3aNT14ANI 39VH3AV ATHLNOW asoav

00l

00g

00€

oor

Q0S

009

/6w




03a

AON

| W) ebesoay AeQ Og——— ZZ0Zws=  LZ0gmmm  0ZOZmem |

(zzoz - 0z0Z)
aod ININ1443 I9VIIAVY ATHLNOW asosav

08

/6w




HLNOW

anre NAr AVIA HdV avii g34 NVF

000'005

000’000+

000'00S'L

000°000'2

000'00S°C

000'000°€

| 220z 120z% o202 |

d3a AON 100 d3s ony
(zzoz - 0202)

Z3d01 NO¥d A3ISVHIUNd ¥31VM ATHLNOW asoav

SNOTIVO




HLNOW

ane NAOr AV ddV

| zzoz= Lzoz= ozoz= |

(zzoz - 0202)
a10s ¥3LVM ATHLNOW asoav

000'00S

000°000't

000°008‘}

000'000°C

000°'005'Z

000'000°

000'00S'€

SNOT1VO







B
500
'.:ﬁ“"
esi V1 0a
B a0 @
‘;;0.0

FLUID RESOURCE
MANAGEMENT

CONTRACTORS LICENSE #937346

gust 3, 2022

Avila Beach Community Services District
100 San Luis Street
Avila Beach, CA 93424

SUBJECT: JULY 2022 MONTHLY FACILITY REPORT FOR THE AVILA BEACH COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT
WASTEWATER TREATMENT PLANT, WATER SYSTEM, AND COLLECTION SYSTEM

WASTEWATER TREATMENT PLANT

Areas within the wastewater plant that are known to accumulate solids continue to be manually cleaned on a regular basis. The
Chiorine Contact Chamber floor is vacuumed out on a weekly basis. These solids, if left to decompose, can have a negative effect on

the effluent quality leaving the facility.

Staff responded to a callout with the influent pump 2 tripping and removed the item. Checked pumps and confirmed everything was in
good working order.

The air scrubber exhaust results were greater than 2 ppmv due to the air scrubber media being completely exhausted. We replaced the
current 3x3 unit with a larger 4x4 unit that will last over twice the life. (Installation happened on August 2")

WATER SYSTEM

The small water storage tank continues to be used as standby, with FRM staff monitoring the water quality in the tank and flushing as
needed. FRM Staff continues to monitor the chiorine residuals and provide additional chlorine as needed. Staff has been performing

distribution flushing on an as-needed basis.
COMPLIANCE RECORD AND PLANT PERFORMANCE

1ff compiled the data to complete the monthly Self-Monitoring Report and Discharge Monitoring Report in California Integrated Water
Quality System (CIWQS). Once approved, the reports are uploaded into CIWQS and certified by ABCSD Staff.

Plant Design for Influent BOD is 270 mg/L. The permit limit for Effluent TSS and BOD is a Monthly Average of 40 mg/L with a Daily
Maximum of 90 mg/L.

Sincerely,
FLUID RESOURCE MANAGEMENT

ATTACHMENTS

Self-Monitoring Report

ABCSD Average Daily WWTP Effluent Flow (2020-2022)
ABCSD Monthly Total WWTP Effluent Flow (2020-2022)
Port San Luis Monthly Total Flow (2020-2022)

Monthly Average Influent BOD (2020-2022)

Monthly Average Effluent BOD (2020-2022)

Monthly Water Purchased from Lopez (2020-2022)
ABCSD Monthly Water Sold (2020-2022)

FLUIDRESOURCEMANAGEMENT.COM | 805.597.7100
ERMINFO@FRM-OPS.COM | 2385 PRECISION DRIVE, ARROYO GRANDE, CA 93420




DISCHARGER SELF-MONITORING

California Regional Water Avila Beach CSD ORDER R3-2017-0025
QusiRy Gontral BeaTY, NPDES CA0047830
Central Coast Region Wastewater Treatment WDID 3 400101001
P S Facility Month: JULY 2022
Effluent and Influent Monitoring
Py o G o Besily | o v | ‘Eeent | nuont | infoent | Efuant
pate| Totar | Max | Ava | Byen o [l Date | “gop 1SS BOD TSS | Oil& Grease
(gpm) | (9PM) | coliform | Coliform | Residuat (24HC) | (24HC) | (24HC) | (24HC) | (Grab)
1 ]0.053382| 77 37 <0.02 713122 34 20 393 254
2 |0.066223 87 46 <0.02 717122 24 19 269 306
3 |0.071869 88 50 <0.02 7/10/22 27 13 462 295
4 10.065752 77 46 <0.02 7114122 23 9 398 288 2.7 DNQ
5 ]0.058881 92 41 9 <2 <0.02 7M7/22 38 31 404 797
6 |0.050947| 74 35 <0.02 7121122 3 25 365 441
7 10.050577 76 35 4 <2 <0.02 7124422 32 28 461 560
8 ]0.059891| 163 42 <0.02 7/28/22 33 30 312 290
9 |0.070098| 83 49 <0.02 7131/22
10 |0.066333| 81 46 <0.02
11 |0.058396 83 41 <0.02 Min 23 9 269 254 2.7 DNQ
12 | 0.05413 73 38 13 <2 <0.02 Mean 30.3 21.9 383.0 403.9 2.7 DNQ
13 |0.060723| 81 42 <0.02 Max 38 31 462 797 2.7 DNQ
14 | 0.0623 80 43 2 8 <0.02 BOD Removal: 92.1% TSS Removal: 94.6%
15 |0.066688 81 46 <0.02 Effluent Monitoring
16 | 0.07222| 119 50 <0.02 Weekly | Weekly | Weekly | Weekly
Date | Set. Solids | Turbidity pH Temp °F
17 |0.069315| 100 48 <0.02 (Grab) (Grab) (Grab) {Grab)
18 ]0.060649 73 42 <0.02 711122 <0.1 35.6 7.2 74
19 |0.059780 71 4 <2 <2 <0.02 7114422 <0.1 20.7 7.2 73
20 |0.053577 69 37 <0.02 7121122 <0.1 30.0 7.3 74
21 |0.056941 67 39 <2 <2 <0.02 7/28/22 0.1 35.5 74 74
22 |0.065720| 99 46 <0.02
23 |0.070870| 107 49 <0.02 Min <0.1 20.7 7.2 73
24 |0.065127| 110 47 <0.02 Mean <0.1 30.5 7.3 74
25 |0.059321 95 41 <0.02 Max 0.1 35.6 74 74
26 |0.063980, 135 45 <2 <2 <0.02 Effluent Limits
27 |0.068812 134 48 <0.02 Parameter Units Monthly Avg | Weekly Avg | Dally Max
28 |0.066407| 136 46 22 2 <0.02 BOD mg/L 40 60 90
29 |0.042778| 119 29 <0.02 Suspended Solids mg/L 40 60 90
30 |0.077528| 153 54 <0.02 Qil and Grease mg/L. 25 40 75
31 |0.069341| 111 48 Turbidity NTU 75 100 225
Min | 0.042778 67 29 <2 <2 <0.02 7 Sample Median: 23
Mean|0.062566| 96.6 | 43.4 6.3 13 | <0.02 Total Coliform | o More than once in 30 days: 240
Max |0.077528| 163 54 13 8 <0.02 Daily Maxiumum: 2,400
Total | 1.939560| Effluent dally (dry weather) flow NTE 0.2 MGD (mean). Chiorine Residual mg/L 6 Month Median: 0.3 1.2
pH pH units Between 6.0 - 9.0
Influent Brine Received Sludge Removal Settleable Solids mL/L 1.0 1.5 3.0
Date | Volume (Gallons) Date Gallons BOD/TSS Removal % 275% iy
N/A 7/6/22 4,500 -
I certify under penaity of perjury that the foregoing is true and accurate and
that the sampling procedure and analysis used are as specified in the Was
Discharge Order for this facility. "
SIGNATURE: DATE:
PRINTED NAME: TITLE:




HLNOW

onv anr NOP AV Hdv HvIN g34 NvT

03a AON 100 d3s

| zzozw Lzozw ozoz= |

(zzoz - 0202)
MOT4 LNIN1443 d1LMM ATIVA IOVHIAVY asoav

0000}

00002

000°0¢

000'0v

000'0S

000°09

000'0<

AVd ¥3d SNOTIVO




HLNOW

J3d AON 100 d3s onv ane NAT AVA Hdv YN g34 NV

| zeoz= Lzoz= 0z0Ze |

(zzoz - 0202)
MOTd4 ININT443 dLMM TVLOL ATHLNOW asoHav

000'00S

000°000'}

000'005°}

000'000°2

000'005'2

HLNOW ¥3d SNOTIVO




HLNOW

ne NN AVIN HdV VYN g3 NV

| zzoz= 1zoz= ozOZ= |

J3da AON 100 d3s8 DNV
(zzoZ - 0202)

MOT1d V101 ATHLNONI SINT NVS L¥0d

000°05

000°001

000'0G}

000'002

000‘0S2

000°00€

SNOT1VO




HLNON

ne NAr AV Hdv dVYN 934 NV

o3d AON 100 d3as onv

| ubiseQ dimMM—— ZZ0Zws=  LZ0Zwmm  QZOZwes |

(zzoz - 0Z02)
aog LNaN14NI 39VH3AVY ATHLNOW asogayv

001

ooz

0oe

0ot

00S

009

/6w




NAr AV Hdv gV 834 NP

0s

Hwi ebesony Aeq 0= ZZ0Twe=  LZ0Zwe= (202w _

(zzoz

- 0202)

dod 1N3N1443 3OVAHIAV ATHLNOW dsoOav

1/bw




HLNOW

onvy ane NP AVIA Hdv v g34 NV

000°00S

000°000'L

000'006°L

000'000'C

000°005°2

000'000°¢

000'005'€

| zeozs \eoz= ozoz= |

230 AON 100 d3s
(zzoz - 0202)

Z3d0O71 NO¥d d3SVHIUNG ¥F1LVM ATHLNOW asoav

SNOT1VO




oNv anr NAr AVIN dv dvY ga34d NV

000°005

000'000'4

000'00S°1

0000002

23a AON 120 d3s

000'005°2

000°000°¢

000'005°S

| zzoz= 120z 020z~ |

(zzoz - 0202)
d10S 3¥31VM ATHLNOW asoav

SNOT1IVO







AVILA BEACH
COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT

Post Office Box 309, Avila Beach, CA. 93424

MEMORANDUM

TO: Board of Directors

FROM: Brad Hagemann, General Manager @
DATE: August 9, 2022

SUBJECT: Consolidation of District Election with the San Luis Obispo County General
Election; Resolution No. 2022-08

Recommendation:
Approve Resolution No. 2022-08

Funding:
Costs for District elections will be funded out of the Administration budget. The cost of an

election will vary depending upon the number of candidates filing for election, but have ranged
from a few hundred dollars to several thousand dollars. The FY 2020-21 Administrative Budget
includes sufficient funds to cover the costs. Historically, the District has had minimal costs

associated with elections.

Discussion:

‘Attached for Board review is Resolution No. 2022-08 requesting Consolidation of the District’s
General Election with the Statewide General Election to be held on November 8, 2022. As the
Board will recall, by having the County coordinate and consolidate our election with other

agencies, the overall cost is greatly reduced.

This year the District will have the election of 3 full term members to the Board on the ballot.
The terms of President Kelley, Vice President Najarian and Director Helenius are up for full term
(four year) election. A “Declaration of Candidacy” must be filed between July 18, and August
12, 2022 for a candidate to be eligible for the November Ballot. The cost of including a
“Statement of Qualifications™ for the ballot information will be paid by the candidate.

The “Calendar of Events” as provided by the County Clerk’s Office is attached for Board
members information. The attached “Notice to County Elections Official” was filed with the

Clerk’s Office.



AVILA BEACH COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT

Resolution No. 2022-08

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE
AVILA BEACH COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT
REQUESTING CONSOLIDATION OF THEIR BIENNIAL ELECTION WITH THE
NOVEMBER 8, 2022 CONSOLIDATED GENERAL ELECTION

WHEREAS, an election shall be conducted on November 8, 2022 for this District pursuant to the
Uniform District Election Law commencing with Elections Code Section 10500; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Elections Code Section 10555, said election may be consolidated with any
other elections pursuant to Part 3,(commencing with Section 10400); and

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors requests the San Luis Obispo County Board of Supervisors
consolidate this District's General District Election with any other election which may be held on the

same day;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Board of Directors, as follows: The Board of
Supervisors of San Luis Obispo County is hereby requested to consolidate the General District Election
of this District to be held on Tuesday, November 8, 2022, with all other elections held on the same
date. This request is made pursuant to Section 10555 and 10400, et seq of the California Electio-
Code. The Board of Directors agrees to reimburse, upon presentation of a bill, the County of San L.
Obispo in full for the services performed relating to this election.

ON MOTION of Director , seconded by
Director , and on the following roll call vote to wit:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSENT:

The foregoing resolution is hereby adopted this 9th day of August, 2022.

Attest:

Peter Kelley, President

Brad Hagemann
SECRETARY TO BOARD



WYOLE0: 1 TEOZLUY Jaus] pue Heq Wud
i Jo | abfeg ARSI AQ ISTT WLGUINDY] - 900UWIO

g “SjuaquInaY| [0y

ON  ~TRSIEIEA WAGUINY
I ............................ Kped VZYEB BD Youvag epay ¥CVEG BD YaBag ejny
papag v PIRaIPIEoddy 6ZY X098 Og  ippv rewy IS jonbiy uBS ZgL PPV SO
S/ T Aunog aouapsay
TTOTROTL - RLOTUOEL ¥ oN Parg - AU unmEN ey €-9izy
oN PRIBITA WAQUINILY
I ............................. Req $¥ZVE6 8D youeg wiiay $Z¥L6 BD yoaeq 8liny
papaE popamapmoddy ¥ Xod 0d  wpvien IS 1eejBy ues Je) P saY
sag Aunod sauapisay 1GEZ-665{c08)
CTOTICOMTL - BLOTILOICE ¥ oN T PAI - AN SNIUSIH ARy UUAT  Z-glzp
oN T PIEIBA JUIQUINRY
I ............................. Rreg ¥ZYES 8D Yaveg ejay YZyEe ') Yoveq BNy
papag papaRpamoddy 6E8 X0 Od  _ippy yem IS SINTUBS GBI 0PV SRRy
) Aunan asuaprsay 9T6C-565(508)
TTOUTOTL - BLOTIIOTL b oN TN - agumw Aotfoy Auiad said | - gy
, HOLONIIG WIS S9AISG AiUNunuey Goesg Ay §iev
oN PAEIEA JAQUINU
|l o fyed YZYE6 B Yoeeg visy ¥ZvE6 BD Worag Ay
uzaeA of paoddy - papapeNcddy viTx0g 04 ppvpen iS [oBlBY Ueg (G PPV SaY
SR AunoD aouapsay Z9L-6+6(0€5)
¥COT/90MCL - 0Z0ZIVOITY ¥ oN 13943 - Waquinau| Auag auRigupsuy - oL2y
oN T PIIRIBA JUIQUINIYY
[ [ fed VZYE6 VO YoBog Biay ¥ZYE6 v ‘Yoseg evjay
ueIBA of palmoddy " papaiypapoddy LLX080d  uppvien SCQMdv Ul syeQ uasdp obz PPV SaY
T S Aunag souapisay
YZOCI90/CL - QZaTivOiCE 4 oN T Pagg - wagunaw

| - Rauudy| Aoty PiEMoH 0 -0z
a HO103x10 1318810 539105 AUNWWOD yorag ElIAY oy
PUISIg sexaag AUUnuuGy Usesg enay s

IRCHLLINS

SE£SD 0} 5£89 abv=v Jou1siq
Joinsia Aqisry,  quinaug







AVILA BEACH

COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT
Post Office Box 309, Avila Beach, CA. 93424

MEMORANDUM

TO: Board of Directors

FROM: Brad Hagemann, General Manage@
DATE: August 9, 2022

SUBJECT: Public Hearing Relating to Solid Waste Franchise Rate Increase
(Actions Required: Open Public Hearing: Receive Public Comments; Tabulate
Written and Oral Protests;; Close Public Hearing; Consider Adoption of
Resolution No. 2022-09 Adopting Solid Waste Rates for Avila Beach CSD)

Recommendation: Open Public Hearing; Receive Comments; Tabulate Written and Oral
Protests; Close Public Hearing; Adopt Resolution No. 2022-09 Adopting Solid Waste Rates for
Avila Beach Community Services District effective August 15, 2022.

Background/Discussion:
On October 20, 2021, the South County Sanitary Services’ (SCSS) submitted a request to the

District for a 24.65% rate increase. Consistent with previous garbage service rate increase
requests, the larger SCSS agencies, including the City of Arroyo Grande, City of Grover Beach,
Oceano CSD and the City of Pismo Beach, retained William Statler to perform a review of the
proposed Rate Increase. In March 2022, after considerable discussion and negotiation, Statler
issued a report to the “larger SCSS agencies” that concluded a base rate increase of 22.19% is
justifiable and appropriate. SCSS agreed to the reduced rate increase and the larger SCSS
agencies are moving forward with implementing the base rate increase recommended in Statler’s
report. On June 3, 2022, SCSS provided a Revised Rate Increase Request that reflected the
approved rate reduction. The June 3, 2022, Revised Rate Increase Request is provided as an

attachment to this Staff Report.

Historically the Avila Beach CSD has taken advantage of the analysis and negotiations of the
larger SCSS agencies regarding rate increases. Staff recommends the Board once again take
advantage of this analysis and consider a rate increase consistent with the other larger SCSS

agencies.

At the June 14, 2022, Board meeting the Board received a Staff Report, discussed the proposed
rate increase with Mr. Jeff Clarin, District Manager for San Luis Garbage Company, and
approved the issuance of a Prop 218 Hearing Notice for the rate increase, setting the Hearing



date on August 9®, 2022.  On June 21, 2022, the Garbage Company circulated a Notice for
Public Hearing Regarding the proposed rate increase to all record owners.

Proposed Resolution No. 2022-09 will provide a 22.19% rate increase for most service
descriptions effective August 15, 2022 and allow for rate increases based on the Consumer Price
Index for the Bureau of Labor Statistics’ Consumer Price Index for “All Urban Consumers” based
on the U.S. City Average for the month of June 2022 for January 1, 2023, and the month of June
2023 for January 1, 2024. For example, if approved, monthly residential rates for a 32-gallon
waste wheeler will increase $4.58 from $20.63 per month to $25.20 per month. The complete
proposed rate increase was provided to all District record owners via US mail as part of the
Notice for this rate hearing and is included as an exhibit to Resolution No. 2022-09.

As of the writing of this Staff Report, staff has not received any protests.
In addition, staff is seeking approval from the Board to approve a budget adjustment of $16,000

from the Solid Waste Fund for the SCSS solid waste retroactive charges from May 2022 to
August 15, 2022.



RESOLUTION No. 2022-09

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
OF THE AVILA BEACH COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT
ADOPTING INCREASED RATES AND CHARGES FOR COMMERCIAL AND
RESIDENTIAL COLLECTION AND DISPOSAL OF SOLID WASTE PURSUANT TO
PROPOSITION 218 (CALIFORNIA CONSTITUTION ARTICLE XIII D)

WHEREAS, the Avila Beach Community Services district ("District") provides waste
disposal services within the District's service area pursuant to section 61100 of the Community

Services District Law; and

WHEREAS, South County Sanitary Service (the “Garbage Company”), pursuant to an
exclusive franchise agreement, currently provides commercial and residential collection and
disposal of solid waste services within the District service area; and

WHEREAS, Government Code section 61115 authorizes the District Board of Directors
(“Board”) to adopt rates or other charges for services provided by the District by Resolution; and

WHEREAS, Proposition 218 amended the California Constitution to establish a process
that public agencies must follow when imposing new or increased “property related fees”; and

WHEREAS, at least forty-five (45) days in advance of the public hearing at which this
Resolution was considered, the District mailed a notice of the public hearing, which included
notice of oral and written protest procedures against the proposed rate increase, to all affected
property owners and record owners in compliance with Section 6 of Article Xl D of the

California Constitution;

WHEREAS, on August 9, 2022, the Board held a public hearing regarding the District’s
proposed rate increase, considered public comment, and at its conclusion, the Board tabulated the
number of written and oral protests received, if any, and reported that there was not a majority
protest of the proposed rates by record owners; and

WHEREAS, based on facts and analysis presented by the District staff, the Staff Report,
written protests received prior to the close of the public hearing, if any, and public testimony
received, the Board finds:

A. The public hearing adopting this Resolution has been properly noticed pursuant to
Government Code section 54954.2 (The Brown Act) and Section 6 of Article XIII D of the
California Constitution. The 45-Day Notice of Public Hearing Regarding Proposed Solid Waste
Rate Increase is incorporated herein by this reference.

B. The written protests received by the District prior to the close of the public
hearing, if any, do not constitute a majority protest.

C. That the rates and charges adopted by this Resolution:

1. Are for the purposes of meeting operating expenses for providing solid waste
collection and disposal services within the District;

1



2. Do not exceed the funds required to provide commercial and residential solid
waste collection and disposal services; and

3. Do not exceed the proportional cost of services attributable to those parcels
receiving solid waste collection and disposal services.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, DETERMINED AND ORDERED by the
Avila Beach Community Services District Board of Directors as follows:

Section 1. Rates and Charges.

The rates and charges for commercial and residential collection and disposal of solid
waste, as established in Exhibit A, attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference, are
approved and adopted.

Section 2. Incorporation of Recitals.

The above recitals are true and correct and incorporated herein by this reference and
constitute findings of the District in support of this Resolution.

Section 3. Severability.

If any section, subsection, sentence, clause or phrase of this Resolution is for any reason
held to be unconstitutional, ineffective or in any manner in conflict with the laws of the United
States, or the State of California, such decision shall not affect the validity of the remaining
portions of this Resolution. The Board hereby declares that it would have adopted this
Resolution and each section, subsection, sentence, clause and phrase thereof, irrespective of the
fact that any one or more sections, subsections, sentences, clauses or phrases be declared
unconstitutional, ineffective, or in any manner in conflict with the laws of the United States or

the State of California.
Section 4. Effect of Repeal on Past Actions and Obligations.

This Resolution does not affect prosecutions for violations committed prior to the
effective date of this Resolution, and does not waive any fee or penalty due and unpaid on the
effective date of this Resolution.

Section 5. CEQA Findings.

The Boardt finds that the rates and charges adopted by this Resolution are exempt from
the California Environmental Quality Act pursuant to Public Resources Code section 21080,
subdivision (b)(8), and CEQA Guidelines section 15273.

Section 6. Inconsistency.

To the extent that the terms or provisions of this Resolution may be inconsistent or in
conflict with the terms or conditions of any prior District Ordinance(s), Motions, Resolutions,
Rules, or Regulations, governing the same subject matter thereof, then such inconsistent and



conflicting provisions of prior Ordinances, Motions, Resolutions, Rules, and Regulations are
hereby repealed.

Section 7. Effective Date.

This Resolution shall take effect immediately. The rates and charges adopted by this 2
Resolution shall take effect August ¥;2022.
5
On the motion of Director , seconded by Director and on the

following roll call vote, to wit:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:

The foregoing Resolution is hereby passed, approved and adopted by the Board of Directors of
the Avila Beach Community Services District this 9th day of August 2022.

Peter Kelley

President of the Board

AVILA BEACH COMMUNITY
SERVICES DISTRICT

ATTEST:

Brad Hagemann
General Manager
and Secretary to the Board



Notice of Public Hearing Regarding
Proposed Solid Waste Rate Increase

Record Owners and Customers:

This notice is intended to inform you that the Avila Beach Community Services District (the “CSD”) will hold a
special meeting regarding rate increases (the “Proposed Rate Increase”) proposed by South County Sanitary
Service (the “Garbage Company”) for properties receiving solid waste, recycling, and green waste services
within the CSD’s service area. The Proposed Rate Increase will be considered by the CSD at the date, time, and
location specified below. Consistent with the requirements of Proposition 218, this notice also provides you

with the following information:

The Date, Time, and Place of the Public Hearing;
The Reason for the Proposed Rate Increase;
The Basis for the Proposed Rate Increase; and
The Maijority Protest Procedures.

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING
The Public Hearing for the Proposed Rate Increase within the CSD’s service area will be held on:

Date: August9, 2022 Time: 1:00 PM
Place: Avila Beach CSD Boardroom located at 100 San Luis Street, Avila Beach, CA

At the Public Hearing, the CSD will consider all public comment in support of and in opposition to ti..
Proposed Rate Increase and whether or not a Majority Protest exists pursuant to the California Constitution
(as described below). If approved, the Proposed Rate Increase would become effective on August 15, 2022.

What is the Reason for the Proposed Rate Increase?

The Proposed Rate Increase is 22.19 percent for solid waste, recycling, and green waste/organics collection
services. The increase is necessary for the Garbage Company to continue to provide safe, environmentally
sound, and reliable solid waste, recycling, green waste/organics collection, transportation, and
disposal/processing services to properties located within the CSD’s service area. Several factors contribute to
this rate increase including, but not limited to: increased costs associated with the purchase and operation of
collection vehicles, fuel costs, labor costs, and increased costs associated with the organics digester facility.

The organics digester facility is required by California Senate Bill 1383 (SB 1383), and previously approved
California Assembly Bill 1826 (AB 1826). SB 1383 is a recently adopted state law that was passed with the goal
of reducing methane production. Methane is a potent greenhouse gas, with more than 80 times the warming
power of carbon dioxide, and is a major component of decomposing organic waste. In response to the harmful
effects of methane gas, Cal Recycle (a branch of the California Environmental Protection Agency) adopted
regulations implementing SB 1383 in the fall of 2020. ' Key components of SB 1383 include implementing
organic waste collection programs (including food waste), monitoring organics carts for contamination, and
reporting data. AB 1826 requires local jurisdictions to develop a program to divert organic waste from landfi’
to an authorized composting facility like an anaerobic digester.

What is the Basis of the Proposed Rate Increase?



The Proposed Rate Increase of 22.19 percent is based on the following cost increases incurred by the Garbage
Company:

1. 5.88 percent of the Proposed Rate Increase is for capital investment costs of new collection
vehicles, replacement containers, and additional containers to meet the demands of SB

1383 compliance.
2. 6.20 percent of the Proposed Rate Increase is for increased capital equipment investments

and escalating operating expenses related to the organics digester.
3. 5.63 percent of the Proposed Rate Increase is for market wage adjustments to attract and

retain safe, quality employees.
4. 1.88 percent of the Proposed Rate Increase is for increases to the commingle processing

fee.
5. 2.60 percent of the Proposed Rate Increase is for increases in other operational expenses.

The table attached to this Notice shows how the Proposed Rate Increase will impact your bill.

In addition, commencing on January 1, 2023 and January 1, 2024, rates shall be increased based on the

following:

1. Increases, if any, in the Consumer Price Index (CPI) for the Bureau of Labor Statistics’
Consumer Price Index for “All Urban Consumers” based on the U.S. City Average for the
month of June 2022 for January 1, 2023, and the month of June 2023 for January 1, 2024.

At the March 9, 2022 San Luis Obispo County Integrated Waste Management Authority (IWMA) Board
Meeting, a 5.4 percent solid waste management fee was adopted to account for operational and capital cost

creases due largely to the implementation of SB 1383. The adopted fee became effective on July 1, 2022.
rhe CSD has authorized the Garbage Company to bill this fee on-behalf of the IWMA.

The IWMA is a Joint Powers Authority formed to plan and implement regional solid waste and hazardous
waste programs mandated by State law. The Joint Powers Agreement between the CSD and the IWMA can be
made available by the CSD upon request or on the IWMA website at www.iwma.com.

A copy of the 2022 Base Year Rate Adjustment Application, which provides additional information on the
proposed rate increases, is available at the CSD Boardroom located at 100 San Luis St. Avila Beach, CA.

How Do | Protest the Proposed Rate Increase?

Pursuant to Section 6 of Article XIll D of the California Constitution, the following persons may submit a
written protest against the Proposed Rate Increase to the Clerk of the Board before the close of the Public

Hearing referenced above.

= A record owner(s) of property (parcel(s)) receiving solid waste, recycling, and green waste services
within the CSD’s service area. If the person(s) signing the protest, as an owner, is not shown on the
last equalized assessment roll as the owner of the parcel(s), then the protest must contain or be
accompanied by written evidence showing that such person signing the protest is the record owner
of the parcel(s) receiving services;
or

= A tenant(s) whose name appears on the Garbage Company’s records as the customer of record for
the corresponding parcel receiving solid waste, recycling, and green waste services within the CSD's

service area (tenant-customer).



A valid written protest must contain a statement that you protest the Proposed Rate Increase, the address or
Assessor’s Parcel Number (APN) of the parcel or parcels which receive solid waste, recycling, and green waste
services, and a signature by either the record owner or the tenant-customer of the parcel or parcels. Or~
written protest per parcel shall be counted in calculating a majority protest to the Proposed Rate Increc
subject to the requirements of Section 6 of Article Xl D of the California Constitution. Written protests will
not be accepted by e-mail or by facsimile. Verbal protests will not be counted in determining the existence of
a majority protest. To be counted, a protest must be received in writing by the Clerk of the Board before the
close of the Public Hearing referenced above.

Written protests regarding the solid waste rate increase may be mailed to:

Avila Beach CSD
Attn: Clerk of the Board
100 San Luis Street
Avila Beach, CA 93424

Written protests may also be personally delivered to the Clerk of the Board at CSD Boardroom located at 100
San Luis St. Avila Beach, CA.

If valid written protests are presented by a majority of record owners and/or tenants-customers of parcels
receiving solid waste, recycling, and green waste services within the CSD’s service area, then the CSD will not
increase the rates for the services.



EFFECTIVE AUGUST 15, 2022

SOUTH COUNTY SANITARY SERVICES, INC.

LA BEACH CSD
Current Proposed
Monthly Rate Monthly Rate
Pickups Effective Proposed Base Year Effective
Service Description Per Week 1/1/2021 Rate Increase 8/15/2022
RESIDENTIAL:

32 Gallon Waste Wheeler 1 $20.63 $4.58 $25.20
64 Gallon Waste Wheeler 1 $34.07 $7.56 $41.63
96 Gallon Waste Wheeler 1 $47.52 $10.55 $58.06

Residential customers must use the waste wheelers provided by the garbage company. This solid service fee for residential
trash collections (container with black or gray lid) includes once a week pick-up of one greenwaste/organics container

| (green lid), and one recycling container (blue lid).

APARTMENTS, TRIPLEX, DUPLEX

Rates are the same as commercial rates (below).

COMMERCIAL DUMPSTERS - ALL AREAS:

1 yd dumpster 1 $100.17 $22.23 $122.40
1 yd dumpster 2 $144.12 $31.99 $176.11
1 yd dumpster 3 $190.43 $42.26 $232.69
1 yd dumpster 4 $234.39 $52.02 $286.41
1 yd dumpster 5 $283.17 $62.85 $346.02
1 yd dumpster 6 $329.59 $73.15 $402.74
1 yd dumpster 7 $439.41 $97.52 $536.93
1.5 yd dumpster 1 $119.63 $26.55 $146.18
1.5 yd dumpster 2 $182.99 $40.61 $223.60
1.5 yd dumpster 3 $246.63 $54.74 $301.37
1.5 yd dumpster 4 $344.20 $76.39 $420.59
1.5 yd dumpster 5 $419.87 $93.19 $513.06
1.5 yd dumpster 6 $500.45 $111.07 $611.52
1.5 yd dumpster 7 $661.64 $146.84 $808.48
2 yd dumpster 1 $129.39 $28.72 $158.11
2 yd dumpster 2 $212.35 $47.13 $259.48
2 yd dumpster 3 $302.61 $67.16 $369.77
2 yd dumpster 4 $441.92 $98.08 $540.00
2 yd dumpster 5 $542.07 $120.31 $662.38
Lk 2 yd dumpster 6 $646.95 $143.58 $790.53
L 2 yd dumpster 7 $886.13 $196.67 $1,082.80
3 vd dumpster 1 $153.76 $34.13 $187.89




Current Proposed
Monthly Rate Monthly Rate
Pickups Effective Proposed Base Year Effective
Service Description Per Week 1/1/2021 Rate Increase 8/15/2022
3 yd dumpster 2 $287.99 $63.92 $35. |

3 yd dumpster 3 $402.79 $89.40 $492.19
3 yd dumpster 4 $717.63 $159.27 $876.90
3 yd dumpster 5 $851.98 $189.09 $1,041.07
3 yd dumpster 6 $995.96 $221.04 $1,217.00
3 yd dumpster 7 $1,371.89 $304.48 $1,676.37
4 yd dumpster 1 $222.10 $49.29 $271.39
4 yd dumpster 2 $334.53 $74.25 $408.78
4 yd dumpster 3 $480.89 $106.73 $587.62
4 yd dumpster 4 $754.38 $167.43 $921.81
4 yd dumpster 5 $934.91 $207.49 $1,142.40
4 yd dumpster 6 $1,061.95 $235.69 $1,297.64
4 yd dumpster 7 $1,650.24 $366.25 $2,016.49

The rates shown above include the monthly container rental fee.

COMMERCIAL - OTHER CHARGES:

Rates for all commercial customers include recycling or greenwaste/organics pickup once per week, included with the
garbage service rate. Customers can choose from a 64- or 96-gallon blue commingled recycle waste wheeler or a 32- or
64-gallon organics waste wheeler included with the garbage service rate (96-galion waste wheelers can only be used with
green waste due to weight). If you need a bin for recycling there is a charge (see below).

If you need more frequent recycling, including organics/greenwaste service, it can be provided at a 50% discount
from the garbage service rates for the specified level of service required.

COMMERCIAL GARBAGE CANS - ALL AREAS:

32 Gallon Waste Wheeler 1 $28.88 $6.41 $35.29
32 Gallon Waste Wheeler 2 $40.86 $9.07 $49.93
64 Gallon Waste Wheeler 1 $48.34 $10.73 $59.07
64 Gallon Waste Wheeler 2 $77.40 $17.18 $94.58
96 Gallon Waste Wheeler 1 $60.15 $13.35 $73.50
96 Gallon Waste Wheeler 2 $86.53 $19.20 $105.73

MISCELLANEOUS CHARGES - ALL CUSTOMERS:

Overstacked Garbage & extra bags

Minimum/unit each $5.51 $1.22 $6.73

Overstacked Greenwaste & extra bags

Minimum/unit each $6.37 $1.41 $7

Overstacked Blue Bin & extra bags

Minimum/unit each $2.77 $0.61 $3.38




Current

Proposed

Monthly Rate Monthly Rate
Pickups Effective Proposed Base Year Effective
Service Description Per Week 1/1/2021 Rate Increase 8/15/2022
Jard service (per can or commodity)
IN ADDITION TO STANDARD
GARBAGE RATES per month $13.75 $3.05 $16.80
Monthly charge for additional 96-gallon
| green waste service per month $6.37 $1.41 $7.78
Monthly charge for additional 32, 64 or
96-gallon recycle service per month $3.19 $0.71 $3.89
Extended Vacation Service per month $15.79 $3.50 $19.29
Waste wheeler cleaning each time $20.52 $4.55 $25.07
Trip charge each time $13.76 $3.05 $16.81
Non-payment downsize service each time $33.07 $7.34 $40.41
Non-payment redeliver waste wheeler each time $33.07 $7.34 $40.41
Non-payment reconnect service each time $39.44 $8.75 $48.19
Small item pickup (TV, toilet) each $32.27 $7.16 $39.43
Appliance pickup-residential each $45.51 $10.10 $55.61
Garbage extras on your scheduled
pickup day per yard $11.62 $2.58 $14.20
Garbage extras -NOT ON YOUR
SCHEDULED PICKUP DAY per yard $32.04 $7.11 $39.15
. Re-deliver bin on stopped acct each time $390.44 $8.75 $48.19
Sunday Service (in additional to
| garbage service level) per month $68.87 $15.29 $84.16
Stand by time per hour $67.80 $15.05 $82.85
Lock Charges per month $7.66 $1.70 $9.36
Clean Up Week per item $11.97 $2.66 $14.63
Extra bin cleaning $61.55 $13.66 $75.21
Damage/Destruction of bins or waste
wheelers replacement/repair at market price
Larger than residential appliance or
| glass, glass doors, or plate glass By quote only
Short Term Dumpsters:
Delivery & Pickup-Bin $39.44 $8.75 $48.19
Delivery & Pickup-Waste Wheeler $13.76 $3.056 $16.81
Rental Per Day $2.92 $0.65 $3.57
Empties Per Yard $32.04 $7.11 $39.15
Empties (Garbage) Per 32 Gal $5.51 $1.22 $6.73
Empties (Recycle) Per 32 Gal $2.27 $0.50 $2.77
~mpties (Green Waste) Per 32 Gal $6.38 $1.42 $7.80
...atlress:
Twin Each $17.91 $3.97 $21.88
Double Each $17.91 $3.97 $21.88




Current Proposed
Monthly Rate Monthly Rate
Pickups Effective Proposed Base Year Effective
Service Description Per Week 1/1/2021 Rate Increase 8/15/2022
Queen Each $17.91 $3.97 $20.
King Each $17.91 $3.97 $21.88

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION ALL CUSTOMERS:

1. Customers requesting Temporary Bins or Roll-off Box Service can call the office for current rates
2. Polystyrene (Styrofoam, Plastic #6) is not collected for recycling and should be thrown away as trash. Please bag Styrofoam
packing peanuts before placing in trash container.
3. Itis encouraged to bag your trash in the garbage container but do not bag your recyclables or green waste in their respective

containers and keep it loose.

4. Recycling, Greenwaste/Organcis and Garbage containers should be spaced 3 feet apart away from any obstacles (i.e mailboxes,
cars, etc) before 6:00am on collection service day.
5. The fee schedule above only includes the Garbage Company rates and does not include IWMA fees, which are separately noted

on the billings.

6. Cleaning fees will be billed on a time and materials basis

7. Late Fees are imposed for residential customers over 30 days delinquent. The fee is 1.5% per month of the outstanding charge,

with a minimum fee of $5.00. No prior notice is required, as this late fee policy is stated at the bottom of every bill.

8. Customers can be responsible for contamination fees

Any additional recycling services are charged out at 50% of the garbage rate.




AVILA BEACH
COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT

Post Office Box 309, Avila Beach, CA. 93424

MEMORANDUM

TO: Board of Directors

FROM: Brad Hagemann, General Managef@
DATE: August 9, 2022

SUBJECT: Review/Adoption of Ordinance No. 2022-01 Regarding Solid Waste Services by
the Avila Beach Community Services District and Approve the Amended Joint
Powers Agreement with the Integrated Waste Management Authority

Recommendation:

1. Receive Public testimony on the draft Ordinance;

2. Waive full reading and adopt Ordinance No. 2022-01 by title; and

3. Authorize the General Manager to sign a letter designating IWMA to act as a delegate on behalf
of the District for the responsibilities of compliance with Senate Bill 1383 and the corresponding
regulations in Title 14 of the California Code of Regulations, Division 7, Chapter 12 to the extent

allowed by law.
4. Approve by Motion the Amended Joint Powers Agreement with the Integrated Waste

Management Authority.

Background and Discussion:

Senate Bill No. 1383 (SB 1383) was signed into law on September 19, 2016, to reduce organic
waste disposal by 75% and increase edible food recovery by 20%, by 2025. SB 1383 is the most
significant waste reduction mandate to be adopted in the State of California in the last 30 years and
requires all jurisdictions to implement a mandatory organic recycling ordinance by January 1,
2022. This Legislation requires all businesses, residents, and multi-family apartments to have
access to recycling programs that capture food scraps, landscaping waste, among other organic

waste materials.

As a result of SB 1383, the California Department of Resources Recycling and Recovery
(CalRecycle), which is the State department tasked with administering California's waste and
recycling programs, developed prescriptive regulations to achieve the State's outlined organic
waste disposal goals by 2025. Over the last two years, CalRecycle conducted informal hearings
with local governments and stakeholders to develop regulations to achieve the State's organic
waste reduction mandates. In November 2020, CalRecycle released the final regulations for SB

1383.

The adoption of Ordinance No. 2022-01 will meet the requirements of SB 1383 and provide
necessary rules and regulations for the disposal and collection of waste materials within the
District. Single family residences may be subject to a low-population waiver pursuant to Article 3



in Title 14 of the California Code of Regulations, Sections 18984 through 18984.13. The General
Manager applied for and obtained a low-population waiver for the District. The Low Population
Waiver waives a portion of the requirements for the ABCSD. However, ABCSD still needs to
adopt an Ordinance updating the District’s Solid Waste Management Rules.

The attached ordinance includes the following required provisions:

1.010 Title of Ordinance

1.020 Effective Date

1.030 Purpose of the Ordinance

1.040 Definitions

1.110 Requirements for Single-Family Premises

1.120 Requirements for Multi-Family Residential Dwellings

1.130 Requirements for Commercial Businesses

1.140 Waivers for Multi-Family Premises and Commercial Premises
1.150 Requirements for Commercial Edible Food Generators

1.160 Requirements for Food Recovery Organizations and Services
1.170 Requirements for Haulers and Facility Operators

1.180 Self-Hauler Requirements

1.210 Inspections and Investigations

1.310 Collection Rates and Collection Of Delinquent Fees And Charges
1.320 Franchise for Collection — Authorization

1.410 Regulations For Accumulation Of Solid Waste, Cast Offs, Rubble, And Refuse
1.420 Clearing of Accumulated Solid Waste And Rubble

1.430 Storage and Placement Of Standard Containers For Pick-Up
1.440 Unlawful Collection

1.450 Condition of Collection Trucks

1.460 Exceptions

1.510 Enforcement

Public Resources Code Section 42652.5 authorizes local jurisdictions to collect reasonable and
necessary fees to recover the costs of implementing SB 1383 regulations, those fees include:

1. Garbage rates will need to be increased to add the cost of SB 1383 activities undertaken by
the franchise hauler to comply with the regulation.

2. IWMA fee that is on the garbage bill is listed as a separate line item. The IWMA Board
approved a 1.25% fee increase in June 2021, but due in part to subsequent actions taken by the
SLO County Board of Supervisors regarding the IWMA JPA membership, on March 9, 2022, the
IWMA approved a 5.4% charge on all residential and commercial revenue.

On June 3, 2022, South County Sanitary Services submitted an updated Rate Increase Request that
addresses the anticipated revenue needs to implement SB 1383. The Board will consider the
proposed rate increase as a separate item on today’s meeting agenda.

Staff recommends that the Board Adopt of Ordinance No. 2022-01, and designate the INMA to
act as a delegate on behalf of the District for certain responsibilities in order to meet the
requirements of SB 1383. Staff also recommends that the Board approve the Amended Joint
Powers Agreement with the IWMA.



ORDINANCE NO. 2022-01

AN ORDINANCE OF THE AVILA BEACH COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT TO
AMEND THE DISTRICT’S SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT RULES AND ADOPT
MANDATORY SOLID WASTE, ORGANIC WASTE, AND RECYCLING
MATERIALS RULES AND REGULATIONS

TABLE OF CONTENTS
1.010 Title of Ordinance..........cccicnimninnicn e e ssnrasasss 3
1.020 Effective Date .......c.coccivceeririinincerinniienis s ssssisssssses s snsssansssssss s snas s s snsnnse 3
1.030 Purpose of the Ordinance ...........cocccvinimninmsmee s 3
1.040 DeflNitioNS....c.cuvummiiimmmmiiiiiiiniinirirrrerssssss e sssresses s s s s mnananmnssassnsmenssaeanaansannannas 3
1.110 Requirements for Single-Family Premises ........c.ccouvmsmmensinsissssnncenmnmninennecsnnensas 16
1.120 Requirements for Multi-Family Residential Dwellings .........ccccccvcniiiiinennanneee. 17
1.130 Requirements for Commercial BUSINESSES .......ccovviremssmnimssisssmsenseenininseacnenanas 18
1.140 Waivers for Multi-Family Premises and Commercial Premises...................... 21
1.150 Requirements for Commercial Edible Food Generators................cccvvnmmenanenses 23
1.160 Requirements for Food Recovery Organizations and Services.........cccccec...un 25
1.170 Requirements for Haulers and Facility Operators............cccusieeeeiminninniennecnnnnne 26
1.180 Self-Hauler ReqUIirements.........ccccviriemeeniciimmeememsesiinssssisesssssmssssnsssssssmsssssssnnnes 28
1.210 Inspections and Investigations ..........ccccccvimmimmeeiiniinimm s 29
1.310 Collection Rates and Collection Of Delinquent Fees And Charges............... 30
1.320 Franchise for Collection — Authorization .........c.cccccecvvicmmminiinsennniicenaeacenes 31
1.410 Regulations For Accumulation Of Solid Waste, Cast Offs, Rubble, And Refuse
............................................................................................................... 31
1.420 Clearing Of Accumulated Solid Waste And Rubble ..........coceomerrrinininrcrrecrinnns 32
1.430 Storage And Placement Of Standard Containers For Pick-Up....................... 33
1.440 Unlawful Collection.........c.cocciecrciirieririnsss s sssnnsenns 34
1.450 Condition of Collection TruCKS .....cciiemeerirmimmemmeemssininnrenr s smenesere s na e 34
1.460 EXCEOPLIONS ... ceeeeeee e ssssesein s s s s s s s s s s s aa s mnaa s s s s nesnsanen e e R ean s 34
1.510 ENfOrcement ......cc.cciriemeiiiiniirir s inis s s s s nssenssesn s s s n s e nsamemsansm s asaa s s s s a e s e e s anns 35

Mandatory Solid Waste, Organic Waste, and Recycling Materials Ordinance Page 1 of 40



ORDINANCE No. 2022-01

AN ORDINANCE OF THE AVILA BEACH COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT TO
AMEND THE DISTRICT'S SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT RULES AND ADOPT
MANDATORY SOLID WASTE, ORGANIC WASTE, AND RECYCLING
MATERIALS RULES AND REGULATIONS AND MAKE A DETERMINATION OF
EXEMPTION UNDER CEQA

WHEREAS, the Avila Beach Community Services District (“District”) is a community
services district duly formed under Government Code Section 61000, et seq. to provide
community services within the District's service area; and

WHEREAS, Government Code Section 61100, subdivision (c), authorizes
Community Services Districts to provide the collection and disposal of solid waste; and

WHEREAS, Assembly Bill 939 of 1989, the California Integrated Waste Management
Act of 1989 (California Public Resources Code Section 40000, et seq., as amended,
supplemented, superseded, and replaced from time to time), requires jurisdictions to reduce,
reuse, and recycle (including composting) Solid Waste generated to the maximum extent
feasible before any incineration or landfill disposal of waste, to conserve water, energy, and
other natural resources, and to protect the environment; and

WHEREAS, Assembly Bili 341 of 2011 places requirements on Commercial
Businesses and Multi-Family Premises that generate a specified threshold amount of Solid
Waste to arrange for recycling services and requires jurisdictions to implement a mandatory
Commercial recycling program; and

WHEREAS, Assembly Bill 1826 of 2014 requires Commercial Businesses and Multi-
Family Premises that generate a specified threshold amount of Solid Waste, Recyclable
Materials, and Organic Materials per week to arrange for recycling services for that waste,
requires jurisdictions to implement a recycling program to divert Organic Materials from
Commercial Businesses and Multi-Family Premises subject to the law, and requires
jurisdictions to implement a mandatory Commercial Organic Materials recycling program; and

WHEREAS, SB 1383, the Short-Lived Climate Pollutant Reduction Act of 2016,
requires CalRecycle to develop regulations to reduce Organic Waste in landfills as a source
of methane. The regulations place requirements on multiple entities including jurisdictions,
residential households, Multi-Family Premises, Commercial Businesses, Commercial Edible
Food Generators, haulers, Self-Haulers, Food Recovery Organizations, and Food Recovery
Services to support achievement of the SB 1383 statewide Organic Waste disposal reduction

targets; and

WHEREAS, SB 1383, the Short-Lived Climate Pollutant Reduction Act of 2016,
requires jurisdictions to adopt and enforce an ordinance or enforceable mechanism to
implement relevant provisions of SB 1383 Regulations; and

WHEREAS, this Ordinance amends the District's Solid Waste Management Rules
(Ordinance No. 2006-01) and implements the rules, regulations, and the requirements of AB
341, AB 1826, and SB 1383.

Mandatory Solid Waste, Organic Waste, and Recycling Materials Ordinance Page 2 of 40



THE AVILA BEACH COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT DOES HEARBY ORDAIN
AS FOLLOWS:

SECTION 1.

The District's Solid Waste Rules, including, but not limited to, those set out in Ordinance No.
2006-01 are hereby amended as follows:

1.000 GENERAL PROVISIONS

1.010 Title of Ordinance

This chapter shall be entitled “Mandatory Solid Waste, Organic Waste, and Recycling
Materials Ordinance.”

1.020 Effective Date
This Ordinance shall be effective commencing on September 9, 2022.

1.030 Purpose of the Ordinance

The purpose of the Ordinance is to assure the continuance of the collection and
disposal of Solid Waste, Recyclable Materials, and Organic Waste for the benefit all
citizens of the District. It is necessary that rules, regulations, and procedures be
established for the health and safety of all residents and guests of the community.
Procedures related to the disposal and collection of Solid Waste, Organic Waste, and
Recyclable Materials and are established by the Franchisee and all parties subject to this
Ordinance are directed to the Franchisee to access general information and to start,

change, or verify service.

1.040 Definitions

The following words, terms, phrases, and their derivations have the meanings given
herein. When consistent with the context, words used in the present tense include the
future tense, and words in the singular number include the plural number.

(a) “Alternative Daily Cover (ADC)" has the same meaning as in Section 20690 of
Title 27 of the California Code of Regulations.

(b) “Alternative Intermediate Cover (AIC)" has the same meaning as in Section
20700 of Title 27 of the California Code of Regulations.

(c) “Bulky Item” means discarded appliances (including refrigerators), furniture,
tires, carpets, mattresses, Yard Trimmings and/or wood waste, and similar
large items which can be handled by two (2) people, weigh no more than two
hundred (200) pounds, and require special collection due to their size or nature,
but can be collected without the assistance of special loading equipment (such
as forklifts or cranes) and without violating vehicle load limits. Bulky Items must
be generated by the customer at the service address wherein the Bulky Items
are collected. Except as otherwise provided herein, Bulky ltems
do not include abandoned automobiles, large auto parts, trees, construction

Mandatory Solid Waste, Organic Waste, and Recycling Materials Ordinance Page 3 of 40



(d)

(e)

(f)

(9)

(h)

(i)

()

(k)

()

(m)

and demolition debris, or items herein defined as Excluded Waste.

“CalRecycle” means California's Department of Resources Recycling and
Recovery, which is the Department designated with responsibility for
developing, implementing, and enforcing SB 1383 Regulations on jurisdictions

(and others).

“California Code of Regulations” or “CCR” means the State of California Code
of Regulations. CCR references in this Ordinance are preceded with a number
that refers to the relevant Title of the CCR (e.g., “14 CCR’ refers to Title 14 of
CCR).

“Cast Offs” means discarded mattresses, couches, chairs, and other household
furniture, but does not include rubble or Solid Waste.

“District Enforcement Official” means the District General Manager, authorized
person(s), or the District Designee(s) who is/are partially or wholly responsible
for enforcing the Ordinance.

“Commercial Business” or “Commercial” means a firm, partnership,
proprietorship, joint-stock company, corporation, or association, whether for-
profit or nonprofit, strip mall, or industrial facility.

“Commercial Edible Food Generator” includes a Tier One or a Tier Two
Commercial Edible Food Generator as defined in this Ordinance or as
otherwise defined in 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(73) and (a)(74). For the
purposes of this definition, Food Recovery Organizations and Food Recovery
Services are not Commercial Edible Food Generators pursuant to 14 CCR

Section 18982(a)(7).

“Community Composting” means any activity that Composts green material,
agricultural material, food material, and vegetative food material, alone or in
combination, and the total amount of feedstock and Compost on-site at any
one time does not exceed 100 cubic yards and 750 square feet, as specified in
14 CCR Section 17855(a)(4); or, as otherwise defined by 14 CCR Section

18982(a)(8).

“Compliance Review” means a review of records by the District to determine
compliance with this Ordinance.

“Compost” has the same meaning as in 14 CCR Section 17896.2(a)(4),
includes a controlled biological decomposition of Organic Materials yielding a
safe and nuisance free Compost product.

“Contractor’ means franchisee, organized and operating under the laws of the
State and its officers, directors, employees, agents, companies, related-parties,
affiliates, subsidiaries, and subcontractors.

Mandatory Solid Waste, Organic Waste, and Recycling Materials Ordinance Page 4 of 40



(n)

(0)

(p)
(@)

(r)

(s)

(t)

(u)

(v)

(w)

“County Enforcement Official” means a county agency enforcement official, if
so if designated for enforcing the Ordinance in conjunction or consultation with

District Enforcement Official.

“Customer’ means the Person to whom Contractor submits its billing invoice
to and collects payment from for Collection services provided to a Premises.
The Customer may be either the Occupant or Owner of the Premises.

“C&D” means construction and demolition debris.

“County” means the County of San Luis Obispo, a political subdivision of the
State of California.

“Designated Waste” means non-Hazardous Waste which may pose special
Disposal problems because of its potential to contaminate the environment,
and which may be Disposed of only in Class Il Disposal sites or Class Hl
Disposal sites pursuant to a variance issued by the California Department of
Health Services. Designated Waste consists of those substances classified as
Designated Waste by the State, in California Code of Regulations Title 23,
Section 2522 as may be amended from time to time.

“Designee” means a person or entity that the District contracts with or otherwise
agrees and arranges to carry out any of the District's responsibilities of this
Ordinance as authorized in 14 CCR Section 18981.2. A Designee may be an
individual person, a government entity, a hauler, a private entity, or a
combination of those entities.

“Discarded Materials” means Recyclable Materials, Organic Materials, and
Solid Waste placed by a Generator in a collection container and/or at a location
for the purposes of collection excluding Excluded Waste.

“District” means the Avila Beach Community Services District, which is a
California Special District, a form of local government created by a local
community to meet a specific need or needs, and all the territory lying within its
boundaries as presently existing or as such boundaries may be modified from

time to time.

“Edible Food” means food intended for human consumption, or as otherwise
defined in 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(18). For the purposes of this Ordinance
or as otherwise defined in 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(18), “Edible Food" is not
Solid Waste if it is recovered and not discarded. Nothing in this Ordinance or in
14 CCR, Division 7, Chapter 12 requires or authorizes the Recovery of Edible
Food that does not meet the food safety requirements of the California Health
and Safety Code, including the California Retail Food Code.

“Enforcement Action" means an action of District or its Designee to address
non-compliance with this Ordinance including, but not limited to, issuing
administrative citations, fines, penalties, or using other remedies.

Mandatory Solid Waste, Organic Waste, and Recycling Materials Ordinance Page 5 of 40



(x)

(y)

(2)

(aa)

(bb)

“Excluded Waste” means Hazardous Substance, Hazardous Waste, Infectious
Waste, Designated Waste, volatile, corrosive, medical waste, infectious,
regulated radioactive waste, and toxic substances or material that facility
operator(s), which receive materials from the District and its Generators,
reasonably believe(s) would, as a result of or upon acceptance, transfer,
processing, or disposal, be a violation of local, State, or Federal law, regulation,
or Ordinance, including: land use restrictions or conditions, waste that cannot
be disposed of in Class IIl landfills or accepted at the facility by permit
conditions, waste that in District, or its Designee’s reasonable opinion would
present a significant risk to human health or the environment, cause a nuisance
or otherwise create or expose District, or its Designee, to potential liability; but
not including de minimis volumes or concentrations of waste of a type and
amount normally found in Single-Family or Multi-Family Solid Waste after
implementation of programs for the safe collection, processing, recycling,
treatment, and disposal of batteries and paint in compliance with Sections
41500 and 41802 of the California Public Resources Code.

“Food Distributor’ means a company that distributes food to entities including,
but not limited to, Supermarkets and Grocery Stores, or as otherwise defined
in 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(22).

“Food Facility” has the same meaning as in Section 113789 of the Health and
Safety Code.

“Food Recovery’ means actions to collect and distribute food for human
consumption that otherwise would be disposed, or as otherwise defined in 14
CCR Section 18982(a)(24).

“Food Recovery Organization” means an entity that engages in the collection
or receipt of Edible Food from Commercial Edible Food Generators and
distributes that Edible Food to the public for Food Recovery either directly or
through other entities or as otherwise defined in 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(25),
including, but not limited to:

(1) A food bank as defined in Section 113783 of the Health and Safety
Code;

(2) A nonprofit charitable organization as defined in Section 113841 of the
Health and Safety code; and,

(3) A nonprofit charitable temporary Food Facility as defined in Section
113842 of the Health and Safety Code.

A Food Recovery Organization is not a Commercial Edible Food Generator for
the purposes of this Ordinance and implementation of 14 CCR, Division 7,
Chapter 12 pursuant to 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(7).

Mandatory Solid Waste, Organic Waste, and Recycling Materials Ordinance Page 6 of 40



(cc)

(dd)

(ee)

(fF)

(99)

(hh)

(ii)

(i)

(kk)

If the definition in 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(25) for Food Recovery
Organization differs from this definition, the definition in 14 CCR Section

18982(a)(25) shall apply to this Ordinance.

“Food Recovery Service” means a person or entity that collects and transports
Edible Food from a Commercial Edible Food Generator to a Food Recovery
Organization or other entities for Food Recovery, or as otherwise defined in 14
CCR Section 18982(a)(26). A Food Recovery Service is not a Commercial
Edible Food Generator for the purposes of this Ordinance and implementation
of 14 CCR, Division 7, Chapter 12 pursuant to 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(7).

“Food Scraps” means those Discarded Materials that will decompose and/or
putrefy including: (i) all kitchen and table Food Waste; (ii) animal or vegetable
waste that is generated during or results from the storage, preparation, cooking
or handling of food stuffs; (iii) fruit waste, grain waste, dairy waste, meat, and
fish waste; and, (iv) vegetable trimmings, houseplant trimmings and other
Compostable Organic Waste common to the occupancy of Residential
dwellings. Food Scraps are a subset of Food Waste. Food Scraps excludes
fats, oils, and grease when such materials are Source Separated from other

Food Scraps.

“Food Service Provider’ means an entity primarily engaged in providing food
services to institutional, governmental, Commercial, or industrial locations of
others based on contractual arrangements with these types of organizations,
or as otherwise defined in 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(27).

“Food-Soiled Paper” is compostable paper material that has come in contact
with Food Scraps or liquid, such as, but not limited to, compostable paper

plates, napkins, and pizza boxes.
“Food Waste” means Source Separated Food Scraps and Food-Soiled Paper.

“Food Waste Self-Hauler’ means a Self-Hauler who generates and hauls,
utilizing their own employees and equipment, an average of one cubic yard or
more per week, or 6,500 pounds or more per quarter of their own Food Waste
to a location or facility that is not owned and operated by that Self-Hauler. Food
Waste Self-Haulers are a subset of Self-Haulers.

“Franchisee” means the person, entity, or Company with a Franchise
Agreement to collect, receive, carry, haul or transport Discarded Materials
within the District and shall include the agents or employees of the Franchisee.

“Franchise Agreement’ means a written agreement between the District and
Franchisee.

“Generator’ means a person or entity that is responsible for the initial creation
of one or more types of Discarded Materials.

Mandatory Solid Waste, Organic Waste, and Recycling Materials Ordinance Page 7 of 40



(I

(mm)

(nn)

(00)

(ppR)

“Grocery Store” means a store primarily engaged in the retail sale of canned
food; dry goods; fresh fruits and vegetables; fresh meats, fish, and poultry; and
any area that is not separately owned within the store where the food is
prepared and served, including a bakery, deli, and meat and seafood
departments, or as otherwise defined in 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(30).

“Hauler Route” means the designated itinerary or sequence of stops for each
segment of the District's collection service area, or as otherwise defined in 14
CCR Section 18982(a)(31.5).

“Hazardous Substance” means any of the following: (a) any substances
defined, regulated or listed (directly or by reference) as "Hazardous
Substances", "hazardous materials", "Hazardous Wastes", "toxic waste",
"pollutant”, or "toxic substances", or similarly identified as hazardous to human
health or the environment, in or pursuant to: (i) the Comprehensive
Environmental Response, Compensation and Liability Act (CERCLA) of 1980,
42 USC §9601 et seq. (CERCLA); (ii) the Hazardous Materials Transportation
Act, 49 USC §1802, et seq.; (iii) the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act,
42 USC §6901 et seq.; (iv) the Clean Water Act, 33 USC §1251 et seq.; (v)
California Health and Safety Code §§25115-25117, 25249.8, 25281, and
25316; (vi) the Clean Air Act, 42 USC §7901 et seq.; and, (vii) California Water
Code §13050; (b) any amendments, rules or regulations promulgated
thereunder to such enumerated statutes or acts currently existing or hereafter
enacted; and, (c) any other hazardous or toxic substance, material, chemical,
waste or pollutant identified as hazardous or toxic or regulated under any other
Applicable Law currently existing or hereinafter enacted, including, without
limitation, friable asbestos, polychlorinated biphenyl's (PCBs), petroleum,
natural gas, and synthetic fuel products, and by-products.

“Hazardous Waste” means all substances defined as Hazardous Waste,
acutely Hazardous Waste, or extremely Hazardous Waste by the State in
Health and Safety Code §25110.02, §25115, and §25117 or in the future
amendments to or recodifications of such statutes or identified and listed as
solar panels from residential premises, and Hazardous Waste by the U.S.
Environmental Protection Agency (EPA), pursuant to the Federal Resource
Conservation and Recovery Act (42 USC §6901 et seq.), all future
amendments thereto, and all rules and regulations promulgated thereunder.

“High Diversion Organic Waste Processing Facility” means a facility that is in
compliance with the reporting requirements of 14 CCR Section 18815.5(d) and
meets or exceeds an annual average Mixed Waste organic content Recovery
rate of 50 percent between January 1, 2022 and December 31, 2024, and 75
percent after January 1, 2025, as calculated pursuant to 14 CCR Section
18815.5(e) for Organic Waste received from the “Mixed waste organic
collection stream” as defined in 14 CCR Section 17402(a)(11.5), or, as
otherwise defined in 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(33).

Mandatory Solid Waste, Organic Waste, and Recycling Materials Ordinance Page 8 of 40



(9q) “Infectious Waste” means (a) equipment, instruments, utensils and other
fomites of a disposable nature from the rooms of patients who are suspected
to have or have been diagnosed as having a communicable disease and must,
therefore, be isolated as required by public health agencies; (b) laboratory
wastes, including pathological specimens (i.e., all tissues, specimens of blood
elements, excreta and secretions obtained from patients or laboratory animals)
and disposable fomites (any substance that may harbor or transmit pathogenic
organisms) attendant thereto; and/or (c) surgical operating room pathologic
specimens - including recognizable anatomical parts, human tissue,
anatomical human remains and disposable materials from hospitals, clinics,
outpatient areas and emergency rooms, as defined in 14 CCR Section

17225.36.

(rr) “Inspection” means a site visit where a District reviews records, containers, and
an entity’s collection, handling, recycling, or landfill disposal of Recyclable
Materials, Organic Waste, Solid Waste or Edible Food handling to determine if
the entity is complying with requirements set forth in this Ordinance, or as
otherwise defined in 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(35).

(ss) “Large Event” means an event, including, but not limited to, a sporting event or
a flea market, that charges an admission price, or is operated by a local agency,
and serves an average of more than 2,000 individuals per day of operation of
the event, at a location that includes, but is not limited to, a public, nonprofit, or
privately owned park, parking lot, golf course, street system, or other open
space when being used for an event. If the definition in 14 CCR Section
18982(a)(38) differs from this definition, the definition in 14 CCR Section

18982(a)(38) shall apply to this Ordinance.

(tt) “Large Venue” means a permanent venue facility that annually seats or serves
an average of more than 2,000 individuals within the grounds of the facility per
day of operation of the venue facility. For purposes of this Ordinance and
implementation of 14 CCR, Division 7, Chapter 12, a venue facility includes,
but is not limited to, a public, nonprofit, or privately owned or operated stadium,
amphitheater, arena, hall, amusement park, conference or civic center, zoo,
aquarium, airport, racetrack, horse track, performing arts center, fairground,
museum, theater, or other public attraction facility. For purposes of this
Ordinance and implementation of 14 CCR, Division 7, Chapter 12, a site under
common ownership or control that includes more than one Large Venue that is
contiguous with other Large Venues in the site, is a single Large Venue. If the
definition in 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(39) differs from this definition, the
definition in 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(39) shall apply to this Ordinance.

(uu) “L ocal Education Agency’ means a school district, charter school, or county
office of education that is not subject to the control of District or county
regulations related to Solid Waste, or as otherwise defined in 14 CCR Section

18982(a)(40).

Mandatory Solid Waste, Organic Waste, and Recycling Materials Ordinance Page 9 of 40



(w)

(ww)

(xx)

(vy)

(zz)

(aaa)

(bbb)

(cce)

(ddd)

“Multi-Family Residential Dwelling” or “Multi-Family” or “MFD” means of, from,
or pertaining to residential Premises with five (5) or more dwelling units
including such Premises when combined in the same building with Commercial
establishments, that receive centralized, shared, Collection service for all units
on the Premises which are billed to one (1) Customer at one (1) address.
Customers residing in Townhouses, mobile homes, condominiums, or other
structures with five (5) or more dwelling units who receive individual service
and are billed separately shall not be considered Multi-Family. Multi-Family
Premises do not include hotels, motels, or other transient occupancy facilities,
which are considered Commercial Businesses.

“Notice of Violation (NOV)” means a notice that a violation has occurred that
includes a compliance date to avoid an action to seek penalties, or as otherwise
defined in 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(45) or further explained in 14 CCR Section
18995.4.

“Occupant” means the Person who occupies a Premises.

“Organic Materials” means Yard Trimmings and Food Waste, individually or
collectively that are set aside, handled, packaged, or offered for collection in a
manner different from Solid Waste for the purpose of processing. No Discarded
Material shall be considered to be Organic Materials, however, unless it is
separated from Recyclable Material and Solid Waste. Organic Materials are a
subset of Organic Waste.

“Organic Materials Container’ shall be used for the purpose of storage and
collection of Source Separated Organic Materials.

“Organic Waste” means wastes containing material originated from living
organisms and their metabolic waste products, including but not limited to food,
green material, landscape and pruning waste, organic textiles and carpets,
lumber, wood, Paper Products, Printing and Writing Paper, manure, biosolids,
digestate, and sludges or as otherwise defined in 14 CCR Section
18982(a)(46). Biosolids and digestate are as defined by 14 CCR Section
18982(a).

“Owner’ means the Person(s) holding legal title to real property and/or any
improvements thereon and shall include the Person(s) listed on the latest
equalized assessment roll of the County Assessor.

“Paper Products” include, but are not limited to, paper janitorial supplies,
cartons, wrapping, packaging, file folders, hanging files, corrugated boxes,
tissue, and toweling, or as otherwise defined in 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(51).

“Printing and Writing Papers” include, but are not limited to, copy, xerographic,
watermark, cotton fiber, offset, forms, computer printout paper, white wove
envelopes, manila envelopes, book paper, note pads, writing tablets,
newsprint, and other uncoated writing papers, posters, index cards, calendars,

Mandatory Solid Waste, Organic Waste, and Recycling Materials Ordinance Page 10 of 40



(eee)

(fff)

brochures, reports, magazines, and publications, or as otherwise defined in 14
CCR Section 18982(a)(54).

“Premises” means and includes any land, building and/or structure, or portion

thereof, in the District where Discarded Materials are produced, generated, or
accumulated. All structures on the same legal parcel, which are owned by the
same person shall be considered as one Premises.

“Prohibited Container Contaminants” means the following: (i) Discarded
Materials placed in the Recyclable Materials Container that are not identified
as acceptable Source Separated Recyclable Materials for the District's
Recyclable Materials Container; (ii) Discarded Materials placed in the Organic
Materials Container that are not identified as acceptable Source Separated
Organic Materials for the the District's Organic Materials Container; (iii)
Discarded Materials placed in the Solid Waste Container that are acceptable
Source Separated Recyclable Materials and/or Source Separated Organic
Materials to be placed in the District's Organic Materials Container and/or
Recyclable Materials Container; and, (iv) Excluded Waste placed in any

container.

(ggg) “Recovery” means any activity or process described in 14 CCR Section

(hhh)

(iif)

(ii})

18983.1(b), or as otherwise defined in 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(49).

“Recyclable Materials” means those Discarded Materials that the Generators
set out in Recyclables Containers for Collection for the purpose of Recycling
by the Service Provider and that exclude Excluded Waste. No Discarded
Materials shall be considered Recyclable Materials unless such material is
separated from Organic Materials, and Solid Waste. Recyclable Materials shall
include, but not be limited to by-products or discards set aside, handled,
packaged or offered for Collection from Residential, Commercial, governmental
or industrial customers in a manner different from Solid Waste. Including, but
not limited to, aluminum, newspaper, clear and colored glass, tin and bi-metal,
all plastic containers (except polystyrene), cardboard, chipboard, magazines,
mixed paper (including magazines, phone books and junk mail) and motor oil
and filters.. For the purpose of collection of Recyclable Materials through
contractor's collection services, recyclable materials shall be limited to those
materials identified by the collection contractor as acceptable recyclable

materials.

“Recyclable Materials Container” shall be used for the purpose of storage and
collection of Source Separated Recyclable Materials.

“Recycled-Content Paper” means Paper Products and Printing and Writing
Paper that consists of at least 30 percent, by fiber weight, postconsumer fiber,
or as otherwise defined in 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(61).

Mandatory Solid Waste, Organic Waste, and Recycling Materials Ordinance Page 11 of 40



(kkk)  “Refuse” includes garbage, recyclables, green waste, Cast Offs, and/or
Rubble.

(1)) “Residential” shall mean of, from, or pertaining to a Single-Family Premises or
Multi-Family Premises including Single-Family homes, apartments,
condominiums, Townhouse complexes, mobile home parks, and cooperative
apartments.

(mmm) “Responsible Party” means the Owner, operator, property manager, tenant,
lessee, Occupant, or other designee that subscribes to and pays for
Recyclable Materials, Organic Materials, and/or Solid Waste collection
services for a Premises in the District, or, if there is no such subscriber, the
Owner or property manager of a Single-Family Premises, Multi-Family
Premises, or Commercial Premises. In instances of dispute or uncertainty
regarding who is the Responsible Party for a Premises, Responsible Party
shall mean the Owner of a Single-Family Premises, Multi-Family Premises, or
Commercial Premises.

(nnn)  “Restaurant’ means an establishment primarily engaged in the retail sale of
food and drinks for on-Premises or immediate consumption, or as otherwise

defined in 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(64).

(0oo) “Route Review” means a visual Inspection of containers along a Hauler Route
for the purpose of determining Container Contamination and may include
mechanical Inspection methods such as the use of cameras, or as otherwise
defined in 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(65).

(ppp) “Rubble” means and includes all debris from the construction, demolition or
alteration of buildings, earth, rocks or incinerator ashes, brick, mortar,
concrete and similar solid material.

(qqq) “SB 1383” means Senate Bill 1383 of 2016 approved by the Governor on
September 19, 2016, which added Sections 39730.5, 39730.6, 39730.7, and
39730.8 to the Health and Safety Code, and added Chapter 13.1 (commencing
with Section 42652) to Part 3 of Division 30 of the Public Resources Code,
establishing methane emissions reduction targets in a Statewide effort to
reduce emissions of short-lived climate pollutants as amended, supplemented,
superseded, and replaced from time to time.

(rr)  "SB 1383 Regulations” or “SB 1383 Regulatory” means or refers to, for the
purposes of this Ordinance, the Short-Lived Climate Pollutants: Organic Waste
Reduction regulations developed by CalRecycle and adopted in 2020 that
created 14 CCR, Division 7, Chapter 12 and amended portions of regulations

of 14 CCR and 27 CCR.
(sss) “Self-Haul” means to act as a Self-Hauler.
(ttt) “Self-Hauler’ means a person, who hauls Solid Waste, Organic Waste or

Recyclable Material they have generated to another person. Self-hauler also
Mandatory Solid Waste, Organic Waste, and Recycling Materials Ordinance Page 12 of 40



(uuu)

(xv)

includes a landscaper, or a person who back-hauls waste. Back-haul means
generating and transporting Recyclable Materials or Organic Waste to a
destination owned and operated by the Generator or Responsible Party using
the Generator's or Responsible Party’s own employees and equipment.

“Service Level” refers to the size of a Customer’s Container and the frequency
of Collection service.

“Single-Family” or “SFD” refers to any detached or attached house or residence
of four (4) units or less designed or used for occupancy by one (1) family,
provided that Collection service feasibly can be provided to such Premises as
an independent unit, and the Owner or Occupant of such independent unit is
billed directly for the Collection service. Single-Family includes Townhouses,
and each independent unit of duplex, tri-plex, or four-plex Residential
structures, regardless of whether each unit is separately billed for their specific

Service Level.

“Solid Waste” has the same meaning as defined in State Public Resources
Code Section 40191, which defines Solid Waste as all putrescible and non-
putrescible solid, semisolid, and liquid wastes, including garbage, trash,
Refuse, paper, rubbish, ashes, industrial wastes, demolition and construction
wastes, abandoned vehicles and parts thereof, discarded home and industrial
appliances, dewatered, treated, or chemically fixed sewage sludge which is not
hazardous waste, manure, vegetable or animal solid and semi-solid wastes,
and other discarded solid and semisolid wastes, with the exception that Solid
Waste does not include any of the following wastes:

(1)  Hazardous waste, as defined in the State Public Resources Code
Section 40141.

(2) Radioactive waste regulated pursuant to the State Radiation Control
Law (Chapter 8 (commencing with Section 114960) of Part 9 of Division
104 of the State Health and Safety Code).

(3) Medical waste regulated pursuant to the State Medical Waste
Management Act (Part 14 (commencing with Section 117600) of
Division 104 of the State Health and Safety Code). Untreated medical
waste shall not be disposed of in a Solid Waste landfill, as defined in
State Public Resources Code Section 40195.1. Medical waste that has
been treated and deemed to be Solid Waste shall be regulated pursuant
to Division 30 of the State Public Resources Code.

(4) Recyclable Materials, Organic Materials, and Construction and
Demolition Debris when such materials are Source Separated.

Notwithstanding any provision to the contrary, Solid Waste may include de
minimis volumes or concentrations of waste of a type and amount normally
found in Residential Solid Waste after implementation of programs for the safe

Mandatory Solid Waste, Organic Waste, and Recycling Materials Ordinance Page 13 of 40



Collection, Recycling, treatment, and Disposal of household hazardous waste
in compliance with Section 41500 and 41802 of the California Public Resources
Code as may be amended from time to time. Solid Waste includes salvageable
materials only when such materials are included for Collection in a Solid Waste
Container not Source Separated from Solid Waste at the site of generation.

(xxx) “Solid Waste Container” shall be used for the purpose of storage and collection
of Solid Waste.

(yyy) “Source Separated” or “Source-Separated (materials)’ means materials,
including commingled Recyclable Materials and Organic Materials, that have
been separated or kept separate from the Solid Waste stream, at the point of
generation, for the purpose of additional sorting or processing those materials
for recycling or reuse in order to return them to the economic mainstream in the
form of raw material for new, reused, or reconstituted products, which meet the
quality standards necessary to be used in the marketplace, or as otherwise
defined in 14 CCR Section 17402.5(b)(4). For the purposes of the Ordinance,
Source Separated shall include separation of materials by the Generator,
Responsible Party, or Responsible Party's employee, into different containers
for the purpose of collection such that Source-Separated materials are
separated from Solid Waste for the purposes of collection and processing.

(zzz) “Source Separated Organic Materials” means Organic Materials that are
Source Separated and placed in an Organic Materials Container.

(aaaa) “Source Separated Recyclable Materials” means Recyclable Materials that are
Source Separated and placed in a Recyclable Materials Container.

(bbbb) “Standard Container” means Organic Waste Containers, Recyclable Materials
Containers, and Organic Waste Containers approved by the District and/or
the Franchisee.

(cccee) “State” means the State of California.

(dddd) “Supermarket’ means a full-line, self-service retail store with gross annual sales
of two million dollars ($2,000,000), or more, and which sells a line of dry
grocery, canned goods, or nonfood items and some perishable items, or as
otherwise defined in 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(71).

(eeee) “Tier One Commercial Edible Food Generator’ means a Commercial Edible
Food Generator that is one of the following:

(1)  Supermarket.

(2)  Grocery Store with a total facility size equal to or greater than 10,000
square feet.

(3) Food Service Provider.

Mandatory Solid Waste, Organic Waste, and Recycling Materials Ordinance Page 14 of 40



(ffff)

(4) Food Distributor.
(6) Wholesale Food Vendor.

If the definition in 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(73) of Tier One Commercial Edible
Food Generator differs from this definition, the definition in 14 CCR Section

18982(a)(73) shall apply to this Ordinance.

“Tier Two Commercial Edible Food Generator’ means a Commercial Edible
Food Generator that is one of the following:

(1)  Restaurant with 250 or more seats, or a total facility size equal to or
greater than 5,000 square feet.

(2)  Hotel with an on-site Food Facility and 200 or more rooms.

(3)  Health facility with an on-site Food Facility and 100 or more beds.

(4) Large Venue.
(6) Large Event.

(6) A State agency with a cafeteria with 250 or more seats or total cafeteria
facility size equal to or greater than 5,000 square feet.

(7) A Local Education Agency facility with an on-site Food Facility.

If the definition in 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(74) of Tier Two Commercial Edible
Food Generator differs from this definition, the definition in 14 CCR Section

18982(a)(74) shall apply to this Ordinance.

(gggg) “Ton” or “Tonnage” means a unit of measure for weight equivalent to two

(hhhh)

(iiii)

thousand (2,000) standard pounds where each pound contains sixteen (16)
ounces.

“Wholesale Food Vendor” means a business or establishment engaged in the

merchant wholesale distribution of food, where food (including fruits and
vegetables) is received, shipped, stored, prepared for distribution to a retailer,
warehouse, distributor, or other destination, or as otherwise defined in 14 CCR

Section 189852(a)(76).

“Yard Trimmings” or “Green Waste” means those Discarded Materials that will
decompose and/or putrefy, including, but not limited to, green trimmings, grass,
weeds, leaves, prunings, branches, dead plants, brush, tree trimmings, dead
trees, small pieces of unpainted and untreated wood, and other types of
Organic Materials resulting from normal yard and landscaping maintenance
that may be specified in District Legislation for Collection and Processing as
Organic Materials under this Agreement. Yard Trimmings does not include

Mandatory Solid Waste, Organic Waste, and Recycling Materials Ordinance Page 15 of 40



items herein defined as Excluded Waste. Yard Trimmings are a subset of
Organic Materials. Yard Trimmings placed for Collection may not exceed six
(8) inches in diameter and three (3) feet in length and must fit within the
Contractor-provided Container. Acceptable Yard Trimmings may be added to
or removed from this list from time to time by mutual consent or at the sole
discretion of the District.

1.100 MANDATORY SOLID WASTE, ORGANIC WASTE, AND RECYCLING

SERVICE

1.110 Requirements for Single-Family Premises

Except Responsible Parties of Single-Family Premises that meet the Self-
Hauler requirements in Section 1.180 of this Ordinance, Responsible Parties
of Single-Family Premises shall:

(a)

(b)

(1)

(2)

Subscribe to and pay for the District’s three-container collection services
for weekly collection of Recyclable Materials, Organic Materials, and
Solid Waste generated by the Single-Family Premises and comply with
the requirements of those services as described below in Section
5.110(a)(2). District and its Designee(s) shall have the right to review the
number and size of a Responsible Party’s containers to evaluate
adequacy of capacity provided for each type of collection service for
proper separation of materials and containment of materials. The
Responsible Parties for Single-Family Premises shall adjust their
Service Level for their collection services as requested by the District.

Participate in the District's three-container collection service(s) in the
manner described below.

) Place, or, if Responsible Party is not an occupant of the Single-
Family Premises, direct its Generators to place, Source
Separated Organic Materials, including Food Waste, in the
Organic Materials Container; Source Separated Recyclable
Materials in the Recyclable Materials Container; and Solid Waste
in the Solid Waste Container.

(ii) Not place, or, if Responsible Party is not an occupant of the
Single-Family Premises, direct its Generators to not place
Prohibited Container Contaminants in collection containers and
not place materials designated for the Organic Materials
Containers or Recyclable Materials Containers in the Solid Waste

Containers.

Nothing in this Section prohibits a Responsible Party or Generator of a Single-
Family Premises from preventing or reducing Discarded Materials generation,
managing Organic Waste on site, and/or using a Community Composting site
pursuant to 14 CCR Section 18984.9(c).

Mandatory Solid Waste, Organic Waste, and Recycling Materials Ordinance Page 16 of 40



(c) The requirements of this Section 1.110 may be subject to a low-population
waiver pursuant to Article 3 in Title 14 of the California Code of Regulations,
Sections 18984 through 18984.13. Please contact the District for verification.

1.120 Requirements for Multi-Family Residential Dwellings

(a) Responsible Parties of Multi-Family Premises shall provide or arrange for
Recyclable Materials, Organic Materials, and Solid Waste collection services
consistent with this Ordinance and for employees, contractors, and tenants.
Responsible Parties of Multi-Family Premises may receive waivers pursuant to
Section 1.140 for some requirements of this Section.

(b) Except for Responsible Parties of Multi-Family Premises that meet the Self-
Hauler requirements in Section 1.180 of this Ordinance, including hauling
services arranged through a landscaper, Responsible Parties of Multi-Family

Premises shall:

(1

(2)

(3)

4)

(5)

Subscribe to and pay for the District’s three or more-container collection
services and comply with requirements of those services for all
Recyclable Materials, Organic Materials, and Solid Waste generated at
the Multi-Family Premises as further described below in this Section.
The District and its Designee(s) shall have the right to review the number
and size of the Multi-Family Premises’ collection containers and
frequency of collection to evaluate adequacy of capacity provided for
each type of collection service for proper separation of materials and
containment of materials. The Responsible Party of a Multi-Family
Premises shall adjust their Service Level for their collection services as
requested by the District or its Designee.

Participate in the District’s three or more-container collection service(s)
for at least weekly collection of Recyclable Materials, Organic Materials,
and Solid Waste in the manner described below.

Place and/or direct its Generators to place Source Separated Organic
Materials, including Food Waste, in the Organic Materials Container,;
Source Separated Recyclable Materials in the Recyclable Materials
Container; and Solid Waste in the Solid Waste Container.

Not place and/or direct its Generators to not place Prohibited Container
Contaminants in collection containers and to not place materials
designated for the Organic Materials Containers or Recyclable
Materials Containers in the Solid Waste Containers.

Supply and allow access to adequate number, size and location of
collection containers with sufficient labels or colors for employees,
contractors, tenants, and customers, consistent with the District's
Recyclable Materials Container, Organic Materials Container, and Solid
Waste Container collection service or, if Self-Hauling, consistent with the

Mandatory Solid Waste, Organic Waste, and Recycling Materials Ordinance Page 17 of 40



(c)

(d)

(e)

Multi-Family Premises’ approach to complying with Self-Hauler
requirements in Section 1.180 of this Ordinance.

(6)  Annually provide information to employees, contractors, tenants, and
customers about Recyclable Materials, Organic Waste Recovery
requirements and the proper sorting of Recyclable Materials, Organic
Materials, and Solid Waste.

(7)  Provide education information before or within fourteen (14) days of
occupation of the Premises to new tenants that describes requirements
for Source Separate Recyclable Materials and Organic Materials and
to keep Source Separated Organic Materials and Source Separated
Recyclable Materials separate from each other and from Solid Waste
(when applicable) and the location of containers and the rules governing
their use at each Property.

(8) Provide or arrange access for the District and/or its Designee(s) to their
properties during all Inspections conducted in accordance with this
Ordinance to confirm compliance with the requirements of this
Ordinance.

If the Responsible Party of a Multi-Family Premises wants to Self-Haul, the
Responsible Party shall meet the Self-Hauler requirements in Section 1.180
of this Ordinance.

Multi-family Premises that generate two (2) cubic yards or more of total Solid
Waste, Recyclable Materials, or Organic Materials per week (or other
threshold defined by the State) and that arrange for gardening or landscaping
services shall require that the contract or work agreement between the
Responsible Party of a Multi-Family Premises and a gardening or landscaping
service specifies that the designated organic materials generated by those
services be managed in compliance with this chapter.

Nothing in this Section prohibits a Responsible Party or Generator of a Multi-
Family Premises from preventing or reducing Discarded Materials generation,
managing Organic Waste on site, or using a Community Composting site
pursuant to 14 CCR Section 18984.9(c).

1.130 Requirements for Commercial Businesses

(a)

(b)

Responsible Parties of Commercial Businesses shall provide or arrange for
Recyclable Materials, Organic Materials, and Solid Waste collection services
consistent with this Ordinance and for employees, contractors, tenants, and
customers. Responsible Parties of Commercial Premises may receive waivers
pursuant to Section 1.140 for some requirements of this Section.

Except Responsible Parties of Commercial Businesses that meet the Self-
Hauler requirements in Section 1.180 of this Ordinance, including hauling

Mandatory Solid Waste, Organic Waste, and Recycling Materials Ordinance Page 18 of 40



services arranged through a landscaper, Responsible Parties of Commercial
Premises shall:

(1)  Subscribe to and pay for the District’s three or more-container collection
services and comply with requirements of those services for all
Recyclable Materials, Organic Materials, and Solid Waste generated at
the Commercial Premises as further described below in this Section.
The District and its Designee(s) shall have the right to review the number
and size of a Commercial Premises’ containers and frequency of
collection to evaluate adequacy of capacity provided for each type of
collection service for proper separation of materials and containment of
materials. The Responsible Party of the Commercial Business shall
adjust their Service Level for their collection services as requested by

the District or its Designee.

(2) Participate in the District’s three or more-container collection service(s)
for at least weekly collection of Recyclable Materials, Organic Materials,
and Solid Waste in the manner described below.

(i) Place and/or direct its Generators to place Source Separated
Organic Materials, including Food Waste, in the Organic
Materials Container; Source Separated Recyclable Materials in
the Recyclable Materials Container; and Solid Waste in the Solid

Waste Container.

(i) Not place and/or direct its Generators to not place Prohibited
Container Contaminants in collection containers and to not place
materials designated for the Organic Materials Containers or
Recyclable Materials Containers in the Solid Waste Containers.

(3) Supply and allow access to adequate number, size and location of
collection containers with sufficient labels or colors (conforming with
Sections 1.130(b)(4)(i)) and 1.130(b)(4)(ii) below) for employees,
contractors, tenants, and customers, consistent with the District's
Recyclable Materials Container, Organic Materials Container, and Solid
Waste Container collection service or if Self-Hauling consistent with the
Commercial Premises approach to complying with Self-Hauler
requirements in Section 1.180 of this Ordinance.

(4)  Provide containers for customers for the collection of Source Separated
Recyclable Materials and Source Separated Organic Materials in all
indoor and outdoor areas where Solid Waste containers are provided for
customers, for materials generated by that Commercial Business. Such
containers shall be visible and easily accessible. Such containers do not
need to be provided in restrooms. If a Commercial Business does not
generate any of the materials that would be collected in one type of
container, as demonstrated through an approved de minimis waiver per

Mandatory Solid Waste, Organic Waste, and Recycling Materials Ordinance Page 19 of 40



Section 1.140(a), then the Responsible Party of the Commercial
Business does not have to provide that particular container in all areas
where Solid Waste containers are provided for customers. Pursuant to
14 CCR Section 18984.9(b), the containers provided by the Responsible
Party of the Commercial Business shall have either:

(i) A body or lid that conforms with the container colors provided
through the collection service provided by the District, with either
lids conforming to the color requirements or bodies conforming to
the color requirements or both lids and bodies conforming to color
requirements. The Responsible Party of the Commercial
Business is not required to replace functional containers that do
not comply with the requirements of this subsection prior to
whichever of the following comes first: (i) the end of the useful life
of those containers, or (ii) January 1, 2036.

(ii) Container labels that include language or graphic images, or
both, indicating the primary material accepted and the primary
materials prohibited in that container, or containers with imprinted
text or graphic images that indicate the primary materials
accepted and primary materials prohibited in the container.
Pursuant 14 CCR Section 18984.8, the container labeling
requirements are required on new containers commencing
January 1, 2022.

(5) To the extent practical through education, training, Inspection, and/or
other measures, prohibit employees from placing materials in a
container not designated for those materials per the District's Recyclable
Materials Container, Organic Materials Container, and Solid Waste
collection service or, if Self-Hauling, per the instructions of the
Commercial Business's Responsible Party to support its compliance
with Self-Hauler requirements in Section 1.180 of this Ordinance.

(6)  Periodically inspect Recyclable Materials Containers, Organic Materials
Containers, and Solid Waste Containers for contamination and inform
employees if containers are contaminated and of the requirements to
keep contaminants out of those containers pursuant to 14 CCR Section
18984.9(b)(3).

(7)  Annually provide information to employees, contractors, tenants, and
customers about Recyclable Materials and Organic Waste Recovery
requirements and about proper sorting of Recyclable Materials, Organic
Materials, and Solid Waste.

(8)  Provide education information before or within fourteen (14) days of
occupation of the Premises to new tenants that describes requirements
to Source Separate Recyclable Materials and Organic Materials and to

Mandatory Solid Waste, Organic Waste, and Recycling Materials Ordinance Page 20 of 40



keep Source Separated Organic Materials and Source Separated
Recyclable Materials separate from each other and from other Solid
Waste (when applicable) and the location of containers and the rules
governing their use at each property.

(9) Provide or arrange access for the District or its Designee to their
properties during all Inspections conducted in accordance with this
Ordinance to confirm compliance with the requirements of this

Ordinance.

(c) If the Responsible Party of a Commercial Business wants to Self-Haul, the
Responsible Party shall meet the Self-Hauler requirements in Section 1.180

of this Ordinance.

(d) Nothing in this Section prohibits a Responsible Party or a Generator of a
Commercial Business from preventing or reducing Discarded Materials
generation, managing Organic Waste on site, or using a Community
Composting site pursuant to 14 CCR Section 18984.9(c).

(e) Responsible Parties of Commercial Businesses that are Tier One or Tier Two
Commercial Edible Food Generators shall comply with Food Recovery
requirements, pursuant to Section 1.150 of this Ordinance.

1.140 Waivers for Multi-Family Premises and Commercial Premises

(a) De Minimis Waivers for Multi-Family Premises and Commercial Premises. The
District and/or its Designee, may waive a Responsible Party's obligation to
comply with some or all Recyclable Materials and Organic Waste requirements
of this Ordinance if the Responsible Party of the Commercial Business or Multi-
Family Premises provides documentation that the Commercial Business or
Multi-Family Premises meets one of the criteria in subsections (1) and (2)
below. For the purposes of subsections (1) and (2), the total Solid Waste shall
be the sum of weekly container capacity measured in cubic yards for Solid
Waste, Recyclable Materials, and Organic Materials collection service. Hauling
through paper shredding service providers or other incidental services may be
considered in granting a de minimis waiver.

(1)  The Commercial Business’s or Multi-Family Premises’ total Solid Waste
collection service is two (2) cubic yards or more per week and
Recyclable Materials and Organic Materials subject to collection in
Recyclable Materials Container(s) or Organic Materials Container(s)
comprises less than twenty (20) gallons per week per applicable material
stream of the Multi-family Premises’ or Commercial Business’s total
waste (i.e., Recyclable Materials in the Recyclable Materials stream are
less than twenty (20) gallons per week or Organic Materials in the
Organic Materials stream are less than twenty (20) gallons per week);

or,

Mandatory Solid Waste, Organic Waste, and Recycling Materials Ordinance Page 21 of 40



(b)

(c)

(2) The Commercial Business’s or Multi-Family Premises’ total Solid Waste
collection service is less than two (2) cubic yards per week and
Recyclable Materials and Organic Materials subject to collection in a
Recyclable Materials Container(s) or Organic Materials Container(s)
comprises less than ten (10) gallons per week per applicable material
stream of the Multi-family Premises’ or Commercial Business'’s total
waste (i.e., Recyclable Materials in the Recyclable Materials stream are
less than ten (10) gallons per week or Organic Materials in the Organic
Materials stream are less than ten (10) gallons per week).

Physical Space Waivers. The District and/or District's Designee may waive a
Commercial Business's or Multi-Family Premises’ obligation to comply with
some or all of the Recyclable Materials and/or Organic Waste collection service
requirements if the District or its Designee has evidence from its own staff, a
hauler, licensed architect, or licensed engineer demonstrating that the
Premises lacks adequate space for Recyclable Materials Containers and/or
Organic Materials Containers required for compliance with the Recyclable
Materials and Organic Materials collection requirements of Section 1.120 or

1.130 as applicable.

Review and Approval of Waivers. Waivers shall be granted to Responsible
Parties by the District's Designee, or the District if there is no Designee,
according to the following process:

(1) Responsible Parties of Premises seeking waivers shall submit a
completed application form to the District and/or its Designee for a
waiver. The waiver shall be considered based upon the following
criteria: (1) the waiver type requested; (2) type(s) of collection services
for which the party is requesting a waiver; (3) the reason(s) for such
waiver; (4) documentation supporting the request for a waiver; (5) any
pertinent facts or circumstances; (6) harmony with the intent of this
Ordinance; and (7) any other factors deemed relevant by the District
and/or its Designee. The District or its Designee shall have sole
discretion in determining to grant or not grant a waiver.

(2)  Upon waiver approval, the District and/or its shall specify that the waiver
is valid for the following duration:

(i) For Commercial Premises, five (5) years, or if property ownership
changes, or if occupancy changes, whichever occurs first.

(i) For Multi-Family Premises, five (5) years, or if property ownership
changes, or if the property manager changes, whichever occurs
first.

(3)  Waiver holder shall notify the District’s Designee, or the District if there
is no Designee, if circumstances change such that the
Commercial

Mandatory Solid Waste, Organic Waste, and Recycling Materials Ordinance Page 22 of 40



(4)

(5)

(6)

(7)

Business's or the Multi-Family Premises’ no longer qualify for the
waiver granted, in which case waiver will be rescinded.

Any waiver holder must cooperate with the District and/or its Designee
for any on-site assessment of the appropriateness of the waiver.

Waiver holder shall reapply to the District's Designee, or the District if
there is no Designee, for a waiver upon the expiration of the waiver
period and shall submit any required documentation, and/or
fees/payments as required by the District and/or its Designee. Failure to
submit a completed application shall equate to an automatic denial of

said application.

The District's Designee, or the District if there is no Designee, may
revoke a waiver upon a determination that any of the circumstances
justifying a waiver are no longer applicable.

If the District's Designee does not approve a waiver application or
revokes a waiver, the applicant may appeal the decision for additional
review to the District General Manager. The District may, after meeting
and conferring with its Designee, direct the Designee to approve the
waiver application and/or repeal the revocation of the waiver.

1.150 Requirements for Commercial Edible Food Generators

(a) Tier One Commercial Edible Food Generators must comply with the
requirements of this Section commencing January 1, 2022, and Tier Two
Commercial Edible Food Generators must comply commencing January 1,
2024, pursuant to 14 CCR Section 18991.3.

(b) Large Venue or Large Event operators not providing food services, but allowing
for food to be provided by others, shall require Food Facilities operating at the
Large Venue or Large Event to comply with the requirements of this Section,

commencing January 1, 2024.

(c) Commercial Edible Food Generators shall comply with the following
requirements:

(1)

Arrange to recover the maximum amount of Edible Food that would
otherwise be disposed. Food that is donated shall be free from
adulteration, spoilage, and meet the food safety standards of the
California Health and Safety Code. Food cannot be donated if it is not in
compliance with the food safety standards of the California Health and
Safety Code, including food that is returned by a customer, has been
served or sold and in the possession of a consumer, or is the subject of

a recall.

Mandatory Solid Waste, Organic Waste, and Recycling Materials Ordinance Page 23 of 40



(2)

3

4

()

(6)
(7)

Contract with or enter into a written agreement with Food Recovery
Organizations or Food Recovery Services for: (i) the collection of Edible
Food for Food Recovery; or, (ii) acceptance of the Edible Food that the
Commercial Edible Food Generator Self-Hauls to the Food Recovery
Organization for Food Recovery.

Not intentionally spoil Edible Food that is capable of being recovered by
a Food Recovery Organization or a Food Recovery Service.

Allow the District, its agents, or the District's designated enforcement
entity or designated third party enforcement entity to access the
Premises and review records pursuant to 14 CCR Section 18991 .4.

Keep records that include the following information, or as otherwise
specified in 14 CCR Section 18991 .4:

(i) A list of each Food Recovery Service or organization that collects
or receives its Edible Food pursuant to a contract or written
agreement established under 14 CCR Section 18991.3(b).

(ii) A copy of all contracts or written agreements established under
14 CCR Section 18991.3(b).

(i) A record of the following information for each of those Food
Recovery Services or Food Recovery Organizations:

(A)The name, address and contact information of the Food
Recovery Service or Food Recovery Organization.

(B) The types of food that will be collected by or Self-Hauled to
the Food Recovery Service or Food Recovery Organization.

(C)The established frequency that food will be collected or Self-
Hauled.

(D)The quantity of food, measured in pounds recovered per
month, collected or Self-Hauled to a Food Recovery Service
or Food Recovery Organization for Food Recovery.

Maintain records required by this Section for five (5) years.

No later than January 31 of each year commencing no later than
January 31, 2023, for Tier One Commercial Edible Food Generators and
January 31, 2025, for Tier Two Commercial Edible Food Generators,
provide an annual Food Recovery report to the District or its Designee
that includes the following information:

Mandatory Solid Waste, Organic Waste, and Recycling Materials Ordinance Page 24 of 40



(d)

(i) The amount, in pounds, of edible food donated to a Food
Recovery Service or Food Recovery Organization annually; and,

(i) The amount, in pounds of edible food rejected by a Food
Recovery Service or Food Recovery Organization annually.

(i)  Any additional information required by the District Manager or
their Designee.

Nothing in this Ordinance shall be construed to limit or conflict with the
protections provided by the California Good Samaritan Food Donation Act of
2017, the Federal Good Samaritan Act, or share table and school food donation
guidance pursuant to Senate Bill 557 of 2017 (approved by the Governor of the
State of California on September 25, 2017, which added Article 13
[commencing with Section 49580] to Chapter 9 of Part 27 of Division 4 of Title
2 of the Education Code, and to amend Section 114079 of the Health and
Safety Code, relating to food safety, as amended, supplemented, superseded
and replaced from time to time).

1.160 Requirements for Food Recovery Organizations and Services

(a)

(b)

Food Recovery Services collecting or receiving Edible Food directly from
Commercial Edible Food Generators, via a contract or written agreement
established under 14 CCR Section 18991.3(b), shall maintain the following
records, or as otherwise specified by 14 CCR Section 18991.5(a)(1):

(1) The name, address, and contact information for each Commercial
Edible Food Generator from which the service collects Edible Food.

(2)  The quantity in pounds of Edible Food collected from each Commercial
Edible Food Generator per month.

(3) The quantity in pounds of Edible Food transported to each Food
Recovery Organization per month.

(4) The name, address, and contact information for each Food Recovery
Organization that the Food Recovery Service transports Edible Food to

for Food Recovery.

Food Recovery Organizations collecting or receiving Edible Food directly from
Commercial Edible Food Generators, via a contract or written agreement
established under 14 CCR Section 18991.3(b), shall maintain the following
records, or as otherwise specified by 14 CCR Section 18991.5(a)(2):

(1) The name, address, and contact information for each Commercial
Edible Food Generator from which the organization receives Edible

Food.

Mandatory Solid Waste, Organic Waste, and Recycling Materials Ordinance Page 25 of 40



(c)
(d)

(e)

®

(9)

(2)  The quantity in pounds of Edible Food received from each Commercial
Edible Food Generator per month.

(3) The name, address, and contact information for each Food Recovery
Service that the organization receives Edible Food from for Food

Recovery.
Maintain records required by this Section for five years.

Food Recovery Organizations and Food Recovery Services that have their
primary address physically located in the District and contract with or have
written agreements with one or more Commercial Edible Food Generators
pursuant to 14 CCR Section 18991.3(b) shall report to the District it is located
in and the District's Designee, if applicable, the total pounds of Edible Food
recovered in the previous calendar year from the Tier One and Tier Two
Commercial Edible Food Generators they have established a contract or
written agreement with pursuant to 14 CCR Section 18991.3(b). The annual
report shall be submitted to the District and the District's Designee, if
applicable, no later than January 31 of each year.

In order to support Edible Food Recovery capacity planning assessments or
other studies conducted by the District that provides Solid Waste collection
services, or its designated entity, Food Recovery Services and Food Recovery
Organizations operating in the District shall provide information and
consultation to the District and District’'s Designee, if applicable, upon request,
regarding existing, or proposed new or expanded, Food Recovery capacity that
could be accessed by the District and its Commercial Edible Food Generators.
A Food Recovery Service or Food Recovery Organization contacted by the
District and/or its Designee shall respond to such request for information within
60 days, unless a shorter timeframe is otherwise specified by the District.

Food Recovery Organizations and Food Recovery Services that have their
primary address physically located in the District and contract with or have
written agreements with one or more Commercial Edible Food Generators shall
include language in all agreements with Tier 1 and Tier 2 edible food generators
located in the District identifying and describing the California Good Samaritan

Act of 2017.

Nothing in this chapter prohibits a Food Recovery Organization or Food
Recovery Service from refusing to accept Edible Food from a Commercial
Edible Food Generator.

1.170 Requirements for Haulers and Facility Operators

(a)

Requirements for Haulers

(1)  Franchise hauler(s) providing Recyclable Materials, Organic Waste,
and/or Solid Waste collection services to Generators within the District's

Mandatory Solid Waste, Organic Waste, and Recycling Materials Ordinance Page 26 of 40



(2)

boundaries shall meet the following requirements and standards as a
condition of approval of its contract, agreement, permit, or other
authorization with the District to collect Recyclable Materials, Organic
Materials, and/or Solid Waste:

(i) Through written notice to the District annually on or before
January 1 of each year, identify the facilities to which they will
transport Discarded Materials, including facilities for Source
Separated Recyclable Materials, Source Separated Organic
Materials, and Solid Waste unless otherwise stated in the
Franchise Agreement, contract, permit, or license, or other
authorization with the District.

(i) Transport Source Separated Recyclable Materials to a facility
that recovers those materials; transport Source Separated
Organic Materials to a facility, operation, activity, or property that
recovers Organic Waste as defined in 14 CCR, Division 7,
Chapter 12, Article 2; transport Solid Waste to a disposal facility
or transfer facility or operation that processes or disposes of Solid
Waste; and transport manure to a facility that manages manure
in conformance with 14 CCR Article 12 and such that the manure
is not landfilled, used as Alternative Daily Cover (ADC), or used
as Alternative Intermediate Cover (AIC).

(i)  Obtain approval from the District to haul Organic Waste, unless it
is transporting Source Separated Organic Waste to a Community
Composting site or lawfully transporting C&D in a manner that
complies with 14 CCR Section 18989.1, and Section 1.180 of this

Ordinance.

Franchise hauler(s) authorized to collect Recyclable Materials, Organic
Materials, and/or Solid Waste shall comply with education, equipment,
signage, container labeling, container color, contamination monitoring,
reporting, and other requirements contained within its Franchise
Agreement, permit, or other agreement entered into with the District.

(b) Requirements for Facility Operators and Community Composting Operations

(1)

Owners of facilities, operations, and activities located in the District's
boundaries that recover Organic Waste, including, but not limited to,
Compost facilities, in-vessel digestion facilities, and publicly-owned
treatment works shall, upon District request, provide information
regarding available and potential new or expanded capacity at their
facilities, operations, and activities, including information about
throughput and permitted capacity necessary for planning purposes.
Entities contacted by the District shall respond within 60 days.

Mandatory Solid Waste, Organic Waste, and Recycling Materials Ordinance Page 27 of 40



(2) Community Composting operators with operations located in the
District's boundaries, upon District request, shall provide information to
the District to support Organic Waste capacity planning, including, but
not limited to, an estimate of the amount of Organic Waste anticipated
to be handled at the Community Composting operation. Entities
contacted by the District shall respond within 60 days.

(3)  Owners of facilities, operations, and activities located in the District's
boundaries that receive Recyclable Materials, Organic Materials, and/or
Solid Waste shall provide to the District, on a quarterly basis, copies of
all reports they are required to report to CalRecycle under 14 CCR.

1.180 Self-Hauler Requirements

(a)

(b)

(c)

Every Self-Hauler shall Source Separate its Recyclable Materials and Organic
Materials (materials that District otherwise requires Generators or Responsible
Parties to separate for collection in the District's Recyclable Materials and
Organic Materials collection program) generated on-site from Solid Waste in a
manner consistent with 14 CCR Section 18984.1 and the District’s collection
program. Self-Haulers shall deliver their materials to facilities described in
subsection (b) below. Alternatively, Self-Haulers may or choose not to Source
Separate Recyclable Materials and Organic Materials and shall haul its Solid
Waste (that includes Recyclable Materials and Organic Materials) to a High
Diversion Organic Waste Processing Facility subject to advance written
approval by the District.

Self-Haulers that Source Separate their Recyclable Materials and Organic
Materials shall haul their Source Separated Recyclable Materials to a facility
that recovers those materials; haul their Source Separated Organic Waste to a
facility, operation, activity, or property that processes or recovers Source
Separated Organic Waste; and haul their Solid Waste to a disposal facility or
transfer facility or operation that processes or disposes of Solid Waste.

Self-Haulers that are Responsible Parties of Commercial Businesses or Multi-
Family Premises shall keep records of the amount of Recyclable Materials,
Organic Waste, and Solid Waste delivered to each facility, operation, activity,
or property that processes or recovers Recyclable Materials and Organic
Waste and processes or disposes of Solid Waste or shall keep records of Solid
Waste delivered to High Diversion Organic Waste Processing Facilities. These
records shall be subject to review by the District and/or its Designee(s). The
records shall include the following information:

(1)  Delivery receipts and weight tickets from the entity accepting the
Recyclable Materials, Organic Materials, and Solid Waste.

(2) The amount of material in cubic yards or Tons transported by the
Generator or Responsible Party to each entity.

Mandatory Solid Waste, Organic Waste, and Recycling Materials Ordinance Page 28 of 40



(d)

(e)

(f)

(9

(3)  If the material is transported to an entity that does not have scales on-
site or employs scales incapable of weighing the Self-Hauler's vehicle in
a manner that allows it to determine the weight of materials received,
the Self-Hauler is not required to record the weight of material but shall
keep a record of the entities that received the Recyclable Materials,
Organic Materials, and Solid Waste.

Self-Haulers shall retain all records and data required to be maintained by this
Section for no less than five (5) years after the Recyclable Materials, Organic
Materials, and/or Solid Waste was first delivered to the facility accepting the

material.

Within 14 days of said request, Self-Haulers that are Commercial Businesses
or Multi-Family Premises shall provide copies of records required by this
Section to the District if requested by the District General Manager and shall
provide the records at the frequency requested by the District Manager.

A Single-Family Generator or Single-Family Responsible Party that Self-Hauls
Recyclable Materials, Organic Waste, or Solid Waste is not required to record

or report information in Section 1.180(c) and (d).

Pursuant to 14 CCR Section 18815.9, Food Waste Self-Haulers are required
to maintain records and report to CalRecycle information on the Tons of Food
Waste Self-Hauled and the facilities or each use of such material. Food Waste
Self-Haulers shall provide to the District, on a quarterly basis, copies of all
reports they are required to report to CalRecycle.

1.200 INSPECTIONS AND INVESTIGATIONS

1.210 Inspections and Investigations

(a)

(b)

The District representatives or its Designee(s) are authorized to conduct
Inspections and investigations, at random or otherwise, of any collection
container, collection vehicle loads, or transfer, processing, or disposal facility
for materials collected from Generators, or Source Separated materials to
confirm compliance with this Ordinance by Generators, Responsible Parties of
Single-Family Premises, Responsible Parties of Commercial Businesses,
Responsible Parties of Multi-Family Premises, Commercial Edible Food
Generators, haulers, Self-Haulers, Food Recovery Services, and Food
Recovery Organizations, subject to applicable laws. This Section does not
allow District or its Designee to enter the interior of a private residential property

for Inspection.

Entities regulated by this Ordinance shall provide or arrange for access during
all Inspections (with the exception of residential property interiors) and shall
cooperate with the District's representative or it's Designee during such
Inspections and investigations. Such Inspections and investigations may
include confirmation of proper placement of materials in containers, inspection

Mandatory Solid Waste, Organic Waste, and Recycling Materials Ordinance Page 29 of 40



(c)

(d)

(e)

(f)

of Edible Food Recovery activities, review of required records, or other
verification or Inspection to confirm compliance with any other requirement of
this Ordinance. Failure of a Responsible Party to provide or arrange for: (i)
access to an entity’s Premises; or (ii) access to records for any Inspection or
investigation is a violation of this Ordinance and may result in penalties
described in Section 1.510.

Any records obtained by the District or its Designee during its Inspections, and
other reviews shall be subject to the requirements and applicable disclosure
exemptions of the Public Records Act as set forth in Government Code Section

6250 et seq.

The District representatives or their Designee are authorized to conduct any
Inspections, or other investigations as reasonably necessary to further the
goals of this Ordinance, subject to applicable laws.

The District or its Designee shall receive written complaints from persons
regarding an entity that may be potentially non-compliant with SB 1383
Regulations, including receipt of anonymous complaints.

The District representatives and/or their Designee are authorized to provide
informational notices to entities regulated by this Ordinance regarding
compliance with this Ordinance.

1.300 COLLECTION OF RATES AND CHARGES

1.310 Collection Rates and Collection Of Delinquent Fees And Charges

(a)

(b)

Collection rates, fees and charges for solid waste collection and disposal shall
be established pursuant to the California Constitution Article XIlID and set by
the Franchisee.

Once each year, prior to a date established by the District, the Franchisee
shall take the following actions to collect delinquent solid waste collection and
disposal accounts:

(1)  Present to the District a list of Responsible Parties and/or Owners (with
corresponding parcel numbers) within the District whose accounts are
more than one hundred twenty days past due;

(2) Send a certified letter requesting payment to each Responsible Party
and/or Owner with a delinquent account;

(3) At least thirty days after receiving delivery certification for payment
requests, present to the District a list of Responsible Parties and/or
Owners (with corresponding parcel numbers) whose accounts are still
past due.

Mandatory Solid Waste, Organic Waste, and Recycling Materials Ordinance Page 30 of 40



(c) After the Franchisee has completed all of the actions listed in Paragraph (a),
the District Board of Directors will adopt a resolution authorizing the County
Auditor to place the delinquent accounts upon the tax roll. The Franchisee
shall bear the full cost of any fees charged by the County Auditor to place the
delinquent accounts on the tax roll.

1.320 Franchise for Collection — Authorization

(a) A Franchise, exclusive or nonexclusive, for the collection and disposal of solid
waste may be granted and/or authorized by the District or its Designee.

(b) No person shall collect, or enter into an agreement to collect, or provide for the
collection or disposal of Discarded Materials, unless such person is authorized
by the District to operate within the District by means of a Franchise Agreement.

1.400 RULES AND REGULATIONS

1.410 Regulations For Accumulation Of Solid Waste, Cast Offs, Rubble, And Refuse

(a) No Responsible Party, Generator, or Owner of property shall allow the following
to be accumulated on any property, lot, parcel, or Premises:

(1)  Solid waste of any kind, unless the same shall be in a Solid Waste
Container.

(2) Discarded mattresses, couches, chairs, and other household furniture.

(3)  Construction material, demolition material, Rubble, Refuse, and/or
debris.

(4) Hazardous Materials of any kind.

(5)  Bulky ltems and Cast Offs.

(b) No Responsible Party, Generator, or Owner shall dispose of Solid Waste,

Recyclable Materials, or Organic Waste by:

(1)  Causing it to be placed on another's lot, parcel, or Premises.

(2) Causing it to be deposited in or near litter receptacles placed by the
District in public places for incidental use by pedestrians or vehicular
traffic.

(3)  Causing it to be deposited on any public or private place, street, lane,
alley, or drive.

(4)  Causing it to be placed into any Standard Container other than those in

possession of such Responsible Party or Generator unless permission
for such use is granted by the Commercial or Residential Customer in
possession of the Standard Container(s).

Mandatory Solid Waste, Organic Waste, and Recycling Materials Ordinance Page 31 of 40



(c)

The Responsible Party and/or Owner of a developed or non-developed
(vacant) lot or parcel of land shall be liable for paying the costs, including
administrative costs and attorneys' fees for the removal of Solid Waste, Refuse,
Cast Offs, and Rubble that accumulates on his/her property in violation of this
section, if said waste is not removed after notice, as provided in Section 1.420.

1.420 Clearing of Accumulated Solid Waste And Rubble

(a)

(b)

(c)

The accumulation of Solid Waste, Refuse, Cast Offs, and/or Rubble in violation
of this Ordinance is hereby declared to be a public nuisance.

The District or its Designee is authorized and empowered to notify the Owner,
his or her agent, or person in control of any lot, parcel, or Premises within the
District, and direct them to dispose of Solid Waste, Refuse, Cast Offs, and/or
Rubble that has accumulated in violation of this Section 1.420. Such notice
shall be given by posting the lot, parcel, or Premises and by certified mail
addressed to the Responsible Party and/or Owner, his or her agent, at his or
her last known address, or by personal service on the owner, agent, person in
control or occupant of the property or Premises.

The notice shall describe the work to be done and shall state that if the work is
not commenced within ten calendar days after receipt of notice and diligently
prosecuted to completion without interruption, the District and/or its Designee
shall notify the County Environmental Health Department to commence
abatement proceedings. Cost of said abatement, including administrative costs
and attorneys' fees, shall be a lien on the property. The notice shall be
substantially in the following form:

NOTICE TO REMOVE
SOLID WASTE REFUSE, CAST OFFS, AND/OR RUBBLE

The owner of the property commonly known as: is
hereby ordered to properly dispose of the solid waste matter, refuse, cast offs,
and/or rubble located on the property, to wit: (type of waste matter to be disposed
of) within ten calendar days from the date hereof. If the disposal of the solid waste
matter, cast-offs, and/or rubble herein described is not commenced and diligently
prosecuted to completion within the time fixed herein, the District Operations
Supervisor will apply to the County of San Luis Obispo Environmental Health
Department for an order to abate said nuisance, and the costs of such abatement
shall become a charge against the property, and shall be made a special
assessment against the property. Said special assessment may be collected at the
same time and in the same manner as is provided for the collection of ordinary
County taxes, and shall be subject to the same procedures as foreclosure and sale
in the case of delinquency as is provided for ordinary County taxes.

Mandatory Solid Waste, Organic Waste, and Recycling Materials Ordinance Page 32 of 40



(d)

(e)

If you should have any questions, please contact the undersigned at (805) 595-
2664.

Date:

District General Manager

cc: San Luis Obispo County Environmental Health Department

The District shall cause to be kept in his/her office a permanent record
containing:

(1)  a description of each parcel, property, or Premises for which notice to
dispose of waste matter has been given;

(2) the name of the Owner, if known;

(3) the date the matter was referred to the San Luis Obispo County
Department of Environmental Health;

(4)  action taken by the County Department of Environmental Health. Each
such entry shall be made as soon as practicable after completion of such

act.

The County of San Luis Obispo Environmental Health Department is hereby
authorized to enforce all abatement proceedings authorized by this section.

1.430 Storage And Placement Of Standard Containers For Pick-Up

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

All residential Standard Containers shall be placed for collection along the
street in front of the premises or the rear alley, when applicable, only on the
date established for the collection of solid waste on the particular route, or after
5:30 P.M. on the day immediately prior to suich collection, and shall not remain
thereon for more than twelve (12) hours after it has been emptied unless
special in yard service has been contracted for.

Any Container placed for collection along a street or roadway shall be placed
within three feet of the edge of the street or roadway, without causing a safety
hazard. In the event that automated service is provided in the District,
Containers shall be placed in accordance with guidelines established by the
Franchisee and approved by the District.

Upon collection, the Franchisee shall place all Standard Containers
approximately 3 feet from the edge of the street or roadway, to avoid creating

a safety hazard.

No person other than a Franchisee or Customer shall interfere in any manner

Mandatory Solid Waste, Organic Waste, and Recycling Materials Ordinance Page 33 of 40



with any Standard Container or the contents thereof, or remove any Discarded
Materials from the location where it was placed by the Customer or Franchisee,
nor remove the contents of any Standard Container.

1.440 Unlawful Collection

(a)

(b)

A Franchisee shall not be required to collect Hazardous Waste, or dangerous
materials as part of its regular collection activity. Liquid and dry caustics,
acids, biohazardous, flammable, explosive materials, insecticides, and similar
substances shall not be deposited in Standard Containers. Any person
collecting such substances shall store, handle and dispose of such materials
in accordance with local, state and federal law and shall obtain all necessary
local, state and federal permits therefor.

A Franchisee shall not be required to collect Infectious Waste (as defined in
California Health and Safety Code Section 7054.4, as amended from time to
time, or any successor provision or provisions thereto) as part of its regular
collection activity. Anyone producing such wastes shall store, handle and
dispose of such materials only in the manner approved by the County health
officer or designated deputy, and in accordance with local, state and federal
law and with all necessary local, state and federal permits.

1.450 Condition of Collection Trucks

Every truck used by a Franchisee in the collection and removal of Discarded Materials
shall be kept well painted, clean, and in good operating condition.

1.460 Exceptions

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Nothing in this Ordinance shall be deemed to prohibit the removal and hauling
by a licensed person pursuant to the terms and conditions of this Ordinance.

Nothing in this Ordinance shall be construed to prohibit any producer of Solid
Waste, Cast Offs, Rubble, or Refuse from hauling the same to a permitted
disposal site pursuant to the terms and conditions of this Ordinance.

Nothing in this Ordinance shall be construed to prohibit the collection and
removal of Yard Trimmings or Green Waste by individual residents and by
individuals doing business as professional landscapers, when the collection is
directly related to their work and done pursuant to the terms and conditions of

this Ordinance.

Nothing in this Ordinance shall limit the right of Generator, Responsible Party,
Owner, or Commercial Business, or other entity to donate, sell or otherwise
dispose of Solid Waste provided that any such disposal is in accordance with
the provisions of this Ordinance.

Mandatory Solid Waste, Organic Waste, and Recycling Materials Ordinance Page 34 of 40



1.500 VIOLATIONS AND PENALTIES

1.510 Enforcement

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Violation of any provision of this Ordinance shall constitute grounds for
issuance of a Notice of Violation and assessment of a fine by the District or its

Designee.

Other remedies allowed by law may be used, including civil action or
prosecution as a misdemeanor or infraction. The District may pursue civil
actions in the California courts to seek recovery of unpaid administrative
citations. The District may, at its option, choose to delay court action until such
time as a sufficiently large number of violations or cumulative size of violations
exists such that court action is a reasonable use of the District's staff and

resources.
Responsible Entity for Enforcement

(1)  Enforcement pursuant to this Ordinance may be undertaken by the
District General Manager or its Designee, agent, legal counsel, or
combination thereof.

(2)  Enforcement may also be undertaken by a County Enforcement Official
if so designated by the District.

(3)  The District General Manager and/or its Designee may issue Notices of
Violation(s).

Process for Enforcement

(1) The District General Manager and/or its Designee will monitor
compliance with the Ordinance through Compliance Reviews, Route
Reviews, investigation of complaints, and an Inspection program. The
District General Manager and/or the County Enforcement Officials
and/or its designee may also monitor compliance with the Ordinance

randomly.

(2) The District may issue an official notification to notify regulated entities
of its obligations under the Ordinance.

(3) For incidences of Prohibited Container Contaminants found in
containers, the District or its Designee will issue an informational notice
of contamination to any Generator or Responsible Party found to have
Prohibited Container Contaminants in a container. Such notice will be
provided via a cart tag or other communication immediately upon
identification of the Prohibited Container Contaminants or within seven
(7) days after determining that a violation has occurred. If the District,
the County or their designee observes

Prohibited Container

Mandatory Solid Waste, Organic Waste, and Recycling Materials Ordinance Page 35 of 40



4)

(5)

(6)

Contaminants in a Responsible Party's containers on more than three
(3) consecutive occasion(s), the District/County may assess
contamination processing fees or contamination penalties on the
Generator.

With the exception of violations of contamination of container contents
addressed under Section 1.510(k), the District shall issue a Notice of
Violation requiring compliance within 60 days of issuance of the notice.

Absent compliance by the respondent within the deadline set forth in the
Notice of Violation, the District shall commence an action to impose
penalties, via an administrative citation and fine, pursuant to Section
1.510(k), Table 1, List of Example Violations.

Notices shall be sent to “Owner” at the official address of the owner
maintained by the tax collector for the County Assessor or if no such
address is available, to the owner at the address of the Multi-Family
Premises or Commercial Premises or to the Responsible Party for the
collection services, depending upon available information.

(e) Penalty Amounts for Types of Violations

The penalty levels are as follows, as prescribed by 14 CCR Section 18997.2
and any other applicable code or regulation:

(1)

(2)

(3)

For a first violation, the amount of the base penalty shall be $50 to $100
per violation.

For a second violation, the amount of the base penalty shall be $100 to
$200 per violation.

For a third or subsequent violation, the amount of the base penalty shall
be $250 to $500 per violation.

H Factors Considered in Determining Penalty Amount

The following factors shall be used to determine the amount of the penality for
each violation within the appropriate penalty amount range:

(1)
(2)
(3)
(4)

The nature, circumstances, and severity of the violation(s).
The violator’s ability to pay.
The willfulness of the violator's misconduct.

Whether the violator took measures to avoid or mitigate violations of this
chapter.

Mandatory Solid Waste, Organic Waste, and Recycling Materials Ordinance Page 36 of 40



()

(h)

(i)

1)

(5)  Evidence of any economic benefit resulting from the violation(s).

(6)  The deterrent effect of the penalty on the violator.

(7)  Whether the violation(s) were due to conditions outside the control of the
violator.

Compliance Deadline Extension Considerations

The District may extend the compliance deadlines set forth in a Notice of
Violation issued in accordance with this Section if it finds that there are
extenuating circumstances beyond the control of the respondent that make
compliance within the deadlines impracticable, including the following:

(1) Acts of God such as earthquakes, wildfires, flooding, and other
emergencies or natural disasters;

(2) Delays in obtaining discretionary permits or other government agency
approvals; or,

(3) Deficiencies in Organic Waste recycling infrastructure or Edible Food
Recovery capacity and the City/County is under a corrective action plan
with CalRecycle pursuant to 14 CCR Section 18996.2 due to those

deficiencies.

Appeals Process

Persons receiving an administrative citation containing a penalty for an
uncorrected violation may request a hearing to appeal the citation. A hearing
will be held only if it is requested within the time prescribed and consistent with
the Districts formal or informal procedures for appeals of administrative
citations. Evidence may be presented at the hearing. The District will appoint a
hearing officer who shall conduct the hearing and issue a final written order.

Education Period for Non-Compliance

Beginning January 1, 2022 and through December 31, 2023, the District or its
Designee will conduct Inspections, Route Reviews or waste evaluations, and
Compliance Reviews, depending upon the type of regulated entity, to
determine compliance, and if the District or its Designee determines that
Generator, Responsible Party, Self-Hauler, hauler, Tier One Commercial
Edible Food Generator, Food Recovery Organization, Food Recovery Service,
or other entity is not in compliance, it shall provide educational materials to the
entity describing its obligations under this Ordinance and a notice that
compliance is required by January 1, 2022, and that violations may be subject
to administrative civil penalties starting on January 1, 2024.

Civil Penalties for Non-Compliance

Mandatory Solid Waste, Organic Waste, and Recycling Materials Ordinance Page 37 of 40



Beginning January 1, 2024, if the District determines that a Generator,
Responsible Party, Self-Hauler, hauler, Tier One or Tier Two Commercial
Edible Food Generator, Food Recovery Organization, Food Recovery Service,
or other entity is not in compliance with this Ordinance, it shall document the
noncompliance or violation, issue a Notice of Violation, and take Enforcement
Action pursuant to this Section, as needed.

(k) Enforcement Table
Table 1. List of Example Violations

Requirement Description of Violation

~ Commercial Business Multi- | Responsible Party for a Commercial Business or Multi-

Family Premises Family Premises fails to provide or arrange for Organic
' Responsibility Requirement ~ Waste collection services consistent with District
Sections 1.120 and 1.130 - requirements and as outlined in this Ordinance, for

' employees, contractors, tenants, and customers,
“including supplying and allowing access to adequate
' numbers, size, and location of containers and
sufficient signage and container color.

| Organic Waste Generator or | Organic Waste Generator or Responsible Party fails

Responsible Party to comply with requirements pursuant to this
Requirement Ordinance.

Section 1.110, 1.120, and

1.130

Hauler Requirement A hauler providing Single-Family, Multi-Family or
Section 1.170 Commercial collection service fails to transport

Discarded Materials to a facility, operation, activity, or
property that recovers Organic Waste, as prescribed

by this Ordinance.
Hauler Requirement A hauler providing Single-Family, Multi-Family or
Section 1.170 Commercial Recyclable Materials, Organic Materials,

or Solid Waste collection service fails to obtain
applicable approval issued by the District to haul
Recyclable Materials, Organic Materials, or Solid
Waste as prescribed by this Ordinance.

Hauler Requirement A hauler fails to keep a record of the applicable

Section 1.170 documentation of its approval by the District, as
prescribed by this Ordinance.

Mandatory Solid Waste, Organic Waste, and Recycling Materials Ordinance Page 38 of 40



Requirement

Self-Hauler Requirement
. Section 1.180

i
Commercial Edible Food

Generator Requirement
, Section 1.150

: Commercial Edible Food
" Generator Requirement
Section 1.150

Commercial Business
Responsible Party, Multi-
Family Premises
Responsible Party,
Commercial Edible Food
Generator, Food Recovery
Organization or Food
Recovery Service
- Sections 1.120, 1.130,
1.150, 1.160, and 1.210

Recordkeeping
Requirements for
Commercial Edible Food
Generator

Section 1.150

Recordkeeping
Requirements for Food

Description of Violation

- A Generator or Responsible Party who is a Self- !
" Hauler fails to comply with the requirements of this f

- Ordinance.

i
Tier One Commercial Edible Food Generator fails to
arrange to recover the maximum amount of its Edible .
Food that would otherwise be disposed by establishing 5
' a contract or written agreement with a Food Recovery
Organization or Food Recovery Service and/or fails to
. comply with other requirements of this Ordinance
‘ commencing Jan. 1, 2022.

. Tier Two Commercial Edible Food Generator fails to '

- arrange to recover the maximum amount of its Edible

! Food that would otherwise be disposed by establishing |

| a contract or written agreement with a Food Recovery f

' Organization or Food Recovery Service and/or fails to

. comply with other requirements of this Ordinance
commencing Jan. 1, 2024.

Failure to provide or arrange for access to an entity’s
. Premises for any Inspection or investigation.

!Tier One or Tier Two Commercial Edible Food
Generator fails to keep records, as prescribed by
Section 1.150 of this Ordinance.

A Food Recovery Organization or Food Recovery
Service that has established a contract or written

Recovery Services and Food agreement to collect or receive Edible Food directly

Recovery Organizations
Section 1.160

Mandatory Solid Waste, Organic Waste, and Recycling Materials Ordinance

from a Commercial Edible Food Generator pursuant

Page 39 of 40



Requirement Description of Violation

to 14 CCR Section 18991.3(b) fails to keep records,
as prescribed by Section 1.160 of this Ordinance. i

SECTION 2. CalRecycle Issued Waivers

Certain provisions of this Ordinance may be subject to a low-population waiver pursuant
to Article 3 in Title 14 of the California Code of Regulations, Sections 18984 through
18984.13. Please contact the District for verification.

SECTION 3. CEQA

The District finds that this Ordinance is exempt from the California Environmental Quality
Act ("CEQA") pursuant to State CEQA Guidelines Sections 15061(b)(3) and 15308 on
the grounds that it can be seen with certainty that the enhanced waste disposal
regulations, as provided for in this Ordinance will not have a significant effect on the
environment and that the new requirements, which strengthen requirements for the
handling of waste materials, represent actions by a regulatory agency for the protection
of the environment.

SECTION 4. Severability

If any section, subsection, subdivision, sentence, clause, phrase, or portion of this
Ordinance for any reason is held to be invalid or unconstitutional by the decision of any
court of competent jurisdiction, such decision shall not affect the validity of the remaining
portions of this Ordinance. The District hereby declares that it would have adopted this
Ordinance, and each section, subsection, subdivision, sentence, clause, phrase, or
portion thereof, irrespective of the fact that any one or more sections, subsections,
subdivisions, sentences, clauses, phrases, or portions thereof be declared invalid or
unconstitutional.

SECTION 5. Effective Date
This Ordinance shall be effective commencing on September 9, 2022.

Mandatory Solid Waste, Organic Waste, and Recycling Materials Ordinance Page 40 of 40






SECOND AMENDED AND RESTATED JOINT POWERS AGREEMENT

TO ESTABLISH AN
INTEGRATED WASTE MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY
FOR THE CITIES AND-COUNTY-OF SAN LUIS OBISPO COUNTY, CALIFORNIA

THIS SECOND AMENDED AND RESTATED JOINT POWERS AGREEMENT is
made and entered into this 4.-0‘“__ day of May-1994 , 2022, by and

between the incorporated cities of Arroyo Grande, Atascadero, El Paso de
Robles, Grover Beach, Morro Bay, Pismo Beach, and San Luis Obispo, all being
municipal corporations of the State of California and located within the
boundaries of the County of San Luis Obispo California, hereinafter called

WHEREAS;-it-is-desirableWHEREAS, on May 10, 1994, an agreement was

executed by and between the Cities and the County of San Luis Obispo
(“County”) forming a joint powers authority pursuant to the provisions of the
Joint Exercise of Powers Act (Government Code section 6500 et seq., for the
purpose of facilitating the development of waste diversion programs and
projects that provide economies of scale without interfering with individual
agencies’ exercise of power within their own jurisdiction (hereinafter referred to

as the “Original JPA Agreement”); and
WHEREAS, pursuant to the Original JPA Agreement, the member agencies
created and established a public entity identified as the San Luis Obispo County

Integrated Waste Management Authority (“IWMA”); and




WHEREAS, in or around 2001, a Memorandum of Agreement (“MOA”) was
executed by and between the Cities, the County, and certain special districts
within the County (“Authorized Districts”) amending the Original JPA Agreement
to include the Authorized Districts for representation on the IWMA Board; and

WHEREAS, on or about November 15, 2021, the County withdrew from
the IWMA; and the Cities and Authorized Districts determined that a single

regional agency be—ereated—by—and—with—the —corsent—at—CIES—and

COUNTYremained advantageous to advise, plan for, suggest—and implement

solutions to common solid waste pmblems—assqst—wth—pregmms—by—uﬂhz—mg—the

e#—e*%n—vaﬂeas—ethe;—f@dsﬁand—te—eeema{ce—themand a waste diversion

efforts; and
WHEREAS;WHEREAS, the IWMA was originally formed to meet the

requirements of the California Integrated Waste Management Act (California
Public Resources Code section 40000 et seq.) and all regulations adopted under
that legislation requiresrequire, among other things, that certain public agencies
in California make adequate provision for solid waste management within their

jurisdictions; and
WHEREAS, since the HHESIWMA’s formation, Assembly Bill 341 (Chesbro,

2011) (Recycling of Commercial Solid Waste (”MCR”)} was signed into law and

epe#a-te—a-nd—een#el—faeht—resestabhshed requwements for the—eeueehen—

transportation,—processing—and—disposal—of—the—jurisdictions to implement a
commercial solid waste—reluding—reeyelables; recycling program designed to

divert commercial solid waste; and

WHEREAS, since the IWMA's formation, Assembly Bill 1826 (Chesbro,
2014) (Recycling of Commercial Organic Waste (“MORe”)) was signed into law
and established the requirement for jurisdictions to implement an organic waste

recycling program to divert organic waste generated within-theijurisdictionsby

businesses; and
WHEREAS, since the IWMA'’s formation, Senate Bill 1383 (Lara, 2016) was
sighed into law requiring jurisdictions to implement organic waste diversion




programs that include providing organic waste collection services to businesses
and residences, edible food recovery goals, public education and outreach,
contamination monitoring and sampling activities, recordkeeping and reporting,
organic_materials and edible food recovery, infrastructure capacity planning,
procurement of recovered organic waste products, and enforcement; and
WHEREAS, the cHHES-and-COUNTYCities and Authorized Districts continue

to believe that by combining their separate powers they can achieve their waste
diversion goals and satisfy the requirements of the Integrated Waste
Management Act and other legislation more effectively than if they exercise

those powers separately; and

WHEREAS, the CHHES-ard-COUNIY-intend-by-thisAgreement-to-exercise

WHEREAS,-the-CHHESand-COUNTY-intend-Cities affirm, that pursuant to

this Second Amended and Restated Joint Powers Agreement, to—establishthe
IWMA remains a regional agency in accordance with Public Resources Code
Seetion40973:section 40970 et seq.; and

WHEREAS, the-CHHESand-COUNTY-intend;-pursuant to this-agreementand

Rublic—Resources—Code-Section 40973,-that-said—+regional-agency—andnot-the

EHHESard-COUNTY-which-are-members-of-theregional-agency;40977, the Cities
shall include one (1) Authorized District to be respensiblefor-compliance—with

the-waste—diversion—requirements-setforthincluded as a member in the Rublie

Resources—Code—Article—1IWMA regional agency for the purpose of
representation on the IWMA Board of Chapter6—{commencing-withDirectors;
and

WHERAS, the Authorized District “member” may change from time to
time; the current elected or appointed Authorized District representative shall
represent the collective interests of all Authorized Districts; and




WHEREAS, this Second Amended and Restated Joint Powers Agreement
shall be considered a Memorandum of Understanding between the Cities and
the Authorized Districts to enable and allow one (1) representative of the
Authorized Districts to participate in the governance of the INMA as a member
agency pursuant to Section 41780)%40977 of the Public Resource Code to
represent the interests of all Authorized Districts; and

WHEREAS, the CIHESCities and €COUNT¥the Authorized Districts (together
“Participating Agencies”) desire to establish and confer upon a separate legal
entity the powers necessary to enable them to achieve their waste diversion
goals and to comply with the Integrated Waste Management Act-, Assembly Bill
341, Assembly Bill 1826, Senate Bill 1383, and all current and future state-
mandated laws, rules and regulations to the extent allowed by law and by the
terms and conditions of this Second Amendment; and

WHEREAS, the Participating Agencies desire to avoid a series of
amendments to the Agreement over time due to future state-mandated
legislation and programs, and as such, the parties desire to authorize the IWMA
Board to enact policies, resolutions, and ordinances as are necessary to ensure
and oversee compliance with any and all future state-mandated programs
related to solid waste, recycling, waste diversion, and any other purpose of the

Authority as provided in this Agreement.

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS AGREED AS FOLLOWS:

SECTION 1. Definitions.
To the extent that any of the following definitions conflict with any definition set

forth in the California Integrated Waste Management Act, (PRE-SeePub.

Resources Code, § 40000 et seq.), and the Regulations promulgated thereunder,

said Act and/or Regulations shall take priority. The terms defined in this Section

that begin in this Agreement with quotation marks have the following meanings:



1.1 “Act” means the California Integrated Waste Management
Act of 1989 (Califernia-PublicPub. Resources Code-Sections, § 40000 et seq.) and
all regulations adopted under that legislation, as that legislation and those

regulations may be amended from time to time.

1.2 “Agreement” means this Second Amended and Restated Joint

Exercise of Powers Agreement, as it may be amended from time to time.
1.3 “Authority” means the San Luis Obispo County Integrated
Waste Management Authority, a joint exercise of powers agency created by the

Members pursuant to this Agreement.

1.4 “Authorized Districts” means certain special districts with

solid waste authority participating in the IWMA through this Second Amended

and Restated Joint Powers Agreement, including but not limited to the Avila

Beach Community Services District, California Valley Community Services District,

Cambria Community Services District, Cayucos Sanitary District, Ground Squirrel

Hollow Community Services District, Heritage Ranch Community Services District,

Los Osos Community Services District, Nipomo Community Services District,

Oceano Community Services District, San Miguel Community Services District,

San Simeon Community Services District, and Templeton Community Services

District, or other gualified agencies that may later determine to become a

Participating Agency by execution of this Agreement.

1.5 “Authorized District Representative” means the

representative, or alternate, elected or appointed by the Authorized Districts to

represent the Authorized Districts’ interests as a member of the IWMA regional

agency pursuant to Section 40977 of the Public Resources Code.

141.6“Board” means the Board of Directors of the Authority.

-5-



1.7 “CalRecycle” means the California Department of Resources

Recycling and Recovery.

1.51.8“City” means any MemberParticipating Agency that is a city,

and “Cities” means all of the MembersParticipating Agencies that are citiesCities.

+:61.9“Composting Facility” means a facility at which composting is
conducted and which produces a product meeting the definition of compost in
Public Resources Code (PRC) section 40116. {(“Compost” means the product
resulting from the controlled biological decomposition of organic wastes that are
source separated from the municipal solid waste stream, or which are separated
at a centralized facility. “Compost” includes vegetable, yard and wood wastes
which are not hazardous waste, and biosolids where combined with other
organic materials in a mixture that consists largely of decayed organic matter,

and is used for fertilizing and conditioning land.)

o ”

1.10 “Executive Director” means the person hired and appointed

affairs of the Authority and to implement the policies of the Board.

481.11 “Fiscal Year” means the period commencing on each

July 1 and ending on the following June 30.

191.12  “HHW” means household hazardous waste as described
in the household hazardous waste element as required by the Act (Califernia
PublicPub. Resources Code-Sectiens, § 40000 et seq.), as that element may be

amended from time to time.



1+161.13 “HHWE” means the Household Hazardous Waste
Element as required by the Act (Califernia-PublicPub. Resources Code-Sections, §
40000 et seq.) as that element may be amended from time to time.

1.14 “IWMA” means the Authority as defined herein.

1.15 “IWMA Region” means the jurisdictional territory and

boundaries of all Participating Agencies.

+111.16 __ “Joint Facilities” means a materials recovery facility,

composting or HHW Facility, or other facility developed for the purpose of

complying with requirements established by state legislation or the regulations

of CalRecycle, or combination thereof, which is located-within-the-beundary-of
the-Autherity-ard-is-owned by some or all of the members-Participating Agencies

directly, or by the Authority, or by a private entity, or a public agency, for the

benefit of some or all of the membersParticipating Agencies.

“ ”

+341.17  “"Members” means the Cities who are members of this

regional agency, formed pursuant to Public Resources Code section 40970 et seq,

and the one (1) Authorized District Representative pursuant to Public Resources

Code section 40977.“MRF” means a “materials recovery facility” which means a

permitted solid waste facility where solid wastes or recyclable materials are
sorted or separated, by hand or by use of machinery, for the purposes of

recycling or composting. (Title 14, Ch. 9, Art. 3, Section 18720, “Definitions.”)

-7-



"MRF" also means a transfer station which is designed to, and, as a condition of
its permit, shall recover for reuse or recycling at least 15 percent of the total

volume of material received by the facility. {PRE(Pub. Resources Code, &

50000(a)(4).)

shall include the Cities and the Authorized Districts who are signatories to this

Agreement, delegating powers to the Authority pursuant to this Agreement, and

participating in the governance of the IWMA.

1-151.19 “NDFE” means a Nondisposal Facility Element as
required by the Act (Califernia-PublicPub. Resources Code-Secticns, § 40000 et
seq.), as that element may be amended from time to time.

1161.20 “Revenue Bonds” means revenue bonds, notes,
certificates of participation and any other instruments and evidences of
indebtedness issued by the Authority from time to time pursuant to the law or
any other applicable law in order to finance the MRF, any Joint Facilities or any
Sole Use Facilities.

+171.21  “Sole Use Facilities” means an integrated resource
recovery facility, performing one or more of the functions of a MRF, composting
or HHW Facility which is located within the boundary of the Authority and is

owned by one memberParticipating Agency or a private entity, but in all events is

operated for the benefit of ere—the residents and/or mere,—but—not

all;,constituents of the MembersiIWMA Region.
1381.22  “Solid Waste Landfill” shall have the meaning set forth

in Section 40195.1 of the Public Resources Code, as that section may be

amended from time to time.



+181.23  “SRRE” means a Source Reduction And Recycling
Element as required by the Act (Califernia-PublicPub. Resources Code-Sections, §

40000 et seq.), as that element may be amended from time to time.

SECTION 2. Purpose.

Fhe—members—enter—the—agreement-Government Code section 6500 et seq.

provides that two or more public agencies by agreement may jointly exercise any

power common to the contracting parties. Public Resources Code section 40977

authorizes a district to be included as a member of a regional agency. Public

Resources Code section 40976 authorizes a city or county to enter into a

memorandum of understanding with another city, county, or district for the

purpose of preparing and implementing source reduction and recycling elements

or a countywide integrated waste management plan. It is the intent of the

Participating Agencies to utilize these statutory authorizations in this Agreement.




The Participating Agencies enter this Agreement with the intent to operate the

Authority in compliance with the requirements of the Act and other state

legislation, with a minimum level of staff, addressing those operations and
programs that can be most cost-effectively handled at the regional level by
maximizing local resources, private sector participation, and contract services
provision. The duties and responsibilities of each cityand-the-CountyParticipating
Agency are described in the applicable adopted plans. The Authority is formed
with the purpose and intent of facilitating the development of programs and

projects_related to waste diversion for the benefits of the residents and/or

constituents of the IWMA Region that provide economies of scale without

interfering with individual agencies' exercise of power within their own

jurisdiction.

SECTION 3. Creation of Authority.
3.1 The MembersCities hereby re-create and re-establish an

County Integrated Waste Management Authority,” (hereinafter referred to as
the “Authority}” or “IWMA”) it being understood that the Board shall be entitled
to change the Authority's name from time to time-i-itse-chosses.. The Authority

shall be a public entity separate from each of the MembersCities and the

Authorized Districts.

3.2 The Authority shall constitute and remain as a regional agency

pursuant to Public Resources Code Sectien-40973-section 40970 et seg. The

regional agency shall include one (1) Authorized District Representative as a

member pursuant to Public Resources Code section 40977. Said regional agency,

-10-



and not the GFHESard-COUNTY-which-are-membersParticipating Agencies of the

regional agency, shall be responsible for compliance with the waste diversion

requirements set forth in the-Public Resources Code, Article 1 of Chapter 6
(commencing with Section 41780). In the event that the regional agency fails to
comply with said waste diversion requirements, it is expressly understood and

agreed that Section 1214 of this Agreement shall provide for indemnification for

the benefit of the regional agency and its membersParticipating Agencies as

specifically set forth therein.
3.3 The assets, rights, debts, liabilities, and obligations of the
Authority shall not constitute assets, rights, debts, liabilities, or obligations of any

of the Members-Participating Agencies. However, nothing in this Agreement

shall prevent any MemberParticipating Agency from separately contracting for,
or assuming responsibility for, specific debts, liabilities, or obligations of the

Authority, provided that both the Board and that MemberParticipating Agency

approve such contract or assumption in writing.

3.4  This Second Amended and Restated Joint Powers Agreement

shall take effect upon its adoption by each of the Cities. The Authorized Districts,

and each of them, may elect to participate in the IWMA by execution of this

agreement wherein they shall be bound by its terms and conditions. All prior

agreements, including the MOA, shall be extinguished upon the execution of this

Agreement by the Cities.

SECTION 4. Inclusion of the Authorized Districts.

4.1 This Second Amended and Restated Joint Powers Agreement

-11-



the Authorized Districts to allow one (1) representatives of the Authorized

Districts to participate in the governance of the IWMA pursuant to Section 40977

of the Public Resources Code. Participation of the Authorized Districts is limited

to special districts within San Luis Obispo County that possess solid waste

authority. The Authorized District Representative shall have all the governing

rights and powers granted to an IWMA City Member. This Second Amended and

Restated Joint Powers Agreement shall supersede, replace, and supplant the

Memorandum of Agreement executed by and between the Cities, the County,

and the Authorized Districts in or around 2001.

4.2 Authorized Districts, collectively, shall appoint or elect one

representative and one alternate to represent the Authorized Districts on the

IWMA Board of Directors. Authorized District Representative shall be limited to

elected or appointed officials of an Authorized District. Said representatives shall

represent the collective interests of all Authorized Districts. The selected

Authorized District Representative shall serve a defined term, if so determined

by the Authorized Districts, or so long as they hold an elected or appointed office

with their Participating Agency, or until they resign or are removed prior to the

end of their term. The Authorized District Representative alternate shall be

entitled to vote on IWMA matters only in the absence of the Authorized District

Representative.

4.3 The Authorized Districts, as Participating Agencies, shall have

no individual powers and/or authority other than through the Authorized District

Representative.

SECTION 5. Term.

-12 -



The Authority ema effective as of the date of this
Agreement. It shall continue until dissolved in accordance with Section of
this Agreement. However, in no event shall the Authority be dissolved if its
dissolution would conflict with or violate the terms or conditions of any Revenue
Bonds or related documentation including, without limitation, indentures,

resolutions, and letter of credit agreements.

SECTION 56. Powers.
6.1 The Authority is empowered to acquire, construct, finance,
refinance, operate, regulate and maintain a Solid Waste Landfill, transfer station,
MRF, composting, HHW, or Joint Facilities and Sole Use Facilities subject,
however, to the conditions and restrictions contained in this Agreement. The
Authority shall also have the power to plan, study and recommend proper solid
waste management consistent with the Act and nd, to the
extent permitted by the Act and this Agreement, implement
: i the programs specified in the state approved and locally adopted
SRREs, the HHWE, the NDFE, and the Countywide or Regional Siting Element for
all or any portion of the area included within the
Notwithstanding any other provisions of this , the
Authority shall not acquire, regulate, set fees for, or operate any solid waste
landfills, recycling, or composting facilities owned or operated by

without the express written consent of such

6.2  To the full extent permitted by applicable law, the Authority is

authorized, in its own name, to do all acts necessary or convenient for the

-13-



exercise of such powers that each Member could exercise separately including,

without limitation, any and all of the following:

()

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

(f)

(g)
(h)

(i)

(k)

to make and enter into contracts

to apply for and accept grants, advances and

contributions;

to contract for the services of engineers, attorneys,

accountants, planners, consultants, fiscal agents and other

persons and entities;

to make plans and conduct studies;

to acquire, improve, hold, lease and dispose of real and

personal property of all types;

to sue and be sued in its own name;

to incur and discharge debts, liabilities and obligations;

to establish rates, tolls, tipping fees, other fees, rentals

and other charges in connection with the
v’s facilities identified in Paragraph 56.1

herein, as well as any and all services and prog

provided and/or implemented by the Authority;

to hire agents and employees;

to exercise the power of eminent domain for the

acquisition of real and personal property;

to issue Revenue Bonds, grant or bond anticipation notes,

or other governmental financing instruments, in

accordance with -all applicable laws for the purpose of

-14 -



()

(m)

(n)

raising funds to finance or refinance the acquisition,
construction, improvement, renovation, repair, operation,
regulation or maintenance of the facilities identified in
Paragraph C

y - Ly,
to sell or lease the facilities identified in Paragraph 56.1
herein;
to loan the proceeds of Revenue Bonds to any person or
entity to finance or refinance the acquisition, construction,
improvement, renovation or repair of the facilities
identified in Paragraph 56.1 herein;
to provide that the holders of Revenue Bonds, whether
directly or through a representative such as an indenture
trustee, be third party beneficiaries of any of the
obligations of any Member to the Authority and to
covenant with the. holders of any Revenue Bonds on
behalf of any such Member to perform such obligations
and comply with any agreements that Member may have

with the Authority

-15-



(g) to enter into memorandums of understanding with other

regional agencies, cities, counties, and special districts;

(r) to adopt, as authorized by California law, ordinances as are

necessary to ensure and oversee compliance with any and

all current and future state-mandated legislation and

programs related to solid waste, recycling, and waste

diversion;

(s) to act as the delegate, on behalf of the Participating

Agencies, for the responsibilities of compliance,

monitoring, reporting, and education of all state-

mandated legislation, including, but not limited to the

Integrated Waste Management Act, Assembly Bill 341,

Assembly Bill 1826, and Senate Bill 1383.

6.3 Such powers shall be exercised subject only to the limitations
set forth in this Agreement, applicable law, and such restrictions upon the
manner of exercising such powers as are imposed by law vpon-the-Members-in
the exercise of similar powers. H-noe-eventshall-the-Authority-beautherizedto

exercise—any—power-not-expressiy-autherized—The Authority hereby designates

the City of San Luis Obispo Ceunty-as the Member required to be designated by

Section 6509 of the California Government Code. Should the Participating

Agencies desire to designate an alternative agency for the purposes of Section

6509, such new designation may be changed by resolution of the Participating

Agencies without need for an amendment to this Agreement.

6.4 This Agreement shall not limit the ability of the Participating

Agencies to plan, administer, implement, and otherwise conduct waste

-16-



management and other related local programs as deemed appropriate by the

agency and consistent with the purpose and intent of this Agreement.

SECTION 7. Expressed Limitation of Powers.

The Authority’s power to adopt, impose, implement, and/or comply with

regulations and ordinances is expressiy limited to state-mandated legislation and

regulations related to solid waste, recycling, organic waste, and waste diversion.

The Authority shall establish a budget policy requiring Board consideration of the

minimum work required to comply with state mandates and regulations in the

most demonstrably cost-effective way possible. Said policy shall not preclude

other requirements such as Board consideration of the equitable distribution of

services throughout the IWMA Region and program enhancements that are

funded by grant revenues and/or reimbursements from Participating Agencies.

Additionally, the IWMA shall establish a purchasing policy with a similar provision

when preparing scopes of work for consultants and independent contractors

who are engaged in_implementing the Authority’s projects and programs.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, all existing IWMA ordinances, rules, and

regulations, whether or not mandated by the state, shall remain in full force and

effect and not subject to this limitation of power unless otherwise determined by

the Board.

SECTION 8. Boundaries.

-17-



The boundaries of the Authority shall be the boundaries of the Cities and

the Authorized Districts identified herein as the IWMA Region. In the event a

Participating Agency

County—ln-theeventamember withdraws from the Authority, the boundaries
shall be modified to exclude the area of the withdrawing member-Sectiop-6-shall

outside-the-beundary—ofthe-Authority-agency. In the event a qualified city or

district joins the Authority, the boundaries shall be modified to include the area

of the joining Participating Agency. Section 8 shall not prevent the Authority’s

use and/or operation of facilities outside of its boundaries within the County of

San Luis Obispo.

SECTION 79. Organization.
819.1The Board. The Authority shall be governed by the Board,

which shall exercise or oversee the exercise of all powers and authority on

behalf of the Authority.

-18 -



8:29.2 MembershipParticipating Agencies.

(a)

MembershipCities. City membership in the Authority
shall be voluntary, but only the Countyof San-Luis
Obispe-and-all cities incorporated in the County of

San Luis Obispo presently or in the future, are

declared eligible for membership in the Authority. as

a_regional agency. City representatives to the

Authority shall consist of one (1) member from the

governing body of each incorporated City within the

boundaries of the County of San Luis Obispo which is

a_party to this Agreement. The Cities may elect to

have an alternate _member(s) in addition to any

official member, but said alternate shall be an

elected or appointed official and shall be able to

vote only in the absence of the official

representative.

Authorized Districts. The Authorized Districts shall

be collectively represented on the Board by one (1)

representative _and one (1) alternate elected or

appointed by and among themselves. The

Authorized District Representative shall have all

rights, power, and authority granted to a City

representative. The Authorized District alternate

shall be elected or appointed officials and entitled to

-19-



vote only in the absence of the official Authorized

District Representative.

{b}(c) __ Representatives of the COUNTY-and-CITES-shall be
appointed to serve on the Board in accordance with
procedures established by each of the governing
bodies of the—membertheir respective agencies-

- ) he Authoritv_chal it of ¢l
five—members—of, except that the Beoard—of

limitedAuthorized District Representative and

alternate shall be elected or appointed pursuant to

ope—representative-Section 4. Representatives shall

serve so long as they hold office with their member

agency-o+, until they shall resign or seare removed
by a majority vote of their member agency-, or

pursuant to a set term established by their member

agency. Vacancies among representatives or

alternates shall be filled in the same manner as the

first appointment.
fa}—Member agencies—may—electto—have—an—alternate
berls)i e tficial ber | i

-20-



I halll I  officialandchallbe-abl
e intheal  the official e,

te}(d)  Designation of the official representative or

alternate(s), or —changes thereto, shall be

transmitted in writing to the ManagerExecutive
Director of the Authority by the appointing agency.

{d}(e) In addition to the incorporated citiesCities and

Agreement, any other city which-may-hereafterbe

: Lwithin the L lariesof the C ‘
San-tuis-Obispe-andor qualified special district which

may desire to participate in the activities of the

Authority may do so by executing this Agreement
without prior approval efor ratification of the
named parties to this Agreement and shall
thereafter be governed by all the terms and
provisions of this Agreement as of the date of
execution.

fe}(f) Membership  and/or _ participation _of  any

Participating Agency shall be contingent upon the

execution of this Second Amended and Restated

Joint Powers Agreement—and—subseguent—annual

ratification, as same may be further amended from

time to time, with no requirement to execute the

Original JPA or any prior amendments thereto.

-21-



8-29.3Principal Office. The principal office of the Authority shall be

iy-located at 870

Osos Street, San Luis Obispo, CA 93401. The Board may change that principal

office upon giving at least 15 days' notice to each Memberand-to-the Califernia
Integrated Waste-Management-BoardParticipating Agency and to CalRecycle.

8-49.4 Officers.
(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

The officers of the Board shall consist of a President
and Vice- President elected for a term of one year
by a majority vote of member—ageney
representativesto-the-Authoritythe Board.

Both the President and Vice- President of the Board
shall be elected at the last meeting preceding July of
satdeach year.

The officers shall serve until their successors are
elected.

The duties of the officers shall be as follows:

1) President

a) Shall preside over all meetings of the
Board-as-Chairman,
b) Shall- appoint all ad hoc committees
subject to ratification by the Board.
} Shall : ' - I
itios of caid Authority

c) Shall be an ex-officio member of all

committees.

-22-



2)

d)

Shall execute all contracts and legal

documents on behalf of the Authority

Vice- President

a)

b)

d)

Shall serve as res pro-
tem in the absence of the President.
Shall give whatever aid necessary to the

President

Shall be an ex-officio member of all
committees.
In the event of a vacancy occurring in
the office of either the President or
Vice- President upon said officer's
death, resignation, removal or his/her
ceasing to be an official representative
of a member agency, such vacancy will
be filled by majority vote of the
, the officer elected to
serve for the balance of the unexpired

term.

-23-



8.59.5Manager-Executive Director. The Board shall employ or

contract for the services of a general manager (the “ManagerExecutive Director”)
who shall be the chief administrative officer of the Authority. The Authority shall
select a qualified mmanagerbxecutive Director using professional personnel
standards and an open competitive process. The Managerbxecutive Director
shall plan, organize and direct the administration and operations of the
Authority, either directly or by means of delegation to IWMA staff, shall advise
the Board on policy matters, shall recommend an administrative structure to the
Board, shall hire and discharge administrative staff, shall develop and
recommend budgets, shall reply to communications on behalf of the Authority,
shall approve payments of amounts duly authorized by the Board, shall

implement Board policy, shall carry out such other duties that may be assigned

to the Managerbxecutive Director by the Board from time to time, and shall

attend meetings of the Board and committees as directed.

8.69.6Committees.

(a) Committees—and, subcommittees, and advisory
committees may be established as the Board may
deem appropriate. '

(b) Membership on “ad-hoc” policy committees shall be
at the discretion of the President, subject to
ratification by the Board, and consisting of less than
a quorum of the Board. Nothing herein shall be
construed to limit membership on these aforesaid

committees to officials of the member agencies. The

-24-



President may appoint any individual deemed
qualified to serve on a committee.

(c) Standing Committees shall include an Executive

Committee and a—SelidWasteTechnical-Advisory

Committee-other committees as established by the

Board. The composition and bylaws of the standing
committees shall be established by the Board by

resolution._All Standing Committee meetings shall

be held subject to the provisions of the Ralph M.

Brown Act (Sections 54950 et seq. of the California

State of California.

SECTION £10. Meetings of the Board.

10.1 Notice of Meetings. All meetings of the Board shall be held

subject to the provisions of the Ralph M. Brown Act (Sections 54950 et seq. of

O

the California Government Code) and other applicable laws of the State of

California.

9:310.2  Regular Meetings. The Board shall hold at least four

regular meetings each year. The date upon which, and the hour and place at
which, each regular meeting shall be held-shall-be fixed by resolution of the
Board.

8:210.3  Special Meetings. Special meetings of the Board may be
called in accordance with the provisions of Section- 549556 of the California

Government Code.

-25-



9:310.4 Notice of Meetings. All meetings of the Board shall be

held subject to the provisions of the Califernia—Ralph M. Brown Act (Sections
54950 et seq. of the California Government Code) and other applicable laws of

the State of California.
9.410.5 Minutes. The ManagerExecutive Director shall cause

minutes of all meetings of the Board and any standing committees of the Board

to be kept and shall, after each meeting and approval of the Board, cause a copy

of the minutes to be forwarded to each memberParticipating Agency.

9.510.6 Quorum and vetingVoting. For purposes of conducting

business, there shall be present a quorum consisting of a majority of

roproseriatives—reliding-oreCOUNTY representative—Eaehrepreseptativethe
Board. Each director shall have one vote. No action shall be effective without the

affirmative votes of a majority of those present. Heowever—eight {2} atfirmative

------
-

such—a—vete—The representatives—to—the—AuthorityBoard shall adopt such

procedures as are consistent with this Agreement and applicable law and are

necessary te-cenductor helpful in conducting the business of the Authority in an

orderly manner.

9:610.7 Budget. The Cities and the County have entered into a

Memorandum of Agreement among the County of San Luis Obispo and the Cities
of Arroyo Grande, Atascadero, El Paso de Robles, Grover Beach, Morro Bay,
Pismo Beach, and San Luis Obispo for the Establishment and Payment of Landfill
Tipping Fee Surcharges To Support The San Luis Obispo Integrated Waste
Management Authority (the “MOA”). Pursuant to the MOA, those members of

the Authority having jurisdiction over such matters have agreed to establish

-26-



tipping fee surcharges (the “Tipping Fee Surcharges”) which shall be paid into a

Solid Waste Authority—Trust Fund (as defined in the MOA) for the purposes

therein.

(a)

A line item and program budget for the Authority's
operations shall be adopted by the Board for the
ensuing Fiscal Year prior to June 30 of each year. All
costs incurred by the Authority shall be set forth in
the budget; and shall be paid out of the solid waste
fund derived from tipping fee surcharges and other

sources as approved by the

The line item and program budget shall be

submitted in draft form to all

g g for review and

e = A

comment prior to adoption.

The line item and program budget shall include
sufficient detail to constitute an operating guideline,
the anticipated sources of funds, and the anticipated
expenditures to be made for the operations of the
Authority and the administration, maintenance and
operating costs of the facilities identified in
Paragraph 56.1 herein. Any budget for Sole Use
Facilities shall be maintained separately. Approval of

the line item and program budget by the Board shall

-27-



constitute authority for the

to expend funds for the purposes outlined
in the approved budget, subject to the
availability of funds.

(b) A budget for the acquisition, construction, or
operation of facilities, or for contracting for the
acquisition, construction, or operation of facilities,
identified in Paragraph .1 herein shall be
adopted by the Board before the Authority
commits any acquisition or construction funds or
contracts. It may be amended if and when
determined by the Board. Approval of the

dget(s) for the facilities identified in
Paragraph 56.1 herein shall constitute authority for

the tor (or any trustee or

other fiduciary appointed by the Authority) to
receive state or federal grant funds and proceeds
of Revenue Bonds and to expend funds for the
acquisition, construction, or operation of the
facilities identified in Paragraph 56.1 herein.

(c) A budget(s) governing the acquisition,
construction, or operation of Sole Use Facilities
may be adopted by the affected

or gen

When such budgets are adopted by affected

-28-



appropriate accounts shall be

established by the Authority and designated as

such p p or

D p fund. Disbursement of such

funds by the Authority shall be made only upon

receipt of written authorization from the

designated finance officer of the affected

or k

Receipts and disbursements for the acquisition or

construction of Sole Use Facilities may also be
made directly by the affected

or g 5, in which case such

budgets shall not be a part of the budget- of the

Authority.

9-710.8  Rules of Procedure. The Board shall from time to time,

rules and procedures for the conduct of their meetings.

establish

. Joint Operating Fund and Contributions.

SECTION

The Authority shall have the power to establish a joint operating fund. The fund

shall be used to pay all administrative, operating, and other expenses incurred by

the Authority. Funding shall be on an enterprise basis or as determined by

out by the

All monies in the joint operating fund shall be paid

/ Treasurer for the purposes for which the fund

was created upon authorization by the President of the Board and approval by

of demands for payment, or as

-29.



otherwise authorized by resolution of the Board filed with the Auditor-Controller

/ Treasurer. No MemberParticipating Agency shall be obligated to make any

contributions of funds to the Authority for facilities to be established in
accordance with Section 56.1 or pay any other amounts on behalf of the
Authority, other than as required by this Section 911, without that

MembersParticipating Agency’s consent evidenced by a written instrument

signed by a duly authorized representative of that Member

Participating Agency. The Authority shall contract with an independent certified

professional accountant to conduct annual fiscal audits as required by the-Public

Utilities—Code—Section—99245applicable statute or legislation and report the

results of such audit to the Board.

91— Auditor-Controller / Treasurer. The_Auditor-Controller /

Treasurer of San Luis Obispo County shall be the Auditor-Controller / Treasurer

of the Authority. The Auditor-Controller / Treasurer shall:

10:111.1  Receive—and—receipt ___preform all  meney

ofresponsibilities and obligations as provided in Government Code section

6505.5. To the Autherityextent a conflict exists between this Section 11 and

place—itin-the Treasury—of-San-Luis—Obispe-County—te-Government Code, the

eredit-of-the-AutherityGovernment Code shall control.
{a}—Be—respensible—fer—Notwithstanding Sections 11.1
above, designation of the sofekeeping—and
it £ ol Authori held_by_him/her.
- ot he Authority £ \uthori

-30-



9-2—Controler—The-Auditor-Controller ef-the—County—of San-Luis
Obispo-shall/ Treasurer may be the-Controllerforthe-Autherity—The-Controller

shall:

{a}—bBraw—warrantschanged from time to pay—demands
) he Authori , I I | I
approved—by—the-Autherity-time by resolution of the
Board and/ferthe-Manager—He/Sheshallbe responsible
hic /1 cficial L | for hic/l | of
et £ Authori .
b, K l o I | bool ‘
o cluding | ) l  tinping £
: Lol I o heSolid
w Authority T Eund I " l
' ‘ I basi ‘ 0 I
. inciplos.
10211.2 Make—available—all—such—financial—records—of—the
Authoritywithout necessitating amendment to a—certified-public-accountantor

-31-



SECTION 1012, Records and Accounts.

This Section and Section 911 are intended to insureensure strict accountability of
all funds of the Authority and to provide accurate reporting of receipts and
disbursements of such funds. The Authority shall maintain accurate and correct
books of account, showing in detail the costs and expenses of any service or

acquisition and construction and the maintenance, operation, regulation and

administration of any service or jeint-useloint Facilities or sele—use-faeilitySole

Use Facilities, and all financial transactions of the MembersParticipating Agencies

relating to any service or jeint-useloint Facilities or sele—use—facHitySole Use

Facilities. Books and records shall be established and maintained in accordance

with generally accepted accounting principles promulgated by the California
State Controller's Office and the Governmental Accounting Standards Board. The
books of account shall correctly show any receipts and any costs, expenses, or

charges to be paid by all or any of the MembersParticipating Agencies. The books

-32-



of account shall be open to inspection at all times by a representative or agent of

any of the Members-Participating Agencies. In addition, if required by any

resolution authdrizing the issuance of Revenue Bonds, the Authority shall
maintain appropriate books, records, accounts and files relating to each project
as required by such resolution which shall be open to inspection by holders of
Revenue Bonds if and to the extent, and in the manner, provided in the

resolution.

SECTION 1113, Rates and Fees.

The Authority shall be funded by a combination of rates, fees, and other funding

mechanisms as allowed by applicable authority. Use of revenue from rates and

fees shall not be restricted based upon the funding mechanism. The Authority

shall establish and regulate rates te—be-chargedand/or tipping fees at the new

efficient-eperation—of-facilities;within the County of San Luis Obispo, such as

landfills _or other collection sites, for (1) the operation, acquisition—and,

repair, and

maintenance of new and existing facilities; (2) the implementation of aetivities

required—by—theActstate legislation and regulations; (3) the operation of

programs, education, outreach, monitoring and enforcement efforts; and (4) the

preparation, adoption, and implementation a regional management plan.

-33-



The Authority may impose fees in amounts sufficient for (1) the implementation

of state legislation and supporting programs; (2) education outreach, monitoring,

reporting and compliance efforts; (3) the preparation, adoption, and

implementation of a regional management plan; and (4) any other purposes as

provided for by this Agreement. Revenue generation may include fees imposed

on “Haulers” (defined as companies with an agreement with a governmental

entity for the collection of solid waste, recyciables, or green waste in San Luis

Obispo County), assessments, or any other funding mechanism as allowed by

applicable authority. Rates and fees shall be set or modified by resolution only.

Prior to the Authority increasing rates or fees, or imposing new rates or fees, the

Authority shall provide the Participating Agencies with all necessary facts, data,

information and analyses related to justification and/or explanation of the

proposed rates and fees that meet all applicable legal requirements to support

their adoption. The Authority shall coordinate with the Participating Agency

managers in this regard to ensure the facts, data, information and analyses

provided by the Authority is adequate to enable the Participating Agencies to

implement the Authority’s proposed rates and fees through the Proposition 218

process, if deemed applicable to a Participating Agency by that Agency; however,

determinations regarding the application of Proposition 218 to any proposed

increased rate or fee shall be made solely by each Participating Agency with no

Authority representations of any kind.

-34-



SECTION . Failure to Meet Waste Stream Requirements.

The Authority shall be entitled to cause the waste streams of each
pating Agency to be monitored, pursuant to procedures approved
by the Board, in order to determine whether state waste diversion requirements
are being met. If the waste stream diversion of any
fails to meet any such requirements,
, that pat
shall be solely responsible for any and all resulting liabilities, damages,

criminal and civil sanctions, and costs and expenses. That

shall also i hold the Authority and the
other f pating Ag harmless from and against any and all
liabilities, damages , sanctions, costs and expenses that are incurred as a

result of the violation or a claimed violation including, without limitation, all fees
and costs of counsel. If two or more pating Ag are
responsible for a failure to meet any such requirements or are claimed to have
violated any such requirements, the pating Ag responsible
for the violations or which are the subject of such claims shall be responsible to,

and shall indemnify, the Authority and the other
in proportion to their relative responsibility for the violations or claimed

violations. Upon notification of any such violation or claim, the

gency or g shall take such prompt,

-35-



corrective action as is necessary to meet the requirements. Nothing in this

Section shall preclude one or more MembersParticipating Agencies or the

Authority from imposing or establishing additional incentives to meet waste

diversion requirements.

SECTION 1215, Withdrawal and Dissolution.

44-115.1  The parties to this Agreement pledge full cooperation
and agree to assign representatives to serve as official memberappointed
representatives of the Authority or any committee or subcommittee thereof who
shall act for and on behalf of their city-erceuntyParticipating Agency in any or all
matters which shall come before the Authority, subject to any necessary

approval of their acts by the governing bodies of CHIES—erd-COUNTY-the

Participating Agencies.
14-215.2  Any party to this Agreement may withdraw from the
Authority, with-30-daysupon providing six (6) months’ prior written notice, and

terminate its participation in this Agreement by resolution of its governing body.

The withdrawal of the memberParticipating Agency shall have no effect on the

continuance of this Agreement among the remaining membersParticipating
Agencies, and the Agreement shall remain in full force and effect with respect to

the remaining members-Participating Agencies. No withdrawal shall become

effective until 20-dayssix (6) months after receipt of the written notice by the

Authority.
131 A memberParticipating Agency which has withdrawn from the

Authority shall not be liable

-36-



134-315.3  for the payment of further contributions falling due
beyond the date of withdrawal and shall have no right to reimbursement of any
monies previously paid to Authority. The Authority may authorize a
reimbursement if in its judgment such reimbursement is fair and equitable and

can be done without jeopardy to the operation of the Authority. If any

p g Agency fails to pay itsa reg contribution, as determined
by the . P g Ag v shall be p
\ l (918
y (60) day very Wi otice e deemed
from the Authority.

14-415.4  The Authority may be dissolved at any time and this

Agreement terminated by a joint agreement y-app executed by

jority € > which are parties hereto. Said

termination g . shall provide for the orderly payment of all

outstanding debts and obligations and for the return of any surplus funds of

Authority in proportion to the contributions made- by pating Age
In the event the Authority is solved, the individual
pating Ag shall be responsible for complying with the

requirements of the Act as included in the approved SRREs, HHWE, NDFE,
Countywide or Regional Siting Element and Integrated Waste Management Plan
8] H g

SECTION . Amendments Including Termination.

-37-



This Agreement may only be amended or terminated by a written instrument
executed by ala majority of the Members and meeting the requirements
imposed by the terms or conditions of all Revenue Bonds and related
documentation including, without limitation, indentures, resolutions, and letter
of credit agreements. Notwithstanding the foregoing, no amendment or
termination shall require any MemberParticipating Agency to contribute any
funds to the Authority or become directly or contingently liable for any debts,
liabilities or obligations of the Authority without the consent of that

Memberagency evidenced in a written instrument signed by a duly authorized

representative of that MemberParticipating Agency.

SECTION 1517, Filing with the Secretary of State.

The Secretary shall file all required notices with the Secretary of State in

accordance with California Government Code Sectienssections 6503.5 and

53051.

SECTION 1618. Notices.
All notices which any MembererParticipating Agency of the Authority may wish

to give in connection with this Agreement shall be in writing and shall be served

by personal delivery—during—usual-business—hours—at-theprincipal-office—of-the

or-, by depesiting-the-same-in-the United-Stateselectronic mail, pestage-prepaid;

andor by US mail addressed to the Member—eorParticipating Agency, or

Participating Agencies, or the Authority at its principal office, or to such other

-38-



Agencies may designate from time to time by written notice given in the manner

specified in this Section. Service of notice pursuant to this Section shall be

deemed complete on the day of service by personal delivery (but 24 hours after

such delivery in the case of notices of special meetings of the Board two
after mailing if deposited in the United States

p y mail.

SECTION . Successors and Assigns.

This Agreement shall be binding upon and shall inure to the benefit of the
permitted successors and assigns of the ticip g
However, no shall assign any of its rights under this
Agreement except to a duly formed public entity organized and existing under
the laws of the State of California approved by a majority of the
Directors who do not represent the assigning No
assignment shall be effective unless and until the Authority, the
pating Ag and the proposed assignee comply with all then
applicable requirements of law relating to changes in the composition of entities
such as the Authority if and when they have Revenue Bonds outstanding and
with the terms and conditions of all Revenue Bonds and related documentation

including, without limitation, indentures, resolutions and letter of credit

agreements.

SECTION . Severability.

Should any part, term, , or provision of this Agreement be decided by a

final judgment of a court or arbitrator to be illegal or in conflict with any law of

-39-



the State of California or otherwise be unenforceable or ineffectual, the validity

of its remaining parts, terms, sentences, and provisions shall not be affected- and

the Participating Agencies represent that they would have adopted this

Agreement even without the ineffectual or non-valid provision(s).

SECTION 1921, Section Headings.

All section headings contained in this Agreement are for convenience and

reference. They are not intended to define or limit the scope of any provision of

this Agreement.

SECTION 2022, Effective Date.

This Agreement shall take effect upon its execution by the-chairman-ermayer

four{4j—eitiesall Members, pursuant to resolutions of such governing bodies

authorizing such execution and shall remain in full force and effect until
dissolved pursuant to the provisions herein. This Agreement may be executed in

eight{2} counterparts which together shall constitute a single agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement

as of the day and year first hereinabove written.

-40-



PARTICIPATING AGENCIES

CITIES

Arroyo Grande
Atascadero

El Paso de Robles
Grover Beach
Morro Bay
Pismo Beach

San Luis Obispo

AUTHORIZED DISTRICTS
Avila Beach CSD

California Valley CSD
Cambria CSD

Cavucos Sanitary District
Ground Squirrel Hollow CSD
Heritage Ranch CSD

Los Osos CSD

Nipomo CSD

Oceano CSD

San Miguel CSD

San Simeon CSD

Templeton CSD




AVILA BEACH
COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT
Post Office Box 309, Avila Beach, CA 93424

MEMORANDUM

TO: Avila Beach Community Services District Board of Directors
FROM: Brad Hagemann, General Managel’@)

DATE: August 9, 2022

SUBJECT: Adoption of the Avila Beach Community Services District Water Conservation Program

Recommendation:
Receive staff report regarding the Water Conservation Program and adopt Resolution No. 2022-10

adopting the Water Conservation Program and declaring a Stage II water supply condition, or provide
other direction to staff.

Discussion:
At the November 9, 2021 Board meeting staff summarized the 2016 Water Shortage Response and

Management Plan and requested input from the Board and the District’s customers. At the April 12,
2022 Board meeting, staff presented an updated Water Conservation Program that included suggested
changes shown in “Track Changes”. Most of the suggested changes were designed to make the Program
clearer and afford the District more flexibility. Staff envisioned that when water supply circumstances
dictate, the Board will formally declare a water shortage condition and take special efforts to notify
customers of the response actions customers are required to implement pursuant to the Water
Conservation Program, and any other recommended water conservation measures. The Board reviewed
the staff report and the proposed changes and directed staff to bring the Program back for consideration

at the June 2022 Board meeting.

At the June 14, 2022 Board meeting, staff presented a revised draft Water Conservation Program. The
Water Conservation Program is intended to supersede and replace 2016 Water Shortage Response and
Management Plan in its entirety. The Water Conservation Program continues to include water supply
conditions, stages, and corresponding mandatory and voluntary response actions. At the June 2022
Board meeting, the Board provided comments and direction to staff regarding the Water Conservation
Program. The Board directed staff to bring the Water Conservation Program back for Board
consideration and adoption via resolution at the August 9, 2022 Board meeting. On August 3, 2022,
staff published a summary of the resolution and a Notice of Public Hearing in the San Luis Obispo

Tribune regarding adoption of the Water Conservation Program.

Based on the existing and projected water supply conditions, staff recommends that the Board declare a
Stage II water supply condition. As such, the Stage II response actions are in effect upon adoption of

Resolution No. 2022-10.

Resolution No. 2022-10 and the Water Conservation Program are attached for public comment and
consideration by the Board. Staff recommends the Board consider any public comments regarding the
Program and adopt Resolution No. 2022-10, which will rescind the 2016 Water Shortage Response and
Management Plan and adopt the 2022 Water Conservation Program.



AVILA BEACH COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT
RESOLUTION NO. 2022-10

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE
AVILA BEACH COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT
ADOPTING A WATER CONSERVATION PROGRAM

WHEREAS, the Avila Beach Community Services district ("District") provides water
service within the District's service area pursuant to section 61100, subdivision (a), of the
Community Services District Law; and

WHEREAS, beginning in water year 2020 (October 1, 2019 to September 30, 2020), the
watersheds supplying the California State Water Project (“SWP”) received below-average
precipitation. The California Department of Water Resources (“DWR”) classified water years
2020 and 2021 as dry and critically dry, respectively. Persistent dry conditions will likely result
in a critically dry designation for water year 2022. The three-year sequence of water years 2019-
2022 (October 1, 2019 through September 30, 2022) is projected to be the driest on record in
California for statewide precipitation; and

WHEREAS, in addition to reduced precipitation since 2020, California’s climate is
transitioning to a warmer setting in which historical relationships among temperature,
precipitation, and runoff are changing. In 2021, the DWR’s snowmelt runoff forecast over-
estimated the runoff that occurred by sixty-eight percent (68%). In 2022, DWR’s median runoff
forecast for the Sacramento River dropped from 16.7 to 9.7 million acre-feet, a reduction of
forty-two percent (42%); and

WHEREAS, on October 19, 2021, Governor Gavin Newsom proclaimed that a state of
emergency exists in all California counties due to severe drought conditions and called on all
local and regional water suppliers to implement water supply contingency plans that are
responsive to local conditions. This proclamation followed other increasingly expansive drought
declarations and executive orders that had been issued since April 2021; and

WHEREAS, the District’s water supply sources include SWP allocations. On March 18,
2022, DWR reduced the SWP Table A allocation for 2022 from fifteen percent (15%) to only
five percent (5%) of contract amounts. Table A allocations for 2020 and 2021 were twenty
percent (20%) and five percent (5%), respectively. The last three years marks the lowest three-
year combined deliveries of allocated water in the history of the SWP. Three consecutive years
of low Table A allocations have strained water supplies for the District; and

WHEREAS, the District’s water supplies are projected at 70 % of its entitlement for the
22/23 Water Year.

WHEREAS, article X, section 2 of the California Constitution declares that waters of the
State are to be put to beneficial use; that waste, unreasonable use, or unreasonable method of use
of water be prevented; and that water be conserved for the public welfare; and

Resolution No. 2022-10



WHEREAS, California Water Code sections 375 et seq. empower any public entity
which supplies water at retail or wholesale to adopt and enforce a water conservation program to
reduce the quantity of water used by those within its service area after holding a public hearing
and making appropriate findings of necessity for the adoption of a water conservation program;

and

WHEREAS, Water Code section 375, subdivision (c), defines “public entity” to include
a city, county, special district, water authority, or any other municipal public corporation or

district; and

WHEREAS, on May 24, 2016, by Resolution No. 2016-04, the District adopted a Water
Shortage Response and Management Plan pursuant to Water Code sections 375 ef seq.; and

WHEREAS, in light of changing circumstances and the need for greater flexibility in
responding to water shortage and drought conditions, the District seeks to rescind its Water
Shortage Response and Management Plan and adopt a water conservation program, a true and
correct copy of which is attached hereto as Exhibit "A" (the “Water Conservation Program”);

and

WHEREAS, regulation of the time of certain water use, the manner of certain water use,
and the method of application of water for certain uses, as set forth in the Water Conservation
Program, provides an effective and immediately available means of conserving water and may
delay or avoid the need to declare a water shortage emergency pursuant to Water Code sections

350 et seq.; and

WHEREAS, due to persistent and unpredictable water conditions in the State of
California and County of San Luis Obispo and the declared policy of the State of California to
conserve water to the greatest extent possible, it is necessary and appropriate for the District to
adopt, implement, and enforce the Water Conservation Program to (i) reduce the quantity of
water used by District consumers for the purpose of conserving the District’s water supplies, (i7)
provide greater assurances that there will be adequate water to meet the present and future needs
of District residents; (iii) prevent the waste or unreasonable use of District water, and (iv)
conserve water to ensure that there is sufficient water for human consumption, sanitation, and

fire protection; and

WHEREAS, based on the Staff Report, staff presentation and public comment, the
District’s Board of Directors (“Board”) further finds this Resolution is adopted for the protection
of the health, safety and welfare of District water customers who depend on the District for a
reliable water supply and is intended to minimize the effects of water supply shortages that are

the result of drought; and

WHEREAS, the Board finds that the adoption of the Water Conservation Program is not
subject to the California Environmental Quality Act (“CEQA”) pursuant to Public Resources
Code section 21080, subdivision (b)(4), and Cal. Code Regs. Title 14 section 15269, subdivision
(c), because such action is necessary to prevent or mitigate an immediate emergency.
Additionally, where it can be seen with certainty that there is no possibility that the proposed

Resolution No. 2022-10



actions may have a significant impact on the environment, those actions are not subject to CEQA
pursuant to Cal. Code Regs. Title 14 section 15061, subdivision (b)(3). Finally, adoption of the
Water Conservation Program is not a “project” as defined by Cal. Code Regs. Title 14 section
15378 because it will not result in either a direct physical change in the environment, or a
reasonably foreseeable indirect physical change in the environment.

WHEREAS, on August 9, 2022, the District held a public hearing and made appropriate
findings of necessity for the adoption of the Water Conservation Program. During said hearing,
the Board received information, comments, testimony, and other evidence provided by Board
members, staff, and the public pertaining to these matters, and that analysis is incorporated into
this Resolution as though set forth in full; and

WHEREAS, notice of said hearing was published in accordance with Water Code
section 376 on August 3, 2022, in the San Luis Obispo Tribune, a newspaper of general
circulation printed, published, and circulated within Santa Luis Obispo County.

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the AVILA
BEACH COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT, as follows:

Section 1. The District hereby finds and declares that the above recitals are true and
correct.

Section 2. The Water Shortage Response and Management Plan adopted on or about May
24, 2016 pursuant to Resolution No. 2016-04 is hereby rescinded and replaced in its entirety by
the Water Conservation Program. The Board adopts the Water Conservation Program attached as
Exhibit "A" to this Resolution.

Section 3. The Board, based on the facts and circumstances set forth above, does hereby
find and determine that:

a. It is necessary and appropriate for the District to adopt, implement, and
enforce the Water Conservation Program to (i) reduce the quantity of water
used by District consumers for the purpose of conserving the District’s water
supplies, (ii) provide greater assurances that there will be adequate water to
meet the present needs of District residents consistent with District Code
section 3.28.020; (iii) prevent the waste or unreasonable use of District water,
and (iv) conserve water to ensure that there is sufficient water for human
consumption, sanitation, and fire protection; and

b. Conservation of current water supplies and minimization of the effects of
water supply shortages that are the result of drought are essential to the
public health, safety, and welfare of District customers.

Section 4. A Stage I1 water supply condition is hereby declared and will remain in effect

until rescinded by the Board. As such, the Stage II response actions are in effect upon the
adoption of this Resolution.

Resolution No. 2022-10



Section 5. The District’s General Manager shall take all steps necessary to implement and
adopt this Resolution and enforce the Water Conservation Program.

Section 6. This Resolution shall take effect immediately upon its adoption.

On the motion of Director , seconded by Director and on the
following roll call vote, to wit:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:

The foregoing Resolution is hereby passed, approved and adopted by the Board of Directors of
the Avila Beach Community Services District this 9th day of August 2022.

Peter Kelley

President of the Board

AVILA BEACH COMMUNITY
SERVICES DISTRICT

ATTEST:

Brad Hagemann
General Manager
and Secretary to the Board

Resolution No. 2022-10



AVILA BEACH COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT
WATER CONSERVATION PROGRAM

1. INTRODUCTION

In 2016, by Resolution No. 2016-04, Avila Beach Community Services District (the
“District”) adopted a Water Shortage Response and Management Plan. Due to changing
circumstances and the need for greater flexibility in responding to water shortage and drought
conditions, the District adopted this Water Conservation Program (“Program”). This Program
supersedes in its entirety the 2016 Water Shortage Response and Management Plan, which is no
longer in effect.

The Program is intended to encourage responsible water use, conserve District water
supplies and ultimately protect the District’s customers. Currently, the District is entitled to
approximately 168 acre-feet of water per year' from various sources.” The District’s customers
have historically used approximately eighty (80) to ninety (90) acre-feet of water per year.

This Program establishes five (5) drought condition stages that relate to the District’s
projected available water supplies and corresponding mandatory or voluntary water conservation
practices. As set out below, the voluntary and mandatory water conservation practices intensify
as the drought conditions worsen. To avoid the need for the District to take action to prohibit
certain water uses, all District customers should make a daily effort to conserve water.

This Program applies equally to all District customers, including, but not limited to,
customers that receive water from the District and put it to use on parcels for residential,
commercial, or industrial purposes.

The District may amend this Program if it determines that changes are necessary to
conserve the District’s water supplies. The District may also amend this Program if the District
determines that certain water uses impede the District’s ability to supply water for domestic use,
fire protection or sanitation, or if certain water uses impede the District’s efforts to achieve water
use reduction requirements imposed by the District, the County of San Luis Obispo, the State of
California, or any agency or authority with jurisdiction over the District.

! One acre-foot equals approximately 326,000 gallons, or enough water to cover an acre of land, about the size of a

football field, one foot deep.
2 The District’s current water supplies include 68 acre-feet of Lake Lopez Water, 100 acre-feet of State Water

Project allocations and a 100 acre-foot “State Water Drought Buffer.”

Page 1 of 7



2 WATER SUPPLY CONDITIONS AND RESPONSE ACTIONS

WATER
STAGE | SUPPLY RESPONSE ACTIONS REl;]'ErIﬁII?r?oFNs
CONDITION

1. The District will continue outreach and education
programs regarding water  conservation best
management practices.

2. The District will continue encouraging all District
customers to implement the following conservation

practices:

a. Identify and fix all plumbing and irrigation leaks
immediately;

b. Stop washing paved surfaces and hardscape,
including, but not limited to, sidewalks,
driveways, parking lots, or patios, building and
structures, except when it is necessary for health
and safety reasons, such as immediate fire
protection;

c. Limit irrigation to two (2) days per week and after
8:00 PM and before 9:00 AM, unless a different
irrigation schedule is established by the District or
its General Manager,

I All times d. Checl.c a.ll irfigati0n §ystems for leaks monthly; Not Applicable.

e. Stop irrigation practices and water use that results
in runoff onto nearby surfaces, including, but not
limited to, adjacent property, non-irrigated areas,
hardscapes, or roadways;

f. Only wash cars, boats, recreational vehicles or
other vehicles or equipment at commercial
establishments that re-circulate water, or using a
bucket and a hand-held hose with a shut-off
nozzle;

g. Stop operating decorative water features, such as
fountains and ponds, unless re-circulated water is
used; and

h. Eating Establishments: All eating or drinking
establishments located within the District’s
service area, including, but not limited to,
restaurants, cafes, cafeterias, bars, and other
eating or drinking establishments, should only
serve drinking water upon request; and

i. Lodging Establishments: All lodging
establishments within the District’s service area,
including, but not limited to, hotels, resorts,

Page 2 of 7




STAGE

WATER
SUPPLY
CONDITION

RESPONSE ACTIONS

RELIEF OF
RESTRICTIONS

motels, or other commercial establishments that
offer lodging, should provide guests with the
option of choosing not to have towels and/or
linens laundered daily. The hotel or motel should
prominently display notice of this option in each
guestroom in a clear and easily understood
manner.

I

|

Supplies
Projected at
70% of
Entitlements
(estimated:118
AFY)

. The

District will commence more aggressive

conservation outreach and education efforts.

. Customers must implement all Stage I conservation

practices during a Stage II shortage and must also
comply with the following mandatory conservation

practices:

a.

Limit landscape irrigation, whether by automated
system, by hose or by other means, according to
the schedule, if any, established by the District
upon declaring a Stage II shortage or by the
General Manager and posted at the District’s
office;

Stop all irrigation practices during and forty-eight
(48) hours following measurable rainfall;

Cover swimming pools and spas to prevent loss
from evaporation; and

Repair all leaks within seventy-two (72) hours of
discovery or notification by the District, unless
other arrangements are made with the District’s
General Manager.

Eating Establishments: All eating or drinking
establishments located within the District’s
service area, including, but not limited to,
restaurants, cafes, cafeterias, bars, and other
eating or drinking establishments, must (i) post, in
a conspicuous place, a notice of drought condition
and (ii) refrain from serving drinking water
except upon specific request.

Lodging Establishments: All lodging
establishments within the District’s service area,
including, but not limited to, hotels, resorts,
motels, or other commercial establishments that
offer lodging, must post, in a conspicuous place,
in each room and in a common area a notice of
drought condition containing water conservation
information and a separate notice with language

Projected Supplies
greater than 70%
of Entitlement.

Page 3 of 7




STAGE

WATER
SUPPLY
CONDITION

RESPONSE ACTIONS

RELIEF OF
RESTRICTIONS

substantially similar to the following:

“This region is suffering a serious water shortage.
Sheets and towels are customarily changed
between guests. If you would like your sheets
changed during your stay, please notify the front
desk or leave this notice on your pillow. If you

would like your towels changed during your stay,
please leave them on the floor in the bathroom, and |
housekeeping will be pleased to accommodate

you.”

I

Supplies
Projected at
60% of
Entitlements
(estimated: 101
AFY)

. Customer must implement all Stage I and Stage II
conservation practices during a Stage III shortage and
must also comply with the following mandatory
conservation practices:

a o

. During Stage III drought conditions, and to the extent
the District has the ability to provide such water, the
District intends to continue processing pending
applications for new water services, and intends to
allow new water service comnections that were
approved prior to the Stage III declaration.

Limit landscape irrigation according to the
schedule established, if any, by the District upon
declaring a Stage III shortage or by the General
Manager and posted at the District’s office;

Stop filling, re-filling or operating ornamental
water features, including, but not limited to, lakes,
ponds or fountains, except to the extent needed to
sustain aquatic life, provided that such animals
have been actively managed within the water
feature prior to declaration of the Stage III
shortage;

Do not drain or fill swimming pools or spas;

Do not use potable water for dust control;

Only wash cars, boats, recreational vehicles or
other vehicles or equipment at commercial
establishments that re-circulate water;

Repair all leaks within forty-eight (48) hours of
discovery or notification by the District, unless
other arrangements are made with the General

Manager.

Projected Supplies
greater than 60%
of Entitlement.

Page 4 of 7




WATER

STAGE SUPPLY

CONDITION

RESPONSE ACTIONS

RELIEF OF
RESTRICTIONS

After analyzing the prevailing conditions, such as
weather, supply shortages and customer demand, the
District may declare a Water Shortage Emergency
pursuant to Water Code section 350, et seq.’ The
District, by the declaration, may:

a. Impose a moratorium on new, permanent or
temporary, water service connections; suspend
accepting or processing applications for new
water service; and stop issuing statements of
immediate ability to serve water (such as, will
serve letters);

b. Determine what water uses are “non-essential;”

Establish a landscape irrigation schedule; and/or

Adopt other regulations and restrictions on

delivery and consumption of water for the

purposes of conserving water and meeting human
consumption, sanitation and fire protection needs.

e o

v

Supplies
Projected at
55% of
Entitlements
(estimated: 92
AFY)

3.

Customer must implement all Stage I, II, and III
conservation practices during a Stage IV shortage and
must also comply with the following mandatory
conservation practices:

a. Limit landscape irrigation according to the
schedule established, if any, by the District upon
declaring a Stage IV shortage or by the General
Manager and posted at the District’s office;

b. Repair all leaks within twenty-four (24) hours of
discovery or notification by the District unless
other arrangements are made with the General
Manager.

During a Stage IV shortage, the District intends to
allow new water service connections to projects with
preexisting service commitments, so long as the
District’s water supply allows.

After analyzing the prevailing conditions, such as |

Projected Supplies
greater than 55%
of Entitlement.

3 During a declared water shortage emergency, Water Code section 350 e seq. authorizes water
suppliers to adopt regulations and restrictions on the delivery and consumption of water for the
purposes of conserving water and meeting human consumption, sanitation and fire protection
needs, even though such restrictions may conflict with laws that establish the rights of individual
consumers to receive water on a particular basis. (Water Code, § 357.)

Page 5 of 7




STAGE

WATER
SUPPLY
CONDITION

RESPONSE ACTIONS

RELIEF OF
RESTRICTIONS

weather, supply shortages and customer demand, the
District may, if it has not already, declare a Water
Shortage Emergency in accordance with Water Code
section 350, et seq. As part of the Water Shortage
Emergency Declaration, the District may:

a. Impose a moratorium on new, permanent or
temporary, water service connections; suspend
accepting or processing applications for new
water service; and stop issuing statements of
immediate ability to serve water (such as, will
serve letters);

b. Determine what water uses are “non-essential;”

c. Establish a landscape irrigation schedule; and/or

d. Adopt other regulations and restrictions on
delivery and consumption of water for the
purposes of conserving water and meeting human
consumption, sanitation and fire protection needs.

Supplies
Projected at
50% of
Entitlements
(estimated: 84
AFY)

Customer must implement all Stage I, II, III, and IV
conservation practices during a Stage V shortage and
must also comply with the following mandatory
conservation practices:

a. Stop all landscape irrigation and turn off all
automated irrigation systems. This does not apply
to the following categories of water use unless the
District declares otherwise:

i.  Maintenance of established trees and shrubs
that are watered on a schedule established
by the District or its General Manager,

ii.  Maintenance of existing landscaping that is
necessary for fire protection as determined
by the fire protection agency having
jurisdiction over the property to be irrigated;

iii. Maintenance of existing landscaping for
erosion control; and

iv.  Watering of livestock.

. After analyzing the prevailing conditions, such as

weather, supply shortages and customer demand, the
District may, if it has not already, declare a Water
Shortage Emergency in accordance with Water Code
section 350, et seq. As part of the Water Shortage

Projected Supplies
greater than 50%
of Entitlement.

Page 6 of 7




WATER
STAGE | SUPPLY RESPONSE ACTIONS REl;I’i‘IﬁII%FT?gNS
CONDITION

Emergency Declaration, the District will:

a.

Impose a moratorium on new, permanent oOr
temporary, water service connections; suspend
accepting or processing applications for new
water service; and stop issuing statements of
immediate ability to serve water (such as, will
serve letters);

Determine what water uses are “non-essential”;
Establish a landscape irrigation schedule; and/or
Adopt other regulations and restrictions on
delivery and consumption of water for the
purposes of conserving water and meeting human
consumption, sanitation and fire protection needs.

3. ENFORCEMENT

The District’s General Manager, or any other individual directed by the Board of
Directors to enforce this Program, has the duty to enforce the provisions of this Program
consistent with California law. This Program shall be enforced pursuant to Water Code section
377, as amended from time to time, and any other statute that provides for the enforcement of
water conservation programs adopted pursuant to Water Code section 375, et seq.

Page 7 of 7




